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PART |
ltem 1. B usine ss

Overview

Second Sight Medical Products, Inc. is a medicaliage company that develops, manufactures and s
implantable visual prosthetics to restore some tfanal vision to blind patients. Our current protjuie Argus® Il
System, treats outer retinal degenerations, suchtiétis pigmentosa, which we refer to as RPhis Form 10K. RP is
a hereditary disease, affecting an estimated 1lliompeople worldwide including about 100,000 plkeom the Unite:
States, that causes a progressive degenerationedfightsensitive cells of the retina, leading to significaisua
impairment and ultimately blindness. The Argusys@m is the only retinal prosthesis approved elited States |
the Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, and tistfapproved retinal prosthesis in the world. Bgtoring som
functional vision in patients who otherwise havilkagight loss, the Argus Il System can providedfiégs which include:

. improving patients’orientation and mobility, such as locating doorsl avindows, avoiding obstacles, ¢
seeing the lines of a crosswalk,

» allowing patients to feel more connected with pedpl their surroundings, such as seeing when soeng&
approaching or moving away,

e providing patients with enjoyment from being “visuagain, such as locating the moon, tracking groud
players as they move around a field, and watchiegroving streams of lights from fireworks, and

* improving patients’ well-being and ability to pemfio activities of daily living.

The Argus Il System provides an artificial formagion that differs from the vision that normalliglsted peopl
have. It does not restore normal vision and it do®sslow or reverse the progression of the diseRssults vary amol
patients. While the majority of patients receivbemefit from the Argus Il, some patients reportereing little or nc
benefit.

Our Company

We were founded in 1998 with the mission to devetopnufacture, and market implantable prosthetidcds tha
can restore sight to the blind. In 2002, we begadliracal trial of our proof-ofeoncept device, the Argus | reti
prosthesis, at the University of Southern Califarnsix human subjects were implanted with the Argustina
prosthesis in a study that was designed to denaiastie feasibility and safety of lomgrm electrical stimulation of tl
retina and its ability to restore some functioniaion. By 2006, we developed a second generatioiteethe Argus |
Retinal Prosthesis System that, among other atéshis smaller, has more stimulating electroded,ia easier to inst:
surgically than the Argus | retinal prosthesisthat year, we conducted a small pilot study in Mexiand we utilize
data from this pilot study to obtain FDA approwaltegin an Investigational Device Exemption (IDHjical trial at si>
hospitals in the US during 2007. In 2008 we expdntle trial to include sites in three European ¢oes Wre
completed enroliment for this study in August 20B8sed on the lonterm results of this study, which demonstrate«
benefits of Argus Il System, we obtained CE Marlprapal in EU in February 2011, and FDA marketingrayal
under a Humanitarian Device Exemption, in Febr2@¥3. To our knowledge the Argus Il System curseigtithe onl
retinal prosthesis to be commercialized anywheréhaworld and currently is the only such productobtain FD/
marketing approval in the US.

Currently, after more than 15 years of researchdsavelopment, more than $130 million of investmeamd over $2
million of direct federal grants received in suppof our technology development, we employ over p@0ple in th
development (engineering and clinical), manufactanel commercialization of the Argus Il System &utdre products.

Our Markets

Second Sight is the global leader in vision restonato the blind. We believe that our competitadvantage ar
ability to maintain market share in the future vl bolstered by the following:

* We have extensive IP, or intellectual property t@cton that covers every major aspect of the teldyy we
have developed. We have over 300 granted patedtevar 170 patent applications on a worldwide baale
believe that




our IP and our technical approach, which does elgton light getting to the implant, will result andevice ths
can deliver cortical stimulation to the brain. Sadijto additional research and development, thisanE
technology may result in a device that can treatlgeall forms of blindness.

* We have regulatory leadership in that, to our kealgk, we currently possess the only device thadtis FDA
approved and CHarked to restore some functional vision to indisits who are or will become blind a
result of RP.

*  We continue to achieve meaningful reimbursemerel&for the Argus Il System in the US and some Reaa
countries. We are currently working to expand tlhwenber of countries that reimburse us for the Arg
System.

 We plan to offer periodic software upgrades to @eckaour customergxperience, which arise from our stri
engineering, research and clinical programs. Wi faaffer the next upgrade in late 2016.

We expect to expand the numbers of eligible blindspns who will benefit from the Argus Il Systennaigt
additional clinical trials, to treat patients blew age-related macular degeneration (or AMBHcruitment fc
this study began in December 2014 and we plandgobmplanting in the study in the first half of 2.

 We intend to develop a new device, the Orion | @&iqurosthesis, over approximately the next 24 meitia
we expect may favorably address almost all othen$oof blindness.

During clinical studies the Argus Il System genlgralemonstrated clear and significant improvementisua
function both in the clinic and in patiesttaily lives. Based on these data, the Argus tindeProsthesis System |
been approved for marketing in Europe, the US, @an&urkey, and at one medical center in Saudi iaralye hav
submitted an application for full regulatory appaibin Saudi Arabia. Our current approval is limitedone hospital, at
no assurance can be given that we will receiveréglulatory approval.

The Argus Il System is intended to restore soméulsesion to patients who are blind and have lostst or all o
their vision due to retinitis pigmentosa (whictthe approved US indication for use) or due to otg&nal degeneratic
(which is the broader CE mark indication for ud&hile there are several diseases and syndromesdhgirise oute
retinal degeneration, the two most prominent of¢hare RP and AMD. We believe that future prodestetbpment ¢
the Orion | visual prosthesis will expand the méarfke our products to include nearly all forms ¢ihdness.

Retinitis Pigmentosa (RP)

RP is a group of inherited disorders that affeettttina. The retina is a layer of nerve cellshatliack of the ey
RP is a disease that gradually robs relatively gopeople of their vision over time. Onset of RPfien noted in th
teen years or early twenties, typically as nigindress. This is followed by a period of periphetialon loss, until th
patient is left with a tunnel of vision and then manaining sight. Although there are various genesiuses (over 1C
and thus variability in the disease progressiomymaeople with advanced RP have lost all functiaigibn by their 40
or 50s. The Argus Il System works by bypassing radd cones which are defunct in these patients samdling
electrical signals directly to the retina’s remamhealthy cells.

Although there are reported trials for other treatits underway, to our knowledge the Argus Il Systemains th
only approved therapeutic option for esidkge RP in the US, and to our knowledge it isdhly treatment optic
currently commercialized anywhere in the world.

Worldwide, an estimated 1.5 million people suffesri RP,1 which includes about 100,000 in the USPan-
European data is not readily available, but weelveliit is reasonable to estimate that the averegeaence througho
Europe is similar to the average prevalence withenUS, and so the ratio of populations could bedus estimate ti
number of Europeans affected as

1 Weleber, R.G. and Gregory-Evans, K. (200Btiiitis Pigmentosa and allied disordeis.Ryan, S.J. (ed.), Retir
Mosby, St. Louis, pp, 362-470.

2 Foundation Fighting Blindness estimates thaiuald00,000 Americans are affected by RP or sindiaease
(http:/lwww.ffb.ca/documents/File/rp_guide/Guide RP_and_Other_Related_Diseases.pdf)
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167,000 in the 28 EU countries. Approximately 25% of people with RP in the US haiaion that is 20/200 or wor
(legally blind).® Since the bare light perception or worse visiotedon for the US indication is worse than 20/26@
believe that the subset of patients that can ladedeby the Argus Il System is less than 25,0aBénUS. In Europe, tl
indicated vision loss is severe to profound whighjle better than bare light perception, remainseahat worse th:
20/200. We estimate that the subset of RP patibiatscan be treated in Europe to be somewhat snthbe 42,00(
Worldwide, we estimate that 375,000 people arelle@tind due to RP, and that a portion of thesauldde candidat:
for the Argus Il System.

Age Related Macular Degeneration (AMD)

AMD is a relatively common eye condition and thadimg cause of vision loss among people age 65oktat. ©
The macula is a small spot near the center ofdtiear and its damage results in loss of centradwisAMD can start ¢
a blurred area near the center of vision and dxe it can grow larger until loss of central visioocurs. Central visic
is extremely important for everyday tasks sucheasling, writing, and face recognition.

There are three stages of AMD defined in part ey dlze of drusen (yellow deposits) under the retitealy an:
intermediate stage AMD has few symptoms or visassl These earlier stages of the disease are yefallintreated ¢
dealt with using diet supplementation. People waitlvanced AMD have vision loss from damage to theutaa Ther
are two types of late stage AMD:

« Dry AMD or geographic atrophy: There is a breakdavfright sensitive cells in the macula that semla
information to the brain, and the supporting tiseaaeath the macula. This damage causes vision loss

» Wet AMD or neovascular AMD: Blood vessels grow umdgth the retina, these vessels might leak |
which may lead to swelling and damage of the madiizs damage may be severe and can progress yuickl

Treatments for AMD:

e The Implantable Miniature Telescope (VisionCare thphmic Technologies, Inc.), a magnifying devicatth
implanted in the eye, is approved for use in p#gievith severe to profound vision impairment (bestrecte
visual acuity of 20/160 to 20/800) due to dry AMBome patients who are candidates for the ArgueVicd
may also be candidates for the implantable telescop

* There are currently no other treatments for AM2afhe disease has caused severe to profound Vsisn

e There are currently no established treatments dbkty or reverse the progression of Dry AMD othwear
supplements.

e Therapies exist for Wet AMD that delay the progmsof visual impairment or slightly improve thesian
rather than completely curing or reversing its seuiThese therapies are approved in many regioosghou
the world, including the US and EU.

Worldwide, between 20 and 25 million people suffem vision loss due to AMD’ and of these about 2 milli
have vision that is considered legally blind, orse?8 In the US, just over two million people experiemision loss du
to AMD according to a 2010 study by the NationaleBpstitute. Of the 1.3 million legally blind Amesns,® we
estimate that 42.5% (or 552,500) are due to AMDApplying this percent of legally blind due to AMB2.5%) to th
total number of legally blind people in

Eurostat. Retrieved 1 January 2013.
Haim M. Epidemiology of Retinitis PigmentaseDenmark. Acta Ophthalmol Scand Suppl 2002; 1-34.
Grover et al., ‘Visual Acuity Impairment inaffents with Retinitis Pigmentosa at Age 45 YearsOdder,
Ophthalmology. 1999 Sept; 106(9):1780-5.
The Eye Diseases Prevalence Research Gro0pa2CDC, 2009.
Choptar, A., Chakravarthy, U., and Verma,Age Related Macular Degeneration’. BJM 2003;326:48
Global Data on Visual Impairments 2010, Wailkehlth Organization.
National Eye Institute ( http://www.nei.nibygeyedata/blind.asp)
0 Congdon N, @olmain B, Klaver CC, et al. Causes and prevalesfcgisual impairment among adults in
United StatesArch Ophthalmol.Apr 2004;122(4):47485. This percent amount was derived from the raf
different causes of blindness by different racabracial demographic data from 2010 US Census data.

g b~ w
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Europe (2.55 million)1! we estimate the population of legally blind indivads from AMD to be about 1.08 milli
individuals in Europe. We believe the Argus Il Syatmay be able to help a subset of these legatig BIMD patient:
who have severe to profound vision loss.

To date, we have not yet implanted any AMD patievith the Argus Il device. We are planning to coctda five
subject feasibility study of the use of the ArguisSistem in patients with dry AMD. This feasibiligtudy will be
conducted in the United Kingdom and approval todum the study has been obtained from the UK Coeny
Authority, the Medicines and Healthcare ProductguRatory Agency or MHRA. Patient recruitment inglsitudy bege
in December 2014. We expect to perform these implan the first half of 2015. After positive folleup data hay
been collected from these five subjects, we intendonduct a larger pivotal study, of up to 30 saly, in the US ai
Europe to collect safety and efficacy data to supparket approval for this expanded indicationdee for the Argus
System.

We intend to seek FDA approval in the US for usthefArgus Il System for AMD. We also intend to keitly add
AMD to our CE label for the use of the Argus Il 8m in patients with AMD in Europe. Our approachl we tc
implant the electrode array in the central visiseaaawhere patients have vision loss and leave anipleral visio
largely unchanged.

Other diseases resulting in blindness that mayrdeté¢d by Orion | visual prosthesis

Many diseases outside of RP and AMD can also chliséness. Many of the largest causes of visualinmpen
(i.e. refractive error and cataracts) are avoidableurable, and their prolonged or untreated ihpacvision is largel
observed in developing nations. Some other causddinminess, such as brain trauma, may also nosudgble fo
treatment by a cortical stimulator. However, th@a@ing causes of severe vision loss which inclgidecoma, diabet
retinopathy, eye trauma, retinopathy of prematuaitgl many others can result in severe visual impait that ma
prove to be treatable by an Orion | visual prosthes

According to the World Health Organization (WH®§,285 million people suffer from vision loss worldwidOr
these, 39 million people are considered legalindliThe WHO further estimates that 80% of legahdiiess i
avoidable, leaving 7.8 million legally blind inddaals, including those blind due to AMD and RP,508 million
excluding AMD and RP. In the US, 1.3 million people legally blind? of which we estimate 44.3%, or 575,900,
legally blind due to causes other than preventabhable conditions, RP or AME.

The potentially addressable market for the Oriaslal prosthesis is a subset of the legally bpngulation cite
here, or less than 5.8 million worldwide, approxiela575,900 in the US, and about 1.13 million urd@pe.

We intend to use a portion of the proceeds we vedefrom our IPO, completed in November 2014, topsut the
research and development of the Orion | visualthesss. We plan to complete the migtical development of the Ori
| device by mid-2016 and currently anticipate castihg our first-in-human study by the end of 2016.

Our Technology

We developed the Argus Il System primarilyHause following its clinical conception in the afl990s by
handful of leading retinal doctors, vision scietgisind engineers, and the subsequent formatidreafompany in 199
During this development period we created long teafety, reliability and clinical benefit as we enatered, solve
and frequently patented solutions to, a numbergrfificant clinical and engineering challenges. 3ééclude:

 Development of an electrode array that can resamh interface with the delicate retina for multigiear:
without causing damage to the underlying neurons;

»  Miniaturization of the implantable micrelectronics package under the constraints of raqit to be wate
tight, durable, biocompatible, and biostable, widaturing over 60 electrical connections;

» Development of a flexible polymer based electrodayathat does not break down and leakiwvo for a perios
of up to decades as demonstrated by acceleragei@difs and over five years of continuous use tieipis;

11 Global Data on Visual Impairments 2010, Watkhlth Organization.
12 WHO Fact Sheet number 282, updated Octobe3.201
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. Development of a biocompatible and stable connecti join the polymer array to the micetectronic
package;

. Development of an electrode material that can waid higher charge densities than the known
neurostimulation industry standard (platinunthereby enabling the use of smaller (and hence noaegivel
area) stimulating electrodes;

» Development of a wireless power and data link thagets international standards and produces staviee
function with a moving eye;

¢ Development of stimulation and rehabilitation methdhat improve patients’ outcomes; and
« MRI conditional status, that is safe for the pasei undergo MRI under specified conditions.

The Argus Il Retinal Prosthesis System consis@naimplant, a small portable computer and a pagla$ses with
miniature video camera.

Implant

Our implant is an epiretinal (that is, the retisalface is the site of stimulation) prosthesis thaludes a receiv
coil (antenna), electronics, and an electrode attag implanted in and around the eye. The ahay 60 platinum gr:
electrodes arranged in a 6x10 grid. Each electi®@00 um (0.008”)n diameter. The array covers about 20° of vi
field (diagonally). The flexible polymer thifitm electrode array, which follows the curvaturfetloe retina, is attached
the retina over the macula with a retinal tack. €kraocular portion of the Argus Il Implant is securedthe eye b
means of a scleral band and sutures.

Electronics case

RN

Electrode array

Receiver coil

Figure 1: Schematic of Argus Il implant as implal Figure 2: Electrode array. Current version con
(surgical implantation is typically performed int® 4 60 platinum gray electrodes
hours)

Figure 3: Argus Il implant.
5




Externals

The external equipment consists of a pair of glass®d a video processing unit or VPU. The glasselside
miniature video camera and a transmitter coil. Ahgus 1l Clinician Programming Kit is used to pragr the Argus
System stimulation parameters and video processirajegies for each patient. The software provigeslules fo
electrode control, permitting the clinicians to gr@m the amplitude, pulseith, and frequency of the stimulati
waveform of each electrode.

Figure 4: External Components of the Argus Il Syste

How it works

In a healthy eye, the photoreceptors (rods andsjome the retina convert light into tiny electrogtieal impulse
that are sent through the optic nerve and to thmpwhere they are decoded into images. If thegrboeptors no long
function correctly (as in RP and AMD), the firségtin this process is disrupted and the visuaksystannot transfor
light into images, causing blindness. The ArguSyktem is designed to bypass damaged photorecgitogether ar
provides reatime visual information to blind patients. The naitire video camera captures a scene and the \sdaw
to the small VPU where it is processed and transéor into instructions that are sent back to thessgla. The:
instructions are transmitted wirelessly to the negrecoil in the implant. The signals are then genthe electrode arre
which emits small pulses of electricity. These paldbypass the damaged photoreceptors and stinthiatestinas
remaining cells, which transmit the visual inforinatalong the optic nerve to the brain. This precissintended
create the perception of patterns of light whictigmds can learn to interpret as real-time visutgyns.

-4 4

,p
Figure 5: The patient perceives patterns of lighated by electrical stimulation.

Long-Term Reliability

The Argus Il System has been extensively testaieatomponent, sulssembly, and system levels for long t
reliability. The hermetic electronics case has bdemonstrated to prevent moisture accumulatiordéngiie device f
many years. The Argus Il implant is specified tstla minimum of five years, however, in vitro teatsl actual clinici
data suggest the device should last much longeduetion implants have reached more than ten yafdifetime use i
accelerated in vitro testing and more than sevansyase in real time in patients under active datmn and normal u:
conditions.




Our Research and Development
Our research and development staff is focused @nawing the level of vision that the Argus Il Systean provid

to blind patients and adapting the technology tp laebroader audience of blind individuals. A pantiof the procee:
from our IPO will go toward supporting the reseaacid development efforts described below.

Increasing Resolution

We believe that increasing the resolution of thsteay should enhance the user experience, whichdwpateas
the value and benefits of the technology to théepatWe believe that we will be able to incredse $ystem resolutic

by:

» Developing enhanced image processing: Through eeldaimage processing, including contrast enhanct
and electronic ‘zoom'gne patient so far tested has achieved 20/200 lésieh as measured by a grating ac
test.13

e Creating multiple virtual electrodes: we believe eam use software to electronically create a nurobeirtual
electrodes between the physical ones in the Ardguslectrode array. This development could potely!
enhance the resolution of existing devices by ntlbam one order of magnitude. Although similar appt®
have been successful in other neural stimulatbis approach has not yet been tested clinicallthenretina.

We expect to spend a portion of the proceeds redefrom our IPO over the next 24 months on increg
resolution of and other performance enhancing iwmgments to the Argus Il system.

Cortical Stimulator Orion |

Developing a cortical stimulator is central to atirategy of maintaining our world leadership intoeisig sight t
those who are blind. There are different disedsatsdamage the optic nerve or impair the total fioning of the retin:
We believe that a cortical stimulator will permgé to bypass the eye and the optic nerve, therdtwyial treatment for
wider variety of disease-related blindness.

Research described in 1968 reported that it wasilplesfor a blind subject to experience light thbuyzhosphene
(appearance of light) when the visual cortical oeg{surface) of the brain was electronically stiatetl —just as th
Argus Il System does in the ey .Functional vision corresponding to visual acuitigsto 20/1200 was reported in
early 2000s, and two subjects were reported to laapeototype of a functional prosthesis implantedrhore than 2
years without infections or other severe medicactiens.1® Though these human experiments demonstrated pf
principle, no reliable implantable neurostimulatgth a large number of electrodes was availabl®teefve develope
and introduced the Argus Il System.

By implementing relatively minor modifications tbet Argus Il technology, we believe that the Oriomidua
prosthesis can be implanted directly on the surfsicthe brain in the visual cortex and may be ahlecessfully t
restore some functional vision in almost all casédlisease related blindness. Our small electronase will b
implanted under the scalp and the electronic aplaged in the visual cortex region of the braintrAnsmitter co
similar to the one in current production will sepdwer and signals to the implanted device. We ptaplace oL
electrode array against the medial surface of thigal cortex.

We anticipate that many of the challenges that meentered and solved in the process of develapiagirgus |
System are largely the same challenges in devaopiproduct intended for enabling some functionsiom throug!
directly stimulating the brain. For example, a retbmplant with a large number of electrodes isuagl for a cortical ¢
retinal visual prosthesis. We believe the knowledgd technology gained in the development of thguérll Syster
will contribute to accelerating the developmenaafortical stimulator directed at treating blindnes

We can also leverage public information learnednfrmther electrical stimulation implants that areA=Bpprove:
for use in the brain such as Medtronic’s Activaplbeain stimulator for Parkinsasy’ Essential Tremor and Dystonia
more recently

13 Sahel JA, Mohan8aid S, Stanga PE, Caspi A, Greenberg RJ. AcubodstiMancing the maximum acuity of
Argus Il Retinal Prosthesis System. IOVS 2013 ME889. ARVO E-Abstract.

14 Brindley, G.S. and W.S. Lewin, The sensatijoregluced by electrical stimulation of the visuattes. J Physiolog
1968. 196(2): p. 479-93.

15 Dobelle, W.H. Atrtificial vision for the blind by emecting a television camera to the visual coeAIO J 2000;46:3-9.
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NeuroPac’'s RNS © brain stimulator for epilepsy. Furthermore, we eehi that our specific experience obtail
regulatory approval for these types of devicehaWnited States and other regions will prove tdéipful in our effor
to expand and get new products, such as Oriorubl/jzrosthesis, approved throughout the world.

A: Placement of array against the medial surfadh@fvisual cortex. Array is in blue, the electancapsule in da
gray and the receiver colil in light gray on theeasigurface of the skull.

Clinical Trials

Second Sight completed a prearket clinical trial of the Argus Il System andafrom this trial supported both 1
FDA (US) and CE Mark (EU) approval of the Argusdvice. Second Sight is currently conducting poatket studie
of the Argus Il System to continue to collect deggarding the longerm safety and benefit of the Argus Il Systel
patients with severe to profound RP/outer retiregjetheration. We began recruitment for a study ppeu expandin
the indications for use of the Argus Il System tgeARelated Macular Degeneration (AMD) in the fourtrager 2014
and we plan to begin implants in the first hal26fL5. We are planning to begin a feasibility stofiyhe Orion | visu¢
cortical prosthesis in the fourth quarter of 2016.

Pre-market Clinical Trial of the Argus Il Systenn Retinitis Pigmentosa/Outer Retinal Degeneration

The Argus Il System, indicated for patients witlvese to profound outer retinal degeneration (lichite RP in th
United States), was studied in a clinical trial 8 subjects in the U.S and EU. The study is regidtea
www.clinicaltrials.gownder study ID NCT00407602. The study began in 20i¥ as of January 2015, there were
180 subject-years in the clinical trial. As partpoistmarket surveillance, this study is continuing areimtend to follov
subjects for a total of ten years each.

Data collected in this trial demonstrated that Alngus 11 System has a reasonable safety profileafoophthalmi
device that requires vitreoretinal surgery to implarhere were no unexpected adverse events. Tis coonmor
serious adverse events were conjunctival erosibigdence, hypotony (low eye pressure), endophttialfmfection ir
the eye), retinal tear or detachment, anthoking. It was also demonstrated that the devécele safely removed: ¢
implant, including the retinal tack, was safely kexped to resolve an adverse event, and threeatgtinks were safe
removed during elective revision surgeries to rémrsarrays. All adverse events were treatabldwstandard practic
utilized by ophthalmologists. In general, thesergsalid not adversely affect performance with thgus Il System1€
Furthermore, since approval, we have observed eedse in the rate of adverse events, most likelyuinview due t
increased surgical experience with the technolégy.

The Argus Il System provides visual informationttban range, depending on the patient, from ligttection ti
form detection. A sulstudy of Argus Il System clinical trial patientsndenstrated that 72% of patients could idel
closed set letters, and a subgroup of six patierds able to consistently read letters of reduced, she smalle
measuring 0.9 cm (1.7°)

16 Sponsor Executive Summary, FDA Ophthalmic Dewi Advisory Panel, September 28, 2
(http://ivww.fda.gov/AdvisoryCommittees/Calendar/tB¥2582.htm).

17 Humayun, M.S., da Cruz L., Dagnelie G., StaRfa Ho AC, Greenberg RJ, Birch DG, Duncan JL, 53he An
update on the Argus Il epiretinal implant. IOVS 20May; 5968. ARVO E-Abstract.
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at 30 cm and four patients correctly identifiedalmarsed two-, three- and four-letter wofd®atients are able to
this visual information to perform functional taglssich as, locating windows and doors, followimge§ in a cross wall
to allow them to feel more connected with otheos @xample, seeing when a person approaches theresr someor
walks away), and to simply enjoy visual perceptamain (such as, seeing the changing light levela @iV, trackin
groups of players as they move around the fielghaathletic event and being able to locate the mdeor people wit
bare or no light perception, even limited restamaif vision can make a significant differencehiait lives.”

In the clinical trial, the Argus Il System providedl 30 subjects with benefit as measured by lightrast visui
function tests. The degree of benefit varied frambject to subject. The Argus Il System was alsce abl provid:
subjects with clinical benefit as measured by dbjebty-scored functional vision tests. Subjects performeter witt
the Argus Il system on vs. off on orientation andbitity tests (finding a door and following a linepd on function:i
vision tasks (sorting white, black and grey sodkdpwing an outdoor sidewalk; and determining ttieection of i
person walking by)?

An assessment of Argus Il System subjefiisctional vision in and around their home by inelegent, certifie
low-vision rehabilitation specialists was also perfotmehe assessment was called the Functional tisiwn Observe
Rated Assessment, or FLORAIn no cases, did the low vision specialists refimat the Argus Il System had a nega
impact on subjects. In 77% of cases, low visiorcEdists determined that the subject was receiyorghad received
one time) functional vision and/or well-being beéhdéfom the Argus Il Systen?” The results from this clinical tri
demonstrated that the Argus Il System provided fitsrfer these blind subjects in terms of visuatdtion (how the ey
works), functional vision (performance in visiorated activities), and webeing. The study also demonstrated tha
Argus Il System does not pose an unacceptabletoigitind patients with severe to profound RP witrébor no ligt
perception in both eyes. In 2012, after an in deptiiew of the clinical trial data, a 22 person {ting) FDA-convene
panel of experts voted unanimously that the benefithe Argus Il System outweighed the risks.

Post-Market Clinical Trials

Following CE Mark and FDA approval for the Argus3ystem, Second Sight is conducting two poatket studie
of the device (one in EU and one in the US) toemtliadditional longerm data on the use of the Argus Il Systel
patients with severe to profound outer retinal eegation (or RP in the United States). Postrket studies are typica
conditions of market approval for medical devices.

In the United States, the study is designed tolebBosubjects and will follow each subject fordiyears. Adver:
events, visual function, and functional vision data being collected for all study participantsrdiment began i
February 2014 and seven subjects have been enrakedf January 31, 2015. The study is registere
www.clinicaltrials.gov under study ID NCT01860092.

In Europe, Second Sight is conducting a poatket study that is designed to enroll 45 subjantswill follow eacl
subject for three years. Adverse events, visuattfan, and functional vision data are being coklecfor all stud
participants. Enrollment began in December 20113hdubjects have been enrolled as of January®Bb. Z'he stud
is registered at www.clinicaltrials.gov under stuByNCT01490827.

In France, Second Sight was selected to receiv@rtiéForfait Innovation” (nnovation Bundle Payment) from 1
Ministry of Health, which is a special funding foreakthrough procedures to be introduced intoadinpractice. As pe
of this program Second Sight is conducting a paetket study in France which will enroll 18 subjeatsd follow ther
for two years. Enrollment began in November 2044 2 subjects have been enrolled as of Januarg@%. The stuc
is registered at www.clinicaltrials.gov under stuByNCT02303288.

Pre-market Clinical Trial of the Argus Il Systemn Age-Related Macular Degeneration

We have begun recruitment in a pilot study of thgyus Il System for use in patients with agéted macul
degeneration, or AMD. In this study, the Argus Wsfem is being used in its current RP configuratimithout an'
significant modifications. We will be enrolling fvsubjects in the pilot study who have centrabvidoss due to dry AMI
the subjects will be followed for three years. Bhedy

18 da Cruz L, Coley BF, Dorn J, et al. The Arguspiretinal prosthesis system allows letter anatdvreading ar
long-term function in patients with profound visitwss. Br J Ophthalmology 2013;97:632-6.
19 Sponsor Executive Summary, FDA Ophthalmic PesiAdvisory Panel, September 28, 2012.
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will be conducted at a single center in the UK. T8tedy is registered at www.clinicaltrials.gov undstudy IC
NCTO02227498. Recruitment for this study began @c@&@nber 2014 and we plan to begin implanting instiey in th
first half of 2015.

Assuming the early results from this pilot studg @ositive, we intend to apply for approval to cacida large
study of AMD (both wet and dry) in the United S&atnd EU in late 2015. This larger study, whichaméicipate wil
begin in early 2016, will be used to support efax obtain regulatory approval to expand the ldbethe Argus |
System to include AMD in its indications for usehel study would also be used to support efforts ltaic
reimbursement in the United States and EU forekfsanded indication for use. However, there candassurance tt
this pilot study will be successful, and furthesgarch and development may be needed.

Future Clinical Trials

Cortical Prosthesis

Following completion of the development effort agated with the Orion I, including verification andlidation o
the design, we intend to conduct a feasibility ickh trial to assess the safety and benefit of degice in blint
individuals. We expect that this feasibility studill begin in 2016.

Our Commercialization Plan

We launched the Argus Il System in Italy and Geryarlate 2011. We have, since early in 2012, #soched th
Argus Il System in France, the UK, the Netherlar@fsgin and Saudi Arabia. In 2013, the Argus Il 8ysteceived FD.
approval, and the product was launched in the URaimuary 2014, after receiving a required FCC Goaftquipmer
Authorization late in 2013. Also in 2014, an inigatorsponsored study in Toronto, Canada has resultéaanunit
sales to that Toronto center. We obtained apprfmrahe Argus Il System from Health Canada atehd of 2014 ar
we intend to begin commercializing the device witllianada during 2015. In this early stage of censialization, w
focused on a controlled launch to ensure adeqeatéce to the centers and to integrate new knovdeghjned so as
make necessary adjustments to our products anecegrin the following larger commercial launch. \&l@rently ar
poised for a broader launch phase, where the tedtmill be made available to a larger populatibrel@ible patients
We expect to use up to $4 million of the proceedsmfour IPO over the next 18 months to expand tmensercial rol
out of the Argus Il System.

Our successful commercialization of this technol@nd therapy is dependent on implementing our saife
marketing strategy, and obtaining reimbursemetti@fArgus 1l System by payers.

Sales Strategy

During our commercial launch, we are employing at€es of Excellence sales strategy and deployiegAtigus |
System at prominent and reputable eye clinics. W&We this strategy represents an efficient useurfcapital afte
giving consideration to the following factors:

e The size of the RP patient population.

» The complexity of the technology, surgery, andttremt paradigm.

e The cost of selecting, qualifying, training and gogiing new centers.

When selecting new sites, we focus on high quaigith providers utilizing the following consideaais:
»  Geographic desirability,

e Facility and Surgeon skill and reputation,

» Access to patients,

* Regulatory pathway, and

» Reimbursement environment from government agemiesntractors and third party insurers.
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In the United States and Canada, as of Januar®35b, we have 11 centers that have implanted thesAH retina
prosthesis. Additionally, we have 18 other centbeg have been selected as potential implantingecerand that a
somewhere in the process of becoming active ceme2815. We anticipate opening other new centersubseque
years. We believe that we will be able to servedbmmestic RP market by having abou-80 implanting centers acrc
the US.

In Europe and the Middle East, we currently haveders that actively are implanting and/or regrgipatients t
schedule their Argus 1l retinal prosthesis surgefx in Germany, three in France, one in Saudibf&, and two i
Italy). Additionally, we have 15 other centers tlaae either preparing to implant patients or ar¢him qualificatiol
process. We intend to continue recruiting additiaeaters in 2015 to yield further active center2016. We anticipa
that annual new center recruitment, in subsequeatsywill prove to be an important driver of ouplant and revent
growth in foreign markets. We believe that we Wil able to serve the European markets for RP bingabout 100-
120 centers across Europe.

To date, we have employed direct sales to servicéngial markets during our controlled launch pbaWe believe v
can more efficiently support centers that are kedat distances from our US and European headgudayesecurin
distributors in several key markets in order toa@our reach of client marketing and support. de dve have appoint
distributors in Spain and Turkey. We expect that distributors will commit to providing supportrsies that includ
marketing, market access, reimbursement, salesemite and also commit to annual minimum quastiied volum
targets depending on their territories.

To date, we have not faced traditional sales chgéle in any of our markets, largely due to theentty unme
clinical need and the lack of any other approvedadeor competitive treatment for RP caused blisgn®ue to pendit
reimbursement approvals in the United States, ndacyors and facilities have expressed interestaniging the Argu
Il System for their patients but have been unabldd so. We have over 1,700 potential patients wéttified contac
information in a database as a result of mediaregesand news of awards that we have receivedp@&tignt pipelin
has over 60 US patients deemed currently eligiglartplanting physicians and awaiting reimbursensrthorization t
be implanted. No assurance can be provided thalhedle reimbursement authorizations will be reakimewhen thes
patients might be implanted. Please see ‘Reimbwgaérhelow.

Due to the high cost of the system, government baisement (coding, coverage, and payment) is parafritc
being able to provide this device to our patieRtiease see ‘Reimbursemebglow. We anticipate that our primi
challenges in pursuing and implementing sales &sffaill be to maintain a growing patient pipelindiile expandin
reimbursement coverage.

Marketing Strategy

To date, and for the foreseeable future, our manetfforts have been primarily focused on prommptioth ou
brand (for both the product and the company) andaising awareness amongst and educating certajettgroup
which include the following:

e Potential patients,
» Potential implanting physicians and medical centansl
« Potential referring physicians (general practitisnephthalmologists, optometrists, and low-visipecialists).

To achieve these objectives we have employed aahixarketing plans and approaches which includedia
relations, trade and professional show attendaexkibition, and podium presence, sponsoring mediyahposic
conducting regional education sessions, partnewith patient advocacy groups focused on blindness$ ®etina
degeneration, and a limited amount of advertisiMg employ two inhouse marketing professionals currently a
number of specialized consultants.

Reimbursement

Reimbursement, which is third party coverage angmemt for health care services rendered to patiéey
government and private insurance providers, vaigsificantly in form and function across countries

United States

In the US, hospitals or ambulatory surgery centkn®wn as ASCs, are the primary purchasers of tigug\ll
System. Hospitals, ASCs and physicians bill thedty payers, including Medicare, Medicare Advaptagd privat
payers for costs
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associated with providing the services and acquitfie Argus Il System. Regardless of age, Medipavgides covera(
to the blind simply on the basis of their disakilitVhile the majority of patients for the ArgusSystem are insured
Medicare or Medicare Advantage plans, Medicare do¢surrently universally reimburse for the ArguSystem

In order to have adequate reimbursement for dedaoesservices, we are required to obtain codinger@me, an
payment. Additionally, the required codes and paytmwary based on the site of service such as iiemiahospital, out-
patient hospital, ASC, or physician’s office. Mastgus Il System procedures are performed on anpatient basi:
while a small number may be performed in apatient setting. We have obtained required coddsgpagment (for bot
the procedure and device) from the national offit®edicare in both settings of care.

Reimbursement in the U.S. consists of three basigponents: “coding, payment and coverage.”

Coding

Providers use systems of codes to communicate thighpayer the patient conditions and diagnosesjices
provided, procedures performed, and devices usetrett the patient. These codes include Americardids
Association Current Procedural Terminology (CPTiesy Healthcare Common Procedure Coding System Q¥
codes, and International Classification of Dised#bsRevision (ICD-9) codes.

Second Sight has obtained the required coding ftemters for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CM3) @RT
including:

. CPT code for the retinal implantation procedure TGPLOOT), which is utilized by physicians, hosg
outpatient departments and ambulatory surgery cente

« HCPCS Code specific to the Argus Il retinal prosteémplant device (and external components) (HCEGt
C1841) which is utilized by hospital outpatient dements and ambulatory surgery centers; and

» ICD-9 procedure code for the retinal implantationgedure (ICD9 code 14.81), which is utilized by hosg
inpatient departments.

Payment

CMS has established specific Medicare payment fatebe implantation procedure in the hospitalatient setting
hospital outpatient setting and ambulatory surgesyter setting. In addition, Second Sight has baertessful i
obtaining additional transitional pafizrough payment for the Argus Il retinal prosthesisvice (and exterr
components) which is reimbursed to the hospitabatignt department or ambulatory surgery centernlé\the majority
of these procedures are likely to be performed imoapital outpatient setting, Second Sight has als@mined ne
technology addasn payment which provides additional reimbursenifethie procedure is performed on an inpatient b
We expect that specific physician payment rated bél established when CPT 0100T is formally valimsd the
American Medical Association. Until that time, rdaarsement to physicians is based on charges selohtittthe payer.

Coverage

Coverage is the process, criteria, and policy usegayers (insurers) to determine whether to payafonedice
procedure or product. Payers make decisions onrageefor a procedure or service based on a numbéactors
including medical necessity, effectiveness, an¢aues. We anticipate that the majority of patieat®iving the Argt
Il retinal prosthesis will be insured by Medicangedto age or the nature of their disability. Medécasures over ¢
million beneficiaries for items and services tha ‘@aeasonable and necessary for the diagnosis ontegatof an illnes
or to improve the functioning of a malformed bodgmber”.2° These beneficiaries include people age 65 or «
people under age 65 with certain disabilities a@opte of all ages with end-stage renal disease.

Currently one regional Medicare Administrative Gawtor, or MAC, in the MidAtlantic region provides covera
for the Argus Il System. We are actively workingttwseven other MACs and Medicare Advantage Plansbtair
favorable coverage. Several commercial payers aadiddre Advantage Plans cover the Argus Il Systiéimerethroug!
formal policy or

20 Social Security Act 81862 (a)

12




on a case-bygase basis, including Health Net, Independence Eluess, AmeriHealth, Priority Health Medic
Advantage, BCBSS of Arkansas, AV Med, Medica, amotigers. Second Sight is actively engaging theediisg plan
to obtain favorable coverage for the Argus Il Sgsthrough either a formal coverage policy or orasesbyease basi
Although we expect an increasing number of payeegtee to cover the Argus Il System, there candbassurance tf
all other MACs, Medicare Advantage Plans or priyadgers will cover and reimburse our product ardptocedures
implant them in whole or in part in the future bat payment rates will be adequate.

Europe

After obtaining the regulatory approval (CE mank)Europe, innovative medical devices go throughagrhente
public reimbursement system across Europe. Mang&an countries use a Diagnosis Related Group, DR&milal
type reimbursement coding system for the lump saynment of inpatient medical procedures. Medical devices
generally included in the lump sum DRG paymentapply for the creation of a new reimbursement codew medici
device first needs to be in widespread use asogbarthospital medical procedure. Typically it ma&guire two or mot
years from application to obtain a new DRG codeofmon way for these medical devices to be madiahlain the
public healthcare setting, is through hospital aesle/ innovation budgets/other routes. Howeversdhmidgets are sm
in size, limited to a few hospitals, and quite idifift to access, thereby limiting patient accessew treatments.
address this problem, many countries in Europe kes&ted temporary reimbursement programs for iatiee medice
products to bridge the time to collect convincidigical and economic evidence to get a new DRG ctdhile thes
programs offer a reasonable opportunity for new in@doroducts to get faster reimbursement, theyehstvinger
requirements of clinical and economic evidence thay vary from country to country, leading to sladoption rates
reimbursement approvals. Such short-term reimbugséprograms, such as “NUB” in Germany, “Forfaitdwation”in
France, Local/Regional funding in Italy and “Cowggathrough Evaluationin England, can be generally groupet
“coverage with evidence” programs.

Second Sight achieved reimbursement for the Ardj®ystem in Germany in 2011 with a process dedit#d
innovative procedures referred to as NUB (Neue tdntchung und Behandlungsmethoden). This reimbunseorale
NUB is valid for one year in a specific number afspitals. Under the NUB program, each hospital tietgs th
payment for the procedure with the insurance corgsafior “additional costs associated with the iratdxe treatment,”
and in 2011 two hospitals managed to get a sustlgrfanding to start the first procedures. Sinc&2the fundin
was renewed five times and the number of hospithtaining funding increased from two to seven. Oher next fe\
years we expect our Argus |l therapy to be covenedier the standard payment system which would nisamlevic
would be reimbursed at all centers and the annagbtimation would no longer be necessary. In Jan2&ds wi
received renewal of our NUB status for an additiame year term.

In France, we were selected to receive the firstfdt Innovation” (nnovation Bundle Payment) from the Minis
of Health, which is a special funding for breakingb procedures to be introduced into clinical pcactFranc
commissioned this program for the first time in 20and to our knowledge the Argus Il System is ohenly twc
products that were selected for this funding aftgorous healthcare technology assessmentHaute authorité «
santé” French Health Technology Assessment authorityjhénlonger term, we expect Argus |l therapy tacbeere:
under the standard payment system (GHIMP system).

In ltaly the Argus Il System has been available¢hi@& Tuscany region since 2011 under a hospitatnedifunding
program. Beginning in 2015, it is also availabletlre Veneto region. We expect that the Argus llt&yswill be
available in several other regions as well undmilar funding programs. Patients across Italy thién have a possibili
of treatment in these centers with prior governnaggrovals required in some of these regions. Withé next sever
years, we expect the Argus Il System to be acdesadvoss Italy with funding from national or regé governments

The Argus Il System is going through a review psscender National Specialized Services programmigidhd, a
well as under other funding programs in other m@rkeross the EU and Middle East. We expect theid\tgSystem t
become eligible for reimbursement at the natiomalegional level for eligible patients during thexth several years
some of these markets.

A multi-market economic evaluation (Anil Vaidya,i&IBorgonovi, Rod S Taylor, Jo#dain Sahel, Stanisl¢
Rizzo, Paulo Eduardo Stanga, Amit Kukreja, Peteit®¥aBMC Ophthalmology 2014; 14: 49. Publishedioal201-
April 14. doi: 10.1186/1471-2415-14-49) conductedtiee Argus Il System affirms that the Argus Il &ys is a cost-
effective intervention compared to the usual cafeRE patients. The lifetime analysis ICER (IncremaérnCos
Effectiveness Ratio) for
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the Argus Il System falls below the published statievillingness to pay in EU. According to this assment, tt
Argus Il System treatment has a cost that we belisveasonably priced for a technology addressiraye populatic
such as retinitis pigmentosa.

Warranty

We generally provide a standard limited warrantytf@ Argus Il System covering replacement overfthiewing
periods after implant:

» three years on implanted epiretinal prosthesis
e two years on external components other than bastamd chargers, and
« three months on batteries and chargers.

Based on our experience to date, the Argus Il 8ydtas proven to be a reliable device generallyoperihg a:
intended. We have accrued warranty expense of $88%s of December 31, 2014, which we believe tadeguate.

Our Competition

The US life sciences industry is highly competitimad wellpositioned for future growth. The treatment
blindness varies based on the cause; generallg Hrerseven categories of treatments in developfoetie treatmel
of blindness from retinal disease:

* Retinal Prostheses: aimed at giving more visudltalido a blind patient via implanting a device time eye t
stimulate remaining retina cells. Electrical netiroslation technology has seen growing use in regears fo
numerous applications— such as chronic pain, Psokis, Essential tremor, Epilepsy, and others.

» Transplants: transplanting retinal tissue to stateiremaining retina cells.

e Genetics and Gene Therapy: involves identifyingecgic gene that is causing retinal problems @hame ove
120 for retinitis pigmentosa alone) resulting isual impairments and blindness; and inserting hgalene
into an individual’s cells using a virus to trelae tdiseases.

» Stem Cells: generally involves implanting immattegnal support cells aimed at slowing retinal degation.

. Optogenetics Therapy: aimed at slowing down, rémgrsand/or eliminating the process by wt
photoreceptors in the eye are compromised. Thigplyealso requires infecting the patientells with a viru:
However, instead of fixing a gene defect, this apph would cause cells within the eye to becomkt
sensitive. Animal work has shown that these cealisrept sensitive enough to respond to ambient, ligitthi:
approach currently also requires a light amplifietside the body to increase light delivered tordima.

*  Nutritional Therapy: involves diets or supplemetiitat are thought to prevent or slow the progresgisibn
loss.

. Implantable Telescope: VisionCare, Ophthalmic Tedbgies, Inc. offers an FDA approved implanti
minature telescope for AMD, a magnifying devicettigimplanted in the eye. The VisonCare telescis
approved for use in patients with severe to profovision impairment (best corrected visual acuit@160 tc
20/800) due to dry AMD.

Projects in these six areas are still undergoittgeeanimal or early clinical trials; some, likengetherapy, stem ¢
therapy and optogenetics remain highly speculdtivenost conditions. We believe that it is currgnthlikely that gen
therapy and stem cell therapy will prove effeciivend stage RP patients in the near term.

In the area of retinal prosthetics, there are abemof competing efforts underway. We believe thast, if not al
of these efforts, are not as advanced as the AllgBgstem in terms of commercialization, especiallythe Unite:
States.

Commercial efforts by others include:

» Retina Implant AG: A German company that is devielgpgthe Alpha IMS, a wireless subtinal implant usin
the image from the eyg’'own optical system Retina Implant AG has a CEknaad to our knowledge expe
to seek commercialization of its product during 201 EU. To our knowledge, Retina Implant has nuyleec
for or obtained FDA approval to begin a clinicatin the US as of the date of this report.
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»  Pixium Vision S.A.: A French company that is deyatg the IRIS (Intelligent Retinal Implant Systethat is
surgically placed into the eye and attached tostivéace of the retina. Similar to our Argus Il taology, it
system uses a camera and a wireless transmitteanPis reported to be in clinical studies with 8&and w
believe plans to submit a CE mark application in®286 To our knowledge, Pixium Vision has not appliec
or obtained FDA approval to begin a clinical tiilathe US as of the date of this report.

. NanoRetina Inc., a company based in Israel, andrabwther early stage companies are reported e
developed intellectual property or technology theaty improve retinal prostheses in the future, lubti
knowledge none of these efforts has resulted inrapteted system that has been tested clinicallyaitent:
anywhere.

Academic entities are also working on vision reésgrimplants. To our knowledge these include Bio¥ision
Australia (an early prototype device has been apesl and to our knowledge implanted in three husanjects’
Boston Retinal Implant project (preclinical phas@yd Stanford University (preclinical). Of these jpats, we believ
most have not yet demonstrated a working implanty one has begun lorigrm clinical work in humans, and to
knowledge none has received FDA approval to belgiical trials in the US.

No other device to our knowledge has been sucdessfong-term human trials, currently making the Argu
System the sole implant being marketed for treaf®®y in the US, EU, and Saudi Arabia. We anticiphtet ou
identified competitors are unlikely to obtain siggant commercial traction in EU (even should thadgtain CE Marks
until they have developed in depth clinical dataveing the reliability, effectiveness, and safetytlodir devices. Bas:
on current FDA guidance for retinal prosthesesggtimate any other competitor is at a minimum fiears away froi
obtaining FDA approval in the US.

Government Regulations

The Argus Il System is regulated within the catggof medical devices. Medical device products areject tc
rigorous FDA and other governmental agency regudatiin the United States and as well as in foreigantries
Noncompliance with applicable requirements can Itesu import detentions, fines, civil penalties,junctions
suspensions or losses of regulatory approvalsearahces, recall or seizure of products, operaéagictions, denial «
export applications, governmental prohibitions erieeing into supply contracts, and criminal prosiecu Failure ti
obtain regulatory approvals or the restriction,pgunsion or revocation of regulatory approvals eachnces, as well
any other failure to comply with regulatory requirents, would have a material adverse effect orbasimess, financi
condition and results of operations.

The FDA regulates, among other things, the clinteating, design, manufacture, labeling, packagmatketing
distribution, post-market surveillance, and reckegping for these products to ensure that medizalyzts distribute
in the United States are safe and effective far theended uses.

In the United States, the Argus Il System is cfassias a Class Ill device, which is reserved ffa-$ustaining
life-supporting and implantable devices. The most compadh to market approval for Class Il devicesha US is th
PreMarket Approval (PMA) process. To obtain PMA appabvhe manufacturer must demonstrate that a dévisaft
and effective for its intended use. Class Il desiintended for rare patient populations may atsagproved under
alternative regulatory pathway, called the Humai@taDevice Exemption (HDE). To utilize the HDE apyal proces:
a device must be designated a Humanitarian UsecBeiHUD). To qualify as a humanitarian use devibe, devic
must be used to treat or diagnose a disease oitioonthat manifests itself in fewer than 4,000iinduals per year i
the United States, and there must be no alterntta¢ments available in the United States. Toinb#®E approval, th
manufacturer is required to demonstrate that acedsisafe and provides a probable benefit fantended use.

Significant changes to existing products and newadpcts, such as the cortical stimulation to beizeil by thi
Orion | visual prosthesis, must be approved byRBé prior to distribution. Modifications or enhamments that cou
significantly affect the safety or effectivenesstioé device or that constitute a major change ¢oittended use of t
device will require new PMA or HDE application aagproval. Other changes may require a supplemesther chanc
notification that must be reviewed and approvedtliy FDA. Modified devices for which a new PMA or H
application, supplement or notification is requihnot be distributed until the application is@wed by the FDA. A
adverse determination or a request for additiom@rination could delay the market introduction efanproducts, sut
as Orion | visual prosthesis, which could have

21 http://www.lerevenu.com/bourse/biotechs-et-meltiéd-actualite-du-secteur/201405285385f194c68%d/mi-vision-
interview-du-pdg-bernard-gilly
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a material adverse effect on our business, finhmciadition and results of operations. We may netable to obta
PMA or HDE approval in a timely manner, if at d&r Orion | visual prosthesis or any future devicesnodifications t
Orion | visual prosthesis or such devices for whighmay submit a PMA or HDE application.

PMA and HDE applications must contain valid sciénvidence to support the safety and effectiver{es probabl
benefit for an HDE) of the device, which includbs tesults of clinical trials, all relevant benelsts, and laboratory a
animal studies. The application must also contafmmaplete description of the device and its comptseas well as
detailed description of the methods, facilities ahtrols used for its manufacture, including, vehappropriate, tt
method of sterilization and its assurance. In @fithe application must include proposed labeladyertising literatu
and any required training methods.

If human clinical trials of a device are requirad gonnection with an application and the devicesgnés
significant risk, the sponsor of the trial is remui to file an application for an Investigationagd\vice Exemption (IDE
before beginning human clinical trials. Usuallye tmanufacturer or distributor of the device is $pensor of the trie
The IDE application must be supported by data,cip including the results of animal and laborgttesting, and
description of how the device will be manufacturddhe application is reviewed and approved by F¥A and one ¢
more appropriate Institutional Review Boards (IRBsuman clinical trials may begin at a specifiednber o
investigational sites with a specified number ofigrgs. If the device presents a nsignificant risk to the patient,
sponsor may begin clinical trials after obtainimgpeoval for the study by one or more appropriasditational reviev
boards, but FDA approval for the commencement efstindy is not required. Sponsors of clinical riate permitted
sell those devices distributed in the course of ghely if the compensation received does not extkedcosts ¢
manufacture, research, development and handlingugplement for an Investigational Device Exemptionst b
submitted to and approved by the FDA before a smons an investigator may make a significant chatmehe
investigational plan that may affect the plan’estific soundness or the rights, safety or weltd#reuman subjects.

Upon receipt of a PMA or HDE application, the FDAkes a threshold determination as to whether thécagior
is sufficiently complete to permit a substantiveiesv. If the FDA makes this determination, it walécept the applicatis
for filing. Once the submission is accepted foin§jl the FDA begins an idepth review of the application. An FI
review of a PMA application generally takes onévio years from the date the application is accefuaediling; review
of an HDE application can be shorter than a PMAwENer, this review period is often significantlytemded b
requests for more information or clarification ofarmation already provided in the submission. Dgrthe revie\
period, the submission may be sent to an Fehkected scientific advisory panel composed of joihgtss and scientis
with expertise in the particular field. The FDA egiific advisory panel issues a recommendatiornéoRDA that ma
include conditions for approval. The FDA is not hdiby the recommendations of the advisory panekard the end «
the PMA or HDE application review process, the F#l conduct an inspection of the manufactusefacilities tc
ensure that the facilities are in compliance wipiplecable good manufacturing practice. If the FD/Aleations of bot
the PMA/HDE application and the manufacturing fitiel are favorable, the FDA will issue a lettehidletter usuall
contains a number of conditions, which must be medrder to secure final approval of the applicatigvhen thos
conditions have been fulfilled to the satisfactiohthe FDA, the agency will issue an approval let@thorizing
commercial marketing of the device for specifiedidgations and intended uses.

The PMA/HDE application review process can be egpen uncertain and lengthy. A number of devicesafhich
PMA/HDE approval has been sought have never bepnoeged for marketing. The FDA may also determinat
additional clinical trials are necessary, in whietse the approval may be significantly delayed evtribls are conduct
and data is submitted in an amendment to the PMA/Hdpplication. Modifications to the design, labglio:
manufacturing process of a device that has recdAd/HDE approval may require the FDA to approve@ement
or new applications. Supplements to a PMA/HDE aapion often require the submission of additiomdébimation o
the same type required for an initial premarketrapgl, to support the proposed change from theywrbdovered by tt
original application. The FDA generally does noll éar an advisory panel review for PMA/HDE supplents, thoug
applicants may request one. If any PMAs/HDEs agrired for our products, we may not be able to nieetFDA's
requirements or we may not receive any necessgmyoeals. Failure to comply with regulatory requimts or t
receive any necessary approvals would have a rabtetverse effect on our business, financial candiand results «
operations.

Regulatory approvals, if granted, may include digant labeling limitations and limitations on tiredicated use
for which the product may be marketed. Conditiohsajpproval for a PMA/HDE application also often lunde the
requirement to conduct a pastarket study or studies. In addition, to obtainutatpry approvals and clearances,
FDA and some foreign regulatory authorities impaosemerous other requirements with which medical chk
manufacturers must comply. FDA enforcement politcictty prohibits the marketing of approved medickvices fo
unapproved uses. Any products we manufacture tiitise under FDA clearances or approvals are stibhjepervasiv
and continuing regulation by the FDA.
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The FDA also requires us to provide it with infotina on death and serious injuries alleged to Haeen associat
with the use of our products, as well as any malions that would likely cause or contribute totthear serious injury.

The FDA requires us to register as a medical deme@ufacturer and list our products. We are aldmesti tc
inspections by the FDA to confirm compliance withog manufacturing practice. These regulations regthat w:
manufacture our products and maintain documengsgrescribed manner with respect to manufactutesding, qualit
assurance and quality control activities.

We are also subject to a variety of other conttb& affect our business. Labeling and promotiaeiivities ar
subject to scrutiny by the FDA and, in some instahdy the Federal Trade Commission. The FDA dytigaforce:
regulations prohibiting marketing of products forapproved users. We are also subject, as are odugis, to a variety
state and local laws and regulations in thosesstatd localities where our products are or wilhisketed. Any applicak
state or local regulations may hinder our abilityntarket our products in those regions. Manufacduaee also subject
numerous federal, state and local laws relatingntdters such as safe working conditions, manufacfupractices
environmental protection, fire hazard control amspdsal of hazardous or potentially hazardous anbsts. We may |
required to incur significant costs to comply witiese laws and regulations now or in the futureséHaws or regulatio
may have a material adverse effect on our abdityd business.

International sales of our products are subjethéoregulatory requirements of each country in Whie market ot
products. The regulatory review process varies fomuantry to country. In EU, the European Union pasmulgate
rules that require medical products to affix the @B&rk, an international symbol of adherence to iualssuranc
standards and compliance with applicable Europeadiaal directives. Once the CE mark has been dppfied to
device, the manufacturer may commercially distebtite product in all countries that are membershef Europes
Union, and in several other countries that recagie CE Mark, such as Switzerland and Turkey. [8mid the US
once the device has received the CE mark, companée®quired to report certain serious adversatsyare required
conduct post-market surveillance, and in some c@maare required to register or list the products.

To obtain the CE Mark for the Argus Il System, werarequired to demonstrate compliance with seEuabpea
directives and standards, including the Active lamphble Medical Device Directive (AIMDD), and 1SGB485:200:
(“Medical devices, Quality management systems, Raduirements for regulatory purposesSpcond Sight contrax
with a European Notified Body, an organization tfetiews design documentation for our device arditaws annuall
to ensure compliance to the AIMDD directive and 8® 13485 standard. In addition, significant chemtp our devic
design, and new devices or new indications fortegsproducts, would need to be reviewed and apidvy thi
Notified Body, prior to allowing us to apply the @&ark to the new product. Losing the right to affie CE mark to ol
Argus Il device or any future products could havenaterial adverse effect on our business, finarmaldition an
results of operations.

In the EU, replacement of the existing Medical @evDirective and Active Implantable Medical Devid&ective
with new regulations have been proposed and arerumdiew by governing bodies in the EU. Two of ffrepose
changes that could have a significant impact onréview of Second Sight’ products by European Union regula
include: (1) requiring review of applications fagrtain high risk devices by an outside committelaictvis in addition t
review by the Notified Body; and (2) increasing tiequirements for clinical data that are used fpsut an applicatio
If the proposed changes are adopted into law,dhigd increase the cost and time required to okdpjproval for oL
products in EU.

We will be responsible for obtaining and maintainnegulatory approvals for our products. The ingbir failure
to comply with the varying regulations or the imipios of new regulations would materially adverselifect ou
business, financial condition and results of openast

Our Intellectual Property

Our success depends, partially, on our abilityrtitgrt our core technology and intellectual propefe rely on
combination of patents, patent applications, trealés) trade secrets, including kndww, license agreemer
confidentiality procedures, natisclosure agreements with third parties, emplajiselosure and invention assignr
agreements, and other contractual rights, to protgcproprietary rights.

As of March 1, 2015, we have:
* 96 pending US patent applications and provisioasmt applications

e 220 US granted patents
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» 76 pending foreign patent applications
» 88 foreign granted patents

Our issued patents expire between March 2018 artdb@c 2033. We cannot assure that any of our f
applications will result in the issuance of a patenwhether the examination process will requiseta narrow ot
claims. In addition, any patents may be contestied mvented, found unenforceable or invalid, ardmay not be ab
to prevent third parties from infringing them. Agntend to expand our international operations, paient portfolic
copyright, trademark and trade secret protectiop nud be available or may be limited in foreign otries.

Our international patents as of March 1, 2015 idelu
+ 50 Australia;

* 24 France, UK, and Germany;

e 1 France, UK, Germany and Switzerland;

e 1 UK, Germany and Switzerland;

e 9 Japan; and

+ 3 Canada.

We have focused on obtaining patents primarihen WS and EU, as we have identified these jurigdfistto be ot
primary markets. We believe that the significantedepment and regulatory costs and expense of cooiatiging ¢
product such as the Argus Il System will be a niatémpediment to any competitor who attempts taketa visue
prosthesis if excluded from these markets by neinggaccess to our intellectual property.

We actively seek to identify and protect our irgetlal property. We have a dual strategy of filogand obtainin
patents to block potential competitors, and filipgtents where we believe our technology would befulisn othe
products. Our patent portfolio covers many aspettsur implant device and its supporting equipméie have als
patented alternative intellectual property pathat o not cover our device, but could present ssiptes alternativ
implant solution to a competitor. However, thera t& no assurance that our pending patent applicatr any futut
patent applications will be approved or will not tfeallenged successfully by third parties, that essyed patents w
protect our technology or will not be challengedtbiyd parties, or that the patents of others wilt have an adver
effect on our ability to conduct our operations. &surance can be given that others will not indéeetly develop
similar or competing technology or design arouny patents that have been or may be issued to us.

Our Licenses and Agreements

We have exclusive world-wide royalbearing licenses on intellectual property relatethe Argus Il System fro
Johns Hopkins University and Duke University whisle entered into in October 2000, and from the DghEwpe
Institute (DEI) which we entered into in April 200Potal royalties we pay under these licensesmatlexceed 3.25%
our net revenue.

Johns Hopkins University and Duke University

Our license from Johns Hopkins covers two patents @ne patent application. The two patents incladeater
covering a system of wireless communication betwienexternal part and implanted part of an imgdnmedice
device, and a patent covering a stimulation patienoreferentially stimulate deeper retinal cellee patent applicatic
covers a system for fitting a visual prosthesisigsiisually evoked potentials. While the Johns Hoglpatents licens:
to us may present a significant impediment to aometitors selling in the US or European markétsy texpire i
2018. If the patent application does not issue patant, the license agreement will expire in 2@it8 the expiration ¢
the last patent covered by the license. If a pas=sutes on the patent application, the agreemdhtesininate with th
expiration of any patent issuing on that appligatizvhich likely will be in 2030. The license proes a maximui
royalty of 3% of net sales. The royalty rate isuggd by other royalties paid on the same product,isalso reduced
our meeting certain volume targets. The licensebesaterminated by Second Sight for any reasonalt be terminate
by Johns Hopkins University for breach not corrdatéthin 60 days of written notice.
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Doheny Eye Institute

The DEI license agreement includes 67 patents pplications for patents which are all oamed by Second Sic
and DEI. The patents cover a wide range of teclyiedp most of which relate to the Argus Il Systéta.a coewner o
the patents and patent applications, we have theerdusive right to use the technology with or with¢he licens
agreement. The license agreement pertains tosDéflare in the patents and patent applicationshwifiices Secor
Sight an exclusive license. The agreement continungs the last of the patents expire and involeggjoing join
research. We expect that the agreement will coatimitil the end of 2031 which is the current exjparadate of the la
patent based on a patent application filed undertireement. The agreement provides for a 0.5%tyoyanet sale:
The license may be terminated by breach not cadeeithin 30 days of written notice, or on insolegrof the licensee.

Grants

We and our partners have been successful at sgcainmumber of grants from the US federal governméenés:
grants support our research and development, amedihdive to our equity and do not need to be repditie
government, however, retains ‘March-In’ rights ionaection with these grants - a nexelusive right to practic
inventions developed from grant funding. Granteihesd by us to-date include:

* R24 EY012893 — Development/Testing of ArtificialtRes for the Blind, in the amount of $13,197,584,
« RO1 EY012893 — Research/Development of ArtificiatiRas for the Blind, in the amount of $12,917,718,

» RC3 EY020778 -Development and Testing of Low Vision Assessmenl3dor Retinal Prosthesis, Rok
Greenberg in the amount of $2,988,224, and

« R41 NS058244 — Hermetic Nanowire InterconnectdNfeural Prostheses, in the amount of $459,172.
Source: http://projectreporter.nih.gov/

In September 2014, we entered into a Joint ReseardDevelopment Agreement or JRDA with The Johogkths
University Applied Physics Laboratory or APL. THRJA awarded us a subcontract to conduct appliegares under
grant received by APL from the Mann Fund. Under IRDA, we have agreed to perform applied reseagghrding
integration of APL research into a visual prosthesistem. In October 2014 APL paid us $4.075 mniliio one lum
sum to conduct our portion of the research. The ARizludes a field limited exclusive license froniPA to us for th
life of any patents resulting from AP4’portion of the research. Under the JRDA we hayreeaa to collaborate wi
APL over a 36 month period to develop an improvielt® processing system that will enhance a nex¢mion visue
prosthesis. The APL portion of the research incdudeage processing hardware and software for alosthesis. |
exchange for the license, we issued 1,000 sharemiofommon stock to APL, have agreed to pay ARLpihter
prosecution costs, and to pay APL a royalty of @2 net sales of licensed products. The Mann Ruasl establishe
and largely funded more than 15 years ago by Alitetflann, our Chairman and largest shareholderasénrance ci
be given that the outcome of this research andldprent will prove successful.

We also intend to apply for future grants to hdfgeat research and development costs.

Our Manufacturing and Quality Assurance

We have a single manufacturing facility, locatecbat principal office in Sylmar, California. The maacturing
areas at this location are housed in a single imgiJdand include approximately 10,000 square fdetamtrollec
environment rooms (CERS) suitable for implant maotifring. At present less than half of this spackeing used fi
Argus Il implant production. At the same site apaces for assembling the external (mmyplantable) components
our system and for the labeling, receiving and @ihig, and stockroom functions. Finished goods atd &t this locatio
and at our contracted fulfillment partner in Europe

We rely on many suppliers to provide materials aad/iices necessary to produce and test our proddetsy o
these materials or services are currently provigledole source suppliers. In a number of instameesnaintain sol
source suppliers because our current purchasingnes do not warrant developing more than one seippWe expe:
to secure additional providers as our productiolumes increase. If we experience a loss of a sgipler befor
confirming an alternative, we risk possible disiops in our operations. We attempt to mitigate sbke source risk, t
among other things, increasing parts
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inventory as a partial hedge against interruptiongarts supply and by actively seeking to devedtiprnative suppl
sources before experiencing any such disruptions.

As of December 31, 2014 our manufacturing departrhad 42 employees and the quality assurance de@a
had an additional nine members. We operate a diily astd smaller swing shift, and at this staffinreyél we ca
manufacture up to 10 devices per month. To sufptute growth of the sales of the Argus Il Systewe, believe th:
the space available at the current facility whdlyfutilized and operating at two full shifts witirove sufficient to buil
and assemble approximately 100 devices per month.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we had 121 employeesudimgy approximately 51 in operations; 17 in sel
marketing and distribution; 37 in clinical and régory and research and development; and 16 in réstration. O
these employees, we employed 102 in the UniteceSttd 19 in Europe. We believe that the contirmuedess of o
business will depend, in part, on our ability traadt and retain qualified personnel, and we araroiited to developir
our people and providing them with opportunitiestmtribute to our growth and success. None ofetlegaployees
covered by a collective bargaining agreement, amdb@lieve our relationship with our employees isdyto excellent.

Available Information

Our website address is www.secondsight.com. Weenaailable free of charge through a link provideducl
website our Forms 10-K, 10-Q andk8as well as any amendments thereto. Such repoesavailable as soon
reasonably practicable after they are filed with Securities and Exchange Commission.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

The statements that are not historical facts corediin this Form 10-K are forwarkboking statements within ti
meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Refdkot of 1995. These statements reflect the cubvelef, expectation
or intent of our management and are subject to amvdlve certain risks and uncertainties. Many oédé risks an
uncertainties are outside of our control and aréfidilt for us to forecast or mitigate. An investrhén our commol
stock is speculative and involves a high degraeskf In addition to the risks described elsewhiaréhis Form 10K and
in certain of our other filings with the US Secigit and Exchange Commission, the following impartactors, amon
others, could cause our actual results to differtenally from those expressed or implied by us iy forwardiooking
statements contained herein or made elsewhere by tehalf of us. The risks described below arem@bnly risks w
face. If any of the events described in the folhwiisk factors actually occurs, or if additionabks and uncertaintie
later materialize, that are not presently knowrutoor that we currently deem immaterial, then ousihess, prospect
results of operations and financial condition coblkel materially adversely affected. In that evemd,ttading price of ou
common stock could decline, and you may lose glbor of your investment in our shares.

Risks Related to Our Dependence on the Argus |l 8ys

We depend on the success of our first commerciadurct, the Argus Il System, which received Europesmarket
clearance (CE Mark) in February 2011 and FDA appralin February 2013, in the United States for RPnd on the
regulatory approval of our current product and a medevice under development, the Orion | visual pressis (s
modified version of the Argus Il System), to treather diseases causing blindness, in the US andeotbountries,
which may never occur.

Our future success depends upon building a comaiexperation in the US and expanding growth in Baras wel
as entering additional markets to commercialize Agus Il System for both RP and AMD. We believe enpandet
growth will depend on the further development, tatpry approval and commercialization of the Origgroduct, whict
we anticipate can be used by nearly all profoutdityd individuals. If we fail to expand the usetb& Argus Il Syster
in a timely manner for other forms of retinal degeation in addition to RP, or to develop the Orloproduct anc
penetrate the available markets which those apjgitaare intended to serve, we may not be abéxpand our marke
or to grow our revenue, our stock values couldideand investors may lose money.

Our revenue from sales of Argus Il System is depentlupon the pricing and reimbursement guidelinedapted
in each country and if pricing and reimbursementvels are inadequate to achieve profitability our eyptions will
suffer.

Our financial success is dependent on our abititprice our products in a manner acceptable to Ipovent anc
private payers while still maintaining our profitangins. Numerous factors that may be beyond outralomay
ultimately impact our pricing of Argus Il System damletermine whether we are able to obtain reiminuesg or
reimbursement at adequate levels from governmemajrams and private insurance. If we are unablettain
reimbursement or our product is not adequately bansed, we will experience reduced sales, our igaelikely will be
adversely affected, and we may not become proétabl

Obtaining reimbursement approvals is time consupteguires substantial management attention, aegpensive
Our business will be materially adversely affectesve do not receive approval for reimbursementtte Argus Il
System under government programs and from privesierérs on a timely or satisfactory basis. Limitasi on coverag
could also be imposed at the local Medicare Adriaive Contractor level or by fiscal intermediarie the US and b
regional, or national funding agencies in Europar Business could be materially adversely affeitéde Medicare
program, local Medicare Administrative Contractorsfiscal intermediaries were to make such a ddtetion anc
deny, restrict or limit the reimbursement of ArguSystem. Similarly in Europe these governmental ather agencie
could deny, restrict or limit the reimbursementofus 1l System at the hospital, regional or nagidevel. Our busines
also could be adversely affected if retinal spéstimland the facilities within which they operate amot adequatel
reimbursed by Medicare and other funding agenaieshfe cost of the procedure in which they impldr@ Argus Il
System on a basis satisfactory to the administeriipal specialists and their facilities. If thecal contractors thi
administer the Medicare program and other fundiggnaies are slow to reimburse retinal specialistprovider
facilities for the Argus Il System, the retinal sjadists may delay their payments to us, which wiadversely affect ot
working capital requirements. If the funding agescdelay reimbursement payments to the hospitais,rerease t
their working capital requirements could reducedrtillingness to treat blind patients who wish lave our device
implanted. If reimbursement for our products is vaiible, limited in scope or amount, or if pricing set a
unsatisfactory levels, our business will be matigrizarmed.

Our commercial and financial success depends on fgus Il System being accepted in the market, ahdot
achieved will result in our not being able to geme revenues to support our operations.



Even if we are able to obtain favorable reimbursenvethin the markets that we serve, commerciakssgs ¢
our products will depend, among other things, ogirtlacceptance by retinal specialists, ophthalmistsg gener:
practitioners,
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low vision therapists and mobility experts, hospipairchasing and controlling departments, patieaisd othe
members of the medical community. The degree oketaacceptance of any of our product candidatelsdeppend ot
factors that include:

» cost of treatment,

» pricing and availability of future alternative prats,

» the extent of available third-party coverage omfmirsement,

» perceived efficacy of the Argus Il System relatigeother future products and medical solutions, and
* prevalence and severity of adverse side effectscaded with treatment.

The activities of competitive medical device comigssn or others, may limit the Argus Il System’s ewe.

Our commercial opportunities for the Argus Il Systenay be reduced if our competitors develop or et
products that are more effective, are better ttderareceive better reimbursement terms, are mooepted by
physicians, have better distribution channels reldess costly.

Currently, to our knowledge, no other medical desicomparable to the Argus Il System have beerapdrby
regulatory agencies, both in the US and Europeggtore some functional vision in persons who Hs@me blind du
to RP. Other visual prosthesis companies such @isaRenplant AG and Pixium Vision S.A., both basad=Europe, ar
developing retinal implant technologies to pariakstore some vision in blind patients. Retinalanphas obtained
CE mark for its Alpha IMS product but has not yeldst to our knowledge, and to our knowledge reitRetina Implan
nor Pixium has filed for market approval with th®A, nor to our knowledge has either company obthiaa
Investigational Device Exemption to begin the reediclinical trials in the US. These competitivertpies if or whe
developed or brought to market may result in pgcamd market access pressure even if Argus Il Bygeotherwise
viewed as a preferable therapy.

Many privately and publicly funded universities amither organizations are engaged in research anelatenent
of potentially competitive products and therapms;h as stem cell and gene therapies, some of whightarget RI
and other indications as our product candidatees@lorganizations include pharmaceutical compahietechnology
companies, public and private universities, hosptnters, government agencies and research oggams. Oul
competitors include large and small medical dewnd biotechnology companies that may have sigmifiezcess t
capital resources, competitive product pipelinashstantial research and development staffs anditiesi and
substantial experience in medical device developmen

We may face substantial competition in the futuracamay not be able to keep pace with the rapid temlbgical
changes which may result from others discoveringevéloping or commercializing products before or e
successfully than we dc

In general the development and commercializationes¥ medical devices is highly competitive andHaracterize:
by extensive research and development and rapiuhéémgical change. Our customers consider manyfadhcluding
product reliability, clinical outcomes, product dahility, inventory consignment, price and prodsetvices provided
the manufacturer. Market share can shift as atresuechnological innovation anather business factors. We belie
these risk factors are partially mitigated by theyus Il System being the sole product that is aulyeavailable fol
commercial implantation in the US and Europe. Majoifts in industry market share have occurredoinnection witt
product problems, physician advisories and saftgytsa reflecting the importance of product qualitythe medica
device industry, and any quality problems with gupcesses, goods and services could harm our teputfor
producing highguality products and would erode our competitiveaadage, sales and market share. Our compe
may develop products or other novel technologied #re more effective, safer or less costly thay thiat we art
developing and if those products gain market aeeegg our revenue and financial results could bersely affected.

If we fail to develop new products or enhance éxgsproducts, our leadership in the markets weeseould erode
and our business, financial condition and resultsperations may be adversely affected.
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Risks Related to Our Business and Industry

We have incurred operating losses since inceptiom anay continue to incur losses for the foreseeahlture.

We have had a history of operating losses and vpedaxthat operating losses will continue into tlEamterm
Although we have had sales of the Argus Il prodtiase limited sales have not been sufficient teecour operatini
expenses. Our ability to generate positive caslv fhdll also hinge on our ability to correctly priaar product to ou
markets, expand the use of the Argus Il Systemeldewvthe Orion | visual prosthesis and obtain gor@nt and privat
insurance reimbursement. As of December 31, 2014hese total stockholderséquity of $34,618,247 and
accumulated deficit of $(152,663,968). We cannatues you that we will be profitable even if we sessfully
commercialize our products. Failure to become adain profitable may adversely affect the marketepiof our
common stock and our ability to raise capital aodtinue operations.

Our business is subject to international economamlitical and other risks that could negatively &ft our results
of operations or financial position.

We derive a significant portion of our revenuesrfreurope, and we anticipate that revenue from Eueq othe
countries outside the US will increase. Accordinglyr operations are subject to risks associaték @oing busines
internationally, including

» currency exchange variations,

+ extended collection timelines for accounts recdiab

» greater working capital requirements,

» multiple legal frameworks and unexpected changésgal and regulatory requirements,

» the need to ensure compliance with the numeroudatygy and legal requirements applicable to owsiess
in each of these jurisdictions and to maintain fiecéive compliance program to ensure compliancih wiese
requirements,

» political changes in the foreign governments imipachealth policy and trade,

» tariffs, export restrictions, trade barriers antestregulatory or contractual limitations that abihpact oul
ability to sell or develop our products in certfoneign markets,

» trade laws and business practices favoring localpsgition,

. adverse economic conditions, including the stabitihd solvency of business financial markets, fioel
institutions and sovereign nations and the healéheapenditure of domestic or foreign nations.

The realization of any of these or other risks eisded with operating in Europe or other ridrs. countries coul
have a material adverse effect on our businessitses operations or financial condition.

We are subject to stringent domestic and foreigndical device regulation and any unfavorable regutay action
may materially and adversely affect our financiabrdition and business operations.

Our products, development activities and manufauguprocesses are subject to extensive and rigaegdatior
by numerous government agencies, including the DA comparable foreign agencies. To varying degressh o
these agencies monitors and enforces our compliauittelaws and regulations governing the developmeasting,
manufacturing, labeling, marketing, distributiondathe safety and effectiveness of our medicalaesviThe process
obtaining marketing approval or clearance from Ei2A and comparable foreign bodies for new produotsfor
enhancements, expansion of the indications or riwadiibns to existing products, could:

» take a significant, indeterminate amount of time,
e result in product shortages due to regulatory dglay

* require the expenditure of substantial resources,
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* involve rigorous pre-clinical and clinical testirand possibly post-market surveillance,
» involve modifications, repairs or replacements of products,

» require design changes of our products,

e resultin limitations on the indicated uses of products, and

e result in our never being granted the regulatoprayal we seek.

Any of these occurrences that we might experiendk oause our operations to suffer, harm our cortipet
standing and result in further losses that adveisiééct our financial condition.

We have ongoing responsibilities under FDA andrirggonal regulations, both before and after a pebds
commercially released. For example, we are requioedomply with the FDAS Quality System Regulation (QSI
which mandates that manufacturers of medical devamthere to certain quality assurance requiremgertaining
among other things to validation of manufacturingpgesses, controls for purchasing product compenesmc
documentation practices. As another example, thaliddé Device Reporting regulation requires us t@vpie
information to the FDA whenever there is evidenhattreasonably suggests that a device may haveedaor
contributed to a death or serious injury or, thatafunction occurred which would be likely to caus contribute to
death or serious injury upon recurrence. Complianith applicable regulatory requirements is subjectcontinua
review and is monitored rigorously through periottispections by the FDA. If the FDA were to con@utiat we ar
not in compliance with applicable laws or regulatipor that any of our medical devices are inefffecor pose a
unreasonable health risk, the FDA could ban suctiicaédevices, detain or seize such medical deyimeter a recal
repair, replacement, or refund of such devicesequire us to notify health professionals and athbat the device
present unreasonable risks of substantial harngoptiblic health. The FDA has been increasingadtsitgy of the
medical device industry and the government is etgueto continue to scrutinize the industry closelth inspection:
and possibly enforcement actions by the FDA or m#geencies. Additionally, the FDA may restrict miamiuring anc
impose other operating restrictions, enjoin antra@s certain violations of applicable law pertaigito medical device
and assess civil or criminal penalties againstafficers, employees, or us. Any adverse regulasmtion, depending ¢
its magnitude, may restrict us from effectively mfatturing, marketing and selling our productsatidition, negativ:
publicity and product liability claims resultingoim any adverse regulatory action could have a mahtatverse effect o
our financial condition and results of operations.

The number of preclinical and clinical tests thall e required for regulatory approval varies degieg on the
disease or condition to be treated, the jurisdictiowhich we are seeking approval and the reqaiatapplicable to thi
particular medical device. Regulatory agenciesluiing those in the US, Canada, Europe and othentdes wher:
medical devices are regulated, can delay, limienmy approval of a product for many reasons. Famgpte,

« amedical device may not be safe or effective,
e regulatory agencies may interpret data from praadirand clinical testing differently than we do,
* regulatory agencies may not approve our manufagjpiocesses,

e regulatory agencies may conclude that our devices dmt meet quality standards for durability, laegn
reliability, biocompatibility, electromagnetic comiibility, electrical safety, and

* regulatory agencies may change their approval ijgsliar adopt new regulations.

The FDA may make requests or suggestions regamtinduct of our clinical trials, resulting in an irased risk @
difficulties or delays in obtaining regulatory appal in the US. Any of these occurrences could pravaterially
harmful to our operations and business.

We are also subject to stringent government regidatin European and other foreign countries, whicbould
delay or prevent our ability to sell our products ihose jurisdictions.

We intend to pursue market authorizations for thrgus Il System and other product candidates in teatil
jurisdictions. For us to market our products indpe and some other international jurisdictions and our distributor
and agents must
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obtain required regulatory registrations or applevahe approval procedure varies among countmesjarisdictions
and can involve additional testing and the time aosks required to obtain approval may differ frimat required t
obtain an approval by the FDA. Approval by the FDAes not ensure approval by regulatory authoritiesther
countries or jurisdictions, and approval by oneefgn regulatory authority does not ensure apprdawyaregulatory
authorities in other foreign countries or juriséios or by the FDA. Violations of foreign laws gemig use o
medical devices may lead to actions against us©ibyFDA as well as by foreign authorities. We must @&omply with
extensive regulations regarding safety, efficacyg quality in those jurisdictions. We may not beeatdl obtain all th
required regulatory registrations or approvals,wa may be required to incur significant costs intagfing or
maintaining any regulatory registrations or appisewae receive. Delays in obtaining any registratiam approval
required for marketing our products, failure toeee these registrations or approvals, or futuises lof previoush
obtained registrations or approvals would limit oability to sell our products internationally. Faxample
international regulatory bodies have adopted vari@mgulations governing product standards, packagguirements
labeling requirements, import restrictions, targfulations, duties and tax requirements. Theselaggns vary fron
country to country. In order to sell our produgtsHurope, we must maintain our ISO 13485:2003 foeation and CE
mark certification, which is an international syrhbbéquality and compliance with applicable Europeaedical devic
directives. Failure to maintain the ISO 13485:20@8tification or CE mark certification or other émbhationa
regulatory approvals would prevent us from sellingsome countries in Europe and elsewhere. Tharéailo obtair
these approvals could harm our business materially.

Even if we obtain clearance or approval to sell oproducts, we are subject to ongoing requirementsd.
inspections that could lead to the restriction, &nsion or revocation of our clearance.

We, as well as any potential collaborative partseich as distributors, will be required to adheragiplicable FD#
regulations regarding good manufacturing practideich include testing, control, and documentatiequirements. W
are subject to similar regulations in foreign coi@st Even if regulatory approval of a product iarged, the approv.
may be subject to limitations on the indicated ufeswhich the product may be marketed or to thaditions of
approval, or contain requirements for costly postrketing testing and surveillance to monitor thgety or efficacy o
the product. Ongoing compliance with good manufiégupractice and other applicable regulatory regpaents i
strictly enforced in the United States through @eic inspections by state and federal agencietjding the FDA, ant
in international jurisdictions by comparable agesciFailure to comply with these regulatory requieats could resu
in, among other things, warning letters, finesumations, civil penalties, recall or seizure of guots, total or partie
suspension of production, failure to obtain premairklearance or premarket approval for deviceshdwitwal of
approvals previously obtained, and criminal profieou The restriction, suspension or revocation refulatory
approvals or any other failure to comply with regaly requirements would limit our ability to operaand coul
increase our costs.

The CE marking regulations are subject to a sigmifint effort to strengthen the regulatory regime fonedical
devices which, if adopted, will make clearance pges more time consuming and costly for us to obtagtess to an
continue to market within the European markets.

We are subject to an annual audit of compliancé wie rules necessary to support our CE Mark. Qb22the
European Commission proposed a new regulatory sehehich is likely to come into effect in 2015 orl®) It is
anticipated that that the proposals which are otlyrdeing discussed by the Council of the Europgaion, will impose
significant additional obligations on medical devicompanies. The Council of the European Union exspihat thes
proposals will be adopted by the end of 2014 olye2015. and if so the new regulations on medi@licks woulc
likely become effective by 2016. Devices with areat CE marking may have to comply with additionaiore
challenging regulatory obligations, the details vafiich are not yet clarified. We expect changesdeinade t
regulations will include stricter requirements &inical evidence and praxarket assessment of safety and performe
new classifications to indicate risk levels, regumients for third party testing by government adteedgroups for som
types of medical devices, and tightened and stieadhl quality management system assessment procel
Additionally we anticipate that the new regulatiavi#i require clinical evidence as well as analgtiperformance level:
the details of which are yet to be provided. If &uglitional provisions proposed by the EuropeatidPaent are adopte
this could lead to the involvement of the Europé&éedicines Agency (EMA) in regulation of some typefsmedical
devices, in the qualification and monitoring ofifietd bodies (NBs), and enhancing the roles of otalies, including
new Medical Devices Coordination Group (MDCG). Tharopean Parliamerst’ proposed revisions would impc
enhanced competence requirements for NBs and ‘@peaiified bodies” §NBs) for specific categories of devices, s
as implantable devices. This could result in &riconformity assessment procedures. Althoughettent of the ne\
regulations is currently uncertain the medical devindustry anticipates that there will be sigmifit changes und
these initiatives to the regulation of medical degiwhich will increase the time and costs for ivliig CE marking.
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We have no large scale manufacturing experience,jiethcould limit our growth.

Our limited manufacturing experience may not enaisléo make products in the volumes that would deessar
for us to achieve a significant amount of commérsaes. Our product involves new and technolofliceabmplex
materials and processes and we currently experiemcgields on our manufacturing process. As we enfram making
small quantities of our product for clinical triais larger quantities for commercial distributiome must develop ne
manufacturing techniques and processes that altote scale production. We may not be able to d@stabihd maintail
reliable, efficient, full scale manufacturing atnomercially reasonable costs in a timely fashionffifilties we
encounter in manufacturing scalp; or our failure to implement and maintain oumnifacturing facilities in accordan
with good manufacturing practice regulations, in&ional quality standards or other regulatory nesgoents, coult
result in a delay or termination of production. date, our manufacturing activities have largelyrbgeprovide units fo
clinical testing and limited initial sales of thegus Il System. We may face substantial difficaltie establishing ar
maintaining manufacturing for our products at gésrcommercial scale and those difficulties mayaotghe quality o
our products and adversely affect our ability torégase sales.

Materials necessary to manufacture Argus Il may nbé available on commercially reasonable terms,atrall,
which may delay development, manufacturing and coemaialization of our products.

We rely on numerous suppliers to provide materiadsnponents and services necessary to produceriuesAl
System and next generation product candidates.ai@esuppliers are currently sole source becauseuoflow
manufacturing volumes and our need for specialghneal or other engineering expertise. Our suppliday be
unable or unwilling to deliver these materials a®tvices to us timely as needed or on commercigsonabli
terms. Should this occur, we would seek to qualifgrnative suppliers or develop muse manufacturing capabili
but may be unable to do so. Substantial designanufacturing process modifications and regulatqgyraval might
be required to facilitate or qualify an alternatgpglier. Even where we could qualify alternativepgliers the
substitution of suppliers may be at a higher cast eause time delays including delays associated additiona
possible FDA review, that impede the commerciadpiation of the Argus Il System, reduce gross pnafirgins ant
impact our abilities to deliver our products as rbaytimely required to meet demand.

Any failure or delay in completing clinical trial®or studies for new product candidates or next gestéon of the
Argus Il System and the expense of those trials kkbadversely affect our busines

Preclinical studies and clinical trials requireddemonstrate the safety and efficacy of incremecttainges an
obtain indication expansion for the next generatérihe Argus Il System and for new product cantlidaare time
consuming and expensive. If we are required to aonddditional clinical trials or other studies kvitespect to any ¢
our product candidates beyond those that we haneoplated, if we are unable to successfully cobepdair clinical
trials or other studies or if the results of th&sas or studies are not positive or are only nutlyepositive, we may b
delayed in obtaining marketing approval for thosedpict candidates, we may not be able to obtairketisug approva
or we may obtain approval for indications that ac¢ as broad as intended. Our product developmasis @lso wil
increase if we experience delays in testing or aygis.

The completion of clinical trials for our producrdidates could be delayed because of our inalbditpanufactur:
or obtain from thirdearties materials sufficient for use in preclinictldies and clinical trials; delays in pati
enrollment and variability in the number and typespatients available for clinical trials; diffidyl in maintaining
contact with patients after treatment, resultinginnomplete data; poor effectiveness of productdaates during
clinical trials; unforeseen safety issues or siffects; and governmental or regulatory delays amghges in regulatol
requirements and guidelines.

If we incur significant delays in our clinical ti&a our competitors may be able to bring their jpicid to marke
before we do which could result in harming our iabito commercialize our products or potential prog. If we
experience any of these occurrences our busindissennaterially harmed.

To establish our sales and marketing infrastructyreve will need to grow the size of our organizatjcand we
may experience delays or other difficulties in magiag this growth.

As our development and commercialization plans stndtegies evolve, we will need to expand the sizeur
employee base for managerial, operational, salaskeating, financial and other resources. Futurevgfitovould imposte
significant added responsibilities on members ohaggment, including the need to identify, recnmigintain, motivat
and integrate additional employees. Our manageteant may have to use a substantial amount of tinneaihage thes
growth activities. Our future
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financial performance and our ability to commeilzmlthe Argus Il System and our other product cdagis an
compete effectively will depend, in part, on ouilightimely and effectively to manage any futureogth and relate
costs. We may not be able to effectively managepadrpace of growth and timely implement improvetaeio out
management infrastructure and control systems.

We may acquire additional businesses or form statealliances in the future, and we may not realizbe
benefits of such acquisitions or alliances.

We may acquire additional businesses or produets) Etrategic alliances or create joint ventureth whird-parties
that we believe will complement or augment our txgsbusiness. If we acquire businesses with primgimarkets o
technologies, we may not be able to realize theetiteaf acquiring such businesses if we are unablsuccessfull
integrate them with our existing operations and jgany culture. We may have difficulty in developimganufacturing
and marketing the products of a newly acquired @amyghat enhances the performance of our combinsthésses ¢
product lines to realize value from expected syiestg/Ne cannot assure that, following an acquisitiee will achieve
the revenues or specific net income that justitiesacquisition.

If we lose key management personnel, or if we failrecruit additional highly skilled personnel, ouability to
identify, develop and commercialize new or next geation product candidates will be impaired, coulgsult in loss of
markets or market share and could make us less cetitipe.

We are highly dependent upon Robert J. GreenbeRy,Wh.D., our President and Chief Executive Offiead ar¢
also dependent on other members of our senior nreamagt. Our executives have significant ophthalmeégulatory
industry, sales and marketing, operational, ancidoporate finance experience. The loss of any mamagt executive ¢
any other principal member of our management teanidcimpair our ability to identify, develop and rkat new
products or effectively deal with regulatory anthmeursement matters.

Our ability to utilize and benefit from our net opating loss carryforwards and certain other tax attutes may b
limited.

As of December 31, 2014, we had federal and sfaBalifornia income tax net operating loss carryfards, whick
may be applied to future taxable income, of apprately $107,346,000 and $101,807,000, respectiviathe exten
that we continue to generate taxable losses, urlossds will carry forward to offset future taxableome, if any, unti
these unused losses expire. However, we may bdeut@mhbise these losses to offset taxable incomeréefur unuse
losses expire at various dates that range from 2@28igh 2034 for federal net operating lossesfeomd 2015 througl
2034 for state net operating losses. Under Se8@@nof the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as anttrmte¢he Code, |
a corporation undergoes an “ownership changeyierally defined as a greater than 50 percentageg phange (b
value) in its equity ownership over a three-yeaiquk the corporation’s ability to use its pthange net operating lo:
or NOL, carryforwards to offset its pesthange taxable income may be limited. Limitationgynalso apply to th
utilization of other prechange tax attributes as a result of an ownerdtapge. We have experienced ownership cha
in the past. We may experience additional ownershgnges in connection with our recent IPO andhaftiture as
result of shifts in our stock ownership, includisigifts in our stock ownership that are outside wfaontrol. As a resul
our ability to use our prehange NOL carryforwards to offset taxable inconay e subject to limitations. In additic
there may be periods during which the use of NOiyfarwards is suspended or otherwise limited urstate tax law
For these reasons, we may not be able to utilideb@nefit from a material portion of our NOL cawgiards and othe
tax attributes.

We could be adversely affected by violations of thé&. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and similar widwide
anti-bribery laws.

The U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and simiarldwide antibribery laws generally prohibit companies
their intermediaries from making improper paymetasony.S. officials for the purpose of obtaining or iatag
business. We have adopted policies for compliarite tvese antbribery laws, which often carry substantial permsli
We cannot assure you that our internal controlopedi and procedures always will protect us fronkless or othe
inappropriate acts committed by our affiliates, éypes or agents. Violations of these laws, orgalions of sucl
violations, could have a material adverse effecbaonbusiness, financial position and results aérafions and coul
cause the market value of our common stock to decli
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Risks Related to Intellectual Property and Other Legal Matters

If we or our licensors are unable to protect ouréh intellectual property, then our financial contlon, results of
operations and the value of our technology and puets could be adversely affected.

Patents and other proprietary rights are essetiaur business and our ability to compete effetyiwith other
companies is dependent upon the proprietary natlimur technologies. We also rely upon trade segcitatowhow,
continuing technological innovations and licensigportunities to develop, maintain and strengthen ammpetitive
position. We seek to protect these, in part, thhoognfidentiality agreements with certain employemmsultants an
other parties. Our success will depend in part kan dbility of our licensors to obtain, maintaincfuding making
periodic filings and payments) and enforce pateatgetion for their intellectual property, in patlar, those patents
which we have secured exclusive rights. Our licemsoay not successfully prosecute or continue ¢sgrrute the pate
applications which we have licensed. Even if pat@mé issued in respect of these patent applicatioa or our licensol
may fail to maintain these patents, may determistetm pursue litigation against entities that argimging upon thes
patents, or may pursue such enforcement less aigghsthan we ordinarily would. Without adequatetpction for the
intellectual property that we own or license, othempanies might be able to offer substantiallyniael products fo
sale, which could unfavorably affect our compegitbusiness position and harm our business prospects

Even if issued, patents may be challenged, inviadiaor circumvented, which could limit our abilitp stop
competitors from marketing similar products or lirtiie length of term of patent protection that waynmave for ou
products.

Litigation or third-party claims of intellectual property infringemerdr challenges to the validity of our pater
would require us to use resources to protect ouchieology and may prevent or delay our developmeagulatory
approval or commercialization of improvements inetbArgus Il System or new product candidates. Furthéhe
validity of some of our patents has been challenged

Pixium Vision has filed oppositions in the Europdatent Office (EPO) challenging the validity oh@iEuropea
patents owned or exclusively licensed by SecondtSiRetina Implant has joined in one of the nippasitions. Two o
the patents are owned by Johns Hopkins UniverdijJ) and exclusively licensed to Second Sight. 8efahe patent
are owned by Second Sight. Second Sight was sdaté@sshe Opposition Division in the two JHU casé®wever, ir
the Appellate Division one of the JHU patents wassprved and one of JHU patents was invalidatedhénthird
proceeding Pixium was successful in the Opposifiovision, and we have appealed. In the fourth casewere
successful in the Opposition Division. The fifthse is scheduled for hearing in the Opposition $ovi on April 23
2015. The sixth and seventh of these oppositioeschave not reached a hearing in the oppositioisidiv We have
opposed one Pixium patent. The patent was sucdigssfiyposed and significantly narrowed. The eigatid ninth case
were filed in recent months and await initial anti@hese challenges to our patent portfolio, iftessful, may affect ot
ability to block competitors from utilizing this gacular intellectual property, but in our view femo material effect ¢
our ability to make and sell the Argus Il Systemotinerwise have any material effect upon us. Ofrime patent
contested, two have reached final resolution waHurther appeal available within in the EPO. Of #even remainin
patents, none apply to our current product. To @urent knowledge, none apply to any competitivedpct. Thes:
patents represent possible improvements that wa,competitor, may wish to use in the future. Revngi at issue ar
seven out of over 300 patents we have to protecttexhnology. These EPO proceedings involving ud Bixium
include:

. EP 1061874Visual Prosthesis— upheld by the opposition and appellate divisions. fNrther appeal i
available in the EPO.

 EP 1061996\pparatus for Preferential Outer Retinal Stimulatis- upheld by the opposition division, lost
the appellate division. No further appeal is aafal@ in the EPO.

e EP 117118&Retinal Color Prosthesis for Color Sight Restoratie- successfully opposed in the opposit
division, pending before the Appellate Division.

. EP2219728 Electrode Array for Even Neural Pressimging Multiple Attachment Points —successfully
upheld in the Opposition Division.

» EP193735Xub-threshold Stimulation to Precondition NeurasrsSupra-threshold Stimulatior- successfully
opposed in the Opposition Division, pending appeal.
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EP2192949 —Return Electrode for a Flexible Circuit Electroderdy - o pposition and response file
pending hearing April 23, 2015 in Munich Germany.

« EP1949437 —mplantable Microelectronic Device and Method ofiMéacture— opposition filed.

»  EP1945835 —Platinum Electrode Surface Coating and Method fanMfacturing the Same- opposition
filed.

« EP2061549 —Package for an Implantable Neural Stimulation Dewieopposition filed.

e EP1986733 (Pixium) —Pevice with Flexible Multilayer System for Contagtior Electrostimulation of Living
Tissue Cells or Nerves- successfully opposed and significantly narrowed.

If we are the target of claims by third partiesestisg that our products or intellectual propenmfringe upon th
rights of others we may be forced to incur subshekpenses or divert substantial employee regsuirom our busines
and, if successful, those claims could result inf@ving to pay substantial damages or preventams éleveloping one ¢
more product candidates. Further, if a patentrigéiment suit were brought against us or our collbos, we or the
could be forced to stop or delay research, devedopmanufacturing or sales of the product or pcbdandidate that
the subject of the suit.

If we experience patent infringement claims, owé elect to avoid potential claims others may de &bassert, w
or our collaborators may choose to seek, or beiredjtio seek, a license from the thpdrty and would most likely t
required to pay license fees or royalties or b@tiese licenses may not be available on acceptebtest or at all. Eve
if we or our collaborators were able to obtain eetise, the rights may be nonexclusive, which wailee our
competitors access to the same intellectual prppditimately, we could be prevented from commeiziag a product
or be forced to cease some aspect of our businEsatmns if, as a result of actual or threatenai@mt infringemer
claims, we or our collaborators are unable to etter licenses on acceptable terms. This could haambusines
significantly. The cost to us of any litigation other proceeding, regardless of its merit, evemresblved in our favol
could be substantial. Some of our competitors mayable to bear the costs of such litigation or pealings mor
effectively than we can because of their havingtgefinancial resources. Uncertainties resultiognfthe initiation ant
continuation of patent litigation or other procewgt could have a material adverse effect on olityatm compete in th
marketplace. Intellectual property litigation antier proceedings may, regardless of their mestp absorb significar
management time and employee resources.

If we fail to comply with our obligations in the agements under which we license development
commercialization rights to products or technolo@pm third-parties, we could lose license rights that are imjamt
to our business.

We hold exclusive licenses from Johns Hopkins Ursiég, Duke University, and the Doheny Eye Insgtub
intellectual property relating to the Argus Il vauprosthesis. These licenses impose various cooaligation,
milestone payment, profit sharing, insurance artembbligations on us. If we fail to comply with yamaterial
obligations, the licensor will have the right tortgnate the applicable license, which covers pathe system of the ey
implant and thus will be a barrier to manufacture Argus Il System and impair our ability to séletArgus Il. The
existing or future patents to which we have rightsed on our agreements with Johns Hopkins UntyerBiuke
University and the Doheny Eye Institute may benaaow to prevent thirgharties from developing or designing arot
these patents. Additionally, we may lose our rigbtdhe patents and patent applications we licémsbe event of |
breach or termination of the license agreementhiaense expires with the expiration of the lasthe licensed patent
In the case of JHU, the license will expire March 2018, unless extended by additional patents.léAthe JHL
agreement includes a patent which is a significdostacle to our competitors, it is one of many ofhetents which il
our view present material obstacles to our commstifThe DEI license includes ongoing research imgathe expiratiot
date indeterminate, but in any event the expiradiate is no earlier than August 8, 2033. The tatglregate royalty ¢
both agreements does not exceed 3.25% of ArgugstieB) net sales. All of the patents in the DEI agrent are co-
owned with the Doheny Eye Institute. We license Breheny Eye Institutag’ interest in the patents to maintain
exclusive use on that intellectual property. Shathie license terminate we retain the right to zgilthe intellectue
property, but may not be able to prevent othemnfdoing so, in which case we may lose a competédsantage.

If we are unable to protect the confidentiality afur proprietary information and knowhow, the value of ou
technology and products could be adversely affected

In addition to patented technology, we rely upanpag other things, unpatented proprietary technglpgpcesse:
trade secrets and know-how. Any involuntary disatesto or misappropriation by thigghrties of our confidential «
proprietary
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information could enable competitors to duplicatesarpass our technological achievements, poténtabding oul
competitive position in our market. We seek to pcotconfidential or proprietary information in pant confidentiality
agreements with our employees, consultants and-plairties. While we require all of our employees, stdtants
advisors and any third-parties who have accessit@mprietary knowhow, information and technology to enter i
confidentiality agreements, we cannot be certadn this knowhow, information and technology will not be disadsor
that competitors will not otherwise gain acces®tw trade secrets or independently develop subialignéquivalent
information and techniques. These agreements magribrénated or breached, and we may not have ategemedie:
for any such termination or breach. Furthermores¢hagreements may not provide meaningful proteétioour trade
secrets and knowew in the event of unauthorized use or disclostlicethe extent that any of our staff was previol
employed by other pharmaceutical, medical technolog biotechnology companies, those employers mi@ge
violations of trade secrets and other similar ckimrelation to their medical device developmaativities for us.

If we are unable to protect the intellectual propgrused in our products, others may be able to capy
innovations which may impair our ability to competdfectively in our markets.

The strength of our patents involves complex legal scientific questions and can be uncertain. fAslarch 1,
2015 we have 308 issued patents and 172 pendiegtpgtplications on a worldwide basis. Our patpplieations may
be challenged or fail to result in issued patemig aur existing or future patents may be too nartowrevent third-
parties from developing or designing around ouellattual property and in that event we may losenpetitive
advantage and our business may suffer.

Further, the patent applications that we licensleawe filed may fail to result in issued patentse Tlaims may nee
to be amended. Even after amendment, a patent otagsue and in that event we may not obtain tlwusive use o
the intellectual property that we seek and may tmsapetitive advantage which could result in hasmur business.

Third-party claims of intellectual property infringemennay prevent or delay our commercialization efforfar
Argus Il and our development and commercialization activétiior other product candidates.

Although we are not currently aware of any litigatior other proceedings or thipduty claims of intellectu:
property infringement related to the Argus Il Systehe medical device industry is characterizedrany litigation
cases regarding patents and other intellectualegptppights. Other parties may in the future alldlgat our activitie:
infringe their patents or that we are employingirtipeoprietary technology without authorization. Vifeay not havi
identified all the patents, patent applicationgwoblished literature that affect our business eithyeblocking our ability
to commercialize our product, by preventing theeptbility of one or more aspects of our produgtshose of ou
licensors or by covering the same or similar tedtgies that may affect our ability to market ouoghuct.

In addition, even in the absence of litigation, may need to obtain licenses from thpdrties to advance o
research or allow commercialization of our prodeemdidates, and we have done so from time to tifee may fail tc
obtain future licenses at a reasonable cost orasanable terms, if at all. In that event, we mayubable to furthe
develop and commercialize one or more of our prodandidates, which could harm our business sicanitfily.

We may become involved in future lawsuits to prdatecenforce our patents or the patents of our liesors, which
could be expensive, time consuming and unsuccessful

Competitors may infringe our patents or the pateftsur licensors. To counter infringement or uhauized use
we may file infringement claims, which can be exgea and time consuming. In addition, in an infengeni
proceeding, a court may decide that a patent af oupf our licensors is not valid or is unenfolweaor may refuse 1
stop the other party from using the technologysati¢ on the grounds that our patents do not cheetechnology il
qguestion. An adverse result in any litigation ofethse proceedings could put one or more of oumpata risk of bein
invalidated or interpreted narrowly and could put patent applications at risk of not issuing.

The US Patent and Trademark Office may initiaterierence proceedings to determine the priorityneéntions
described in or otherwise affecting our patents patként applications or those of our collaboramrdicensors. Ar
unfavorable outcome could require us to cease usiagtechnology or to attempt to license rightsittédrom the
prevailing party. Our business could be harmed ffravailing party does not offer us a license omgethat ar
acceptable to us. Litigation or interference proiegs may fail and, even if successful, may resulubstantial cos
and distraction of our management and other empky®#/e may not be able to prevent, alone or withlieensors
misappropriation of our proprietary rights, partarly in countries where the laws may not protéase rights as fully &
in the US.
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Product liability lawsuits could divert our resoues, result in substantial liabilities and reducedhcommercia
potential of our products

We face a risk of product liability claims arisifiggm the prosthesis being inserted into the eyd, iars possible
that we may be held liable for eye injuries of eats who receive our product. These lawsuits magrtiour
management from pursuing our business strategyraydbe costly to defend. In addition, if we aredhéble in any o
these lawsuits, we may incur substantial liabsittend may be forced to limit or forego further coencmalization of onu
or more of our products. We maintain product ligpiinsurance that covers our clinical trials aminenercial sales, ot
aggregate coverage limit under these insuranceipsifor an amount of $5,000,000, and while weevelithis amour
of insurance currently is sufficient to cover owogbuct liability exposure, these limits may not yeadequate to full
cover potential liabilities. In addition, we maytnige able to obtain or maintain sufficient insumrcoverage at ¢
acceptable cost or otherwise to protect againstrpiai product liability claims, which could prevear inhibit the
commercial production and sale of our productshéfuse of our products harm or are alleged to hmaple, we ma
be subject to costly and damaging product liabitigims that exceed our policy limits and causssigsificant losse
that could seriously harm our financial conditiarreputation.

CE Marking does not absolve us from strict conformiwith all applicable European Union legislation ral
member state regulation where the product is offérend if we do not adhere to these directive andulations we
may incur fines and other penalties that will previeor delay market penetration of our products.

The CE (European Conformity) marking is a symbait tmanufacturers affix to products to indicate thatroduc
conforms to all relevant EU rules and regulationsl #ghat the manufacturer has performed all necessaaluatior
procedures. Although the CE mark allows manufacsute place products on the market and permitsrfreeement o
goods, it is not a mark of approval by the EU. Tienufacturer and its authorized representativelraEe responsibl
for all aspects of the product assessment, tedimgymentation, declaration of conformity and CEkimay, even wher
a formal processing agent, the notified body, égined, as in the case of n&wopean based manufacturers. In all ¢
the manufacturer and representative assume therdsfionsibility and liability even when using thensces of ¢
consultant or test laboratory. Liability is notrisferrable to third parties, including the notifieddy which is require
for processing the certification. Generally, thisrstrict liability applied to medical devices setj to the CE marking k
directive 85/374/EEC, and testing and reportingsdoat change or reduce this liability.

Legislative or regulatory reform of the health cargystem in the US and foreign jurisdictions may adsely
impact our business, operations or financial ressilt

Our industry is highly regulated and changes in taay adversely impact our business, operationgnangial
results. In March 2010, the Patient Protection Affdrdable Care Act, or PPACA, and a related redaton bill were
signed into law. This legislation changes the arsy/stem of healthcare insurance and benefitsdleie to broade
coverage and control costs. The law also contaiogigions that will affect companies in the medidalice industn
and other healthcare related industries by impoadditional costs and changes to business practices

Moreover, in some foreign countries, including coigés in Europe and Canada, the pricing of appravediical
devices is subject to governmental control. In¢hesuntries, pricing negotiations with governmeatahorities can tak
12 months or longer after the receipt of regulatapproval and product launch. To obtain reimbursgnoe pricing
approval in some countries, we may be requiredotadact a clinical trial that compares the ceffectiveness of oL
product candidate to other available therapies.lidsiess could be materially harmed if reimbursgréour product
is unavailable or limited in scope or amount guriting is set at unsatisfactory levels.

We cannot predict what healthcare reform initiadiveay be adopted in the future. Further federal state
legislative and regulatory developments are likelgd we expect ongoing initiatives in the U.S andope. Thes
reforms could have an adverse effect on our abitityobtain timely regulatory approval for new protiuand ot
anticipated revenues from the Argus Il System atigeroproduct candidates, both of which may affeat overall
financial condition.

We may incur significant increased costs as a reésfl operating as a public company, and our managarhwill
be required to devote substantial time to compliamequirements.

As a public company, we will incur significant légaccounting and other expenses that we did nmirims ¢
private company. The Sarban®siey Act of 2002, as well as rules subsequentlplémented by the SEC a
NASDAQ, have imposed various requirements on puldimpanies, including requiring establishment ardntenanct
of effective disclosure
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and financial controls and changes in corporateegmnce practices. Our management and other peiswilh be
required to devote a substantial amount of timehese new compliance requirements. Moreover, thelss anc
regulations will substantially increase our legadl dinancial compliance costs and will make somtiviies more time
consuming and costly. These rules and regulatialisnake it more difficult and more expensive f& 0 maintain ou
existing director and officer liability insuranceto obtain similar coverage from an alternativevier.

We are an “emerging growth company,and we cannot be certain if the reduced disclosueguirements
applicable to emerging growth companies will makar @ommon stock less attractive to investors.

For so long as we remain an “emerging growth compas defined in the JOBS Act, we may take advantdy
certain exemptions from various requirements thmatapplicable to public companies that are renérging growtl
companies,’including not being required to comply with the é@péndent auditor attestation requirements of Sediia!
of the Sarbane®©xley Act, reduced disclosure obligations regardirgcutive compensation in our periodic reports
proxy statements and exemptions from the requirésnef holding a nonbinding advisory vote on exea
compensation and stockholder approval of any golp@machute payments not previously approved. We takg
advantage of these exemptions for so long as wamrgmerging growth companyhich could be as long as fi
years following the completion of our IPO. Investonay find our common stock less attractive becawgseely on thes
exemptions. If some investors find our common stesk attractive as a result, there may be a ssdrading marke
for our common stock, and our stock price may beernvolatile or may decline.

In addition, Section 107 of the JOBS Act also pdes that an “emerging growth comparegh take advantage
an extended transition period for complying wittwner revised accounting standards. However, weehosopt out”
of this extended transition period, and as a resdtintend to comply with new or revised accouptitandards on tf
relevant dates that adoption of those standardshmagquired for noemerging growth companies. Our decision to
out of the extended transition period for complywith new or revised accounting standards is ircawde.

We will be required to evaluate our internal controver financial reporting under Section 404 of th®arbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, and any adverse results from ls@valuation could result in a loss of investor diatence in our
financial reports and have an adverse effect on @iock price.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarba®etey Act of 2002, we will be required to furnishraport by ou
management on our internal control over finana@glorting the year following our first annual repatjuired to be file:
with the SEC. The report will contain, among otheatters, an assessment of the effectiveness oihtamal contro
over financial reporting as of the end of our flsgear, including a statement as to whether orawstinternal contrc
over financial reporting is effective. This assesatrmust include disclosure of any material weagegsn our intern:
control over financial reporting identified by maesent. If we are unable to assert that our intecoatrol over
financial reporting is effective, we could lose éstor confidence in the accuracy and completenesairofinancial
reports, which could have an adverse effect orstmak price.

Risks Relating to Our Financial Results and Need foAdditional Financing

Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results andash flows could adversely affect the price of acommon
stock.

The revenues we generate and our operating regilltse affected by numerous factors such as:
» the commercial success of the Argus Il System,

» our ability to obtain regulatory approval of theghis Il System in additional jurisdictions,

» our ability to obtain regulatory approval of theghis Il System for treatment of AMD,

» the emergence of products that compete with outymiocandidates,

» the status of our preclinical and clinical devel@minprograms,

. variations in the level of expenses related to existing product candidates or preclinical and icéh
development programs,

e execution of collaborative, licensing or other agements, and the timing of payments received alemade
those arrangements,
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» any intellectual property infringement lawsuitaabich we may become a party,
e regulatory developments affecting our product cdatdis or those of our competitors, and
* our ability to obtain reimbursement from governmenprivate payers.

If our quarterly operating results fall below thepectations of investors or securities analysts, fihice of ou
common stock could decline substantially. Any gerdytfluctuations in our operating results and clistvs may caus
the price of our stock to fluctuate substantiallje believe that, in the near term, quarterly conspas of our financic
results are not necessarily meaningful and shootdbe relied upon as an indication of our futurgfqgrenance.

We will need additional capital to support our grtlw Additional capital, may be difficult to obtainestricting our
operations and resulting in additional dilution tour stockholders.

We raised net proceeds of approximately $34.2 onilfrom the IPO we completed in November 2014. kusines:
will require additional capital for implementati@f our long term business plan. We believe our caabkh equivalen
and other investments will be sufficient to fund @perations over approximately the next 18 to Zhtins. However
the actual amount of funds that we will need for business development will be determined by mayofs, some ¢
which are beyond our control, and we may need fwodsier than currently anticipated. These factwrde:

» the amount of our future operating losses,
« third party expenses relating to the commerciabnadf the Argus Il System,
* the need and cost of conducting additional clinidals of the Argus Il System for other applicaiso

» the amount of our research and development, inofudésearch and development for Orion | visual thesss,
marketing and general and administrative experases,

e regulatory changes and technological developmentsii markets.

As we require additional funds, we may seek to fandoperations through the sale of equity se@asjtadditiona
debt financing and strategic collaboration agredameéWe cannot be sure that additional financingnfrany of thes
sources will be available when needed or that/dilable, the additional financing will be obtained terms favorable f
us or our stockholders. If we raise additional ity selling shares of our capital stock, the owimigrinterest of ou
current stockholders will be diluted. If we are bleato obtain additional funds on a timely basi®orterms favorable f
us, we may be required to cease or reduce furttranercialization of the Argus Il System, to ceaseedluce certai
research and development projects, to sell sonad of our technology or assets or business unit® energe all or .
portion of our business with another entity.

Risks Related to the Securities Market, and Ownersp of Our Common Stock

The price of our common stock may be volatile ahe walue of your investment could decline.

Medical technology stocks have historically expeced high levels of volatility. The trading pricé aur commor
stock may fluctuate substantially. The market pa€eur common stock may be higher or lower thangtice you pay
depending on many factors, some of which are beyomdontrol and may not be related to our opegapierformance
These fluctuations could cause you to lose subathnall or part of your investment in our commstock. Factors th:
could cause fluctuations in the trading price af cammon stock include:

. announcements of new offerings, products, servitiesrapies, treatments or technologies, comme
relationships, acquisitions or other events byrusup competitors,

» challenges to our patents and the patents undgriim patents and intellectual property that wenge,
« United States and European approvals or deniasoproducts,

» price and volume fluctuations in the overall stoc#rket from time to time,
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» significant volatility in the market price and tiad volume of technology companies in general,
» fluctuations in the trading volume of our shareshar size of our public float,

* actual or anticipated changes or fluctuations inresults of operations,

« whether our results of operations meet the exgeatabf securities analysts or investors,
e actual or anticipated changes in the expectatibisvestors or securities analysts,

» litigation involving us, our industry, or both,

« regulatory developments in the United States, fpreountries, or both,

e general economic conditions and trends,

* major catastrophic events,

» lockup releases, sales of large blocks of our comstiock,

» departures of key employees, or

* an adverse impact on the company from any of theratisks cited herein.

In addition, if the market for medical technolodgcks or the stock market, in general, experieadess of investc
confidence, the trading price of our common stockild decline for reasons unrelated to our businessylts o
operations or financial condition. The trading priaf our common stock might also decline in reactio events the
affect other companies in our industry even if éhegents do not directly affect us. In the padtpfang periods o
volatility in the market price of a compamsysecurities, securities class action litigatios b&ien been brought agaii
that company. If our stock price is volatile, weyniecome the target of securities litigation. Sei@g litigation coulc
result in substantial costs and divert our manag&meattention and resources from our business. Tdusdchave ¢
material adverse effect on our business, resultgefations and financial condition.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stockthe public markets, including sales after the “lkaip”
period, or the perception that sales might occuputd reduce the price of our common stock and maiu your
voting power and ownership interest in us.

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our camstock in the public market, or the percepticat these sale
could occur, could adversely affect the marketgpg€ our common stock and may make it more diffiéorl you to sel
your common stock at a time and price that you deppropriate

Subject to certain exceptions, our directors, eficand our stockholders beneficially owning 10%nare of oul
common stock and certain of our consultants haveeagnot to offer, sell or agree to sell, direailyindirectly, any
shares of common stock without the permission ofBviCapital Group, our IPO underwriter, for a perwfdl2 months
ending November 18, 2015. Certain of our executiediser employees and consultants have agreednitasiock-up
agreements for a period of six months from the datbe IPO. When these lockup periods expiredokedup security
holders will be able to sell shares in the publirket. In addition, the underwriter may, in itsesdiscretion, release i
or some portion of the shares subject to lock-ueements prior to the expiration of the applicdblk-up period. Ou
prospectus dated November 18, 2014 disclosed thathief executive officer may sell up to 100,00@res of commo
stock from February 15 through April 15, 2015 tov@ohis personal tax liability and we currently egphe will do st
after March 16, 2015 and prior to April 15, 201%le3 of a substantial number of such shares bygtdig officers o
employees, or the perception that such sales mayr,oor early release of the loc, could cause our share price to
or make it more difficult for you to sell your conom stock at a time and price that you deem appateori

Holders of up to approximately 22,898,690 shareswfcommon stock, and holders of up to 805,000eshaf
common stock underlying the underwritesvarrant, will have rights, subject to some cdodg, to require us to file
registration statement covering the sale of thedres or to include their shares in registratiateshents that we may fi
for ourselves or other stockholders. We also intientegister the offer and sale of all shares ohmon stock that w
may issue under our equity compensation plans.
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Certain of our stockholders have the ability to dool the outcome of matters submitted for stockheidapproval
and may have interests that differ from those ofrather stockholders.

As of December 31, 2014 our executive officers, &mployees, directors and their affiliates benafigiown in the
aggregate approximately 65.8% of the outstandirgeshof our common stock. As a result, these stidkns, if acting
together, may be able to exercise significant arflce over all matters requiring stockholder apgrovaluding the
election of directors and the approval of significaorporate transactions. They may also havedstsrthat differ fron
yours and may vote in a manner that is adverseuo ynterests. This concentration of voting poweyrhave the effec
of deterring, delaying or impeding actions thatlddee beneficial to you, including actions that nieeysupported by o1
board of directors, and deprive our shareholdeenadpportunity to receive a premium for their commstock as part ¢
sale of our company and might ultimately affectt@rket price of our common stock.

We have broad discretion in the use of proceedsoliained in November 2014 from our IPO and may alte
the net proceeds from the IPO in ways with whichuymay not agree, and if we do not use those proseefflectively
your investment could be harme

We obtained net proceeds of approximately $34.8anifrom the IPO we completed in November 2014. tend
to use the proceeds of the IPO to expand our saldsmarketing efforts, enhance our current prodgain new
marketing approvals, and continue research intd gexeration technology including the Orion I, adlvas for working
capital and general corporate purposes. Our maregfewill have broad discretion over the specifie uf the ne
proceeds that we received in the offering. Our ldtotders may not have an opportunity to evaluate éhonomic
financial or other information on which we base dacisions on how to use our proceeds and will needly upon th
judgment of our management with respect to theofiggoceeds. As a result, our stockholders mayagoee with ou
decisions. If we do not use the net proceeds thatreceived in the offering effectively, our busimesesults o
operations and financial condition could be harmed.

Holders of common stock who purchased shares in HB®, but who do not register and continuously hadthares
in their name for two years will lose the Long Termvestor Right and opportunity to receive additiahshares fron
us if those Long Term Investor Rights are triggered

We granted each purchaser of shares in the IPOLdmg Term Investor Right to receive for no additt
investment or payment up to one additional share&eh share purchased in the offering if the reguénts have be¢
met including:

. the purchaser registers those shares in its naither én certificate or book entry form, within Sfays
following the closing date of the IPO,

» the purchaser continuously holds those shares imaitne until the second anniversary date of thergiadate o
the IPO, and

» the price per share of our common stock does adetat $18.00, which is 200% of the offering primegreate
for any five consecutive trading days during the fwear period after the closing date of this offgri

If the holder of the shares has not timely regedlethe shares purchased in the IPO and does nibthelshare
continuously for the two years after the closingedaf the offering, or if the price per share of cammon stock trade
at 200% of the offering price or greater for anyeficonsecutive trading days during the two yearogeafter the
closing date of the offering, the Long Term InvesRight will terminate and the holder will lose tl@portunity tc
benefit from receipt of shares if this Long Termdator Right is triggered.

Holders who have perfected their LTIRs and are kegpthose shares registered in their names, may enignce
delays in their ability to dispose of those shawesich could cause partial or full loss of their irastment in the ever
of a rapid decline in our share price.

Our shares are susceptible to financial markettVityaand other financial and business relatettsithat can caus
the value of our shares to decline drastically imigh short period of time. Holders who have pedddheir LTIRs an
maintain those shares registered in their namesaxrpgrience delays in their ability timely to dispoof those shar:i
which can result in partial or full loss of themviestment.
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If the Long Term Investor Right is triggered we Wwitecome obligated to deliver additional shares ating to a
formula limited to no more than one share for eadhare acquired in this offering which may still lehto partial or
substantial loss of investment for those holdersontiave perfected their LTIR

If the Long Term Investor Right is triggered foettelivery of up to one share for each share hgld bolder whc
has perfected and retained his LTIR on the two sy@amiversary of the closing date of our IPO, hadsannot b
assured that they will recover their investmenawasid incurring a loss when the additional shamedeun the Long Terr
Investor Right are delivered to you. In the evédm Long Term Investor Right is triggered our oth&rckholders wil
incur dilution and may experience a decline invhkie of their shares.

We do not intend to pay dividends for the foresdediture and, consequently, your ability to achiwa return on
your investment will depend on appreciation in thece of our common stock

We have never declared or paid any dividends orconmmon stock. We intend to retain any earningmtimce the
operation and expansion of our business, and weotlanticipate paying any cash dividends in therfutAs a resul
you may only receive a return on your investmenbim common stock if the market price of our comnsdock
increases.

Future sales and issuances of our equity securit@sights to purchase our equity securities, inding pursuant
to our equity incentive plans, would result in diion of the percentage ownership of our stockholdesnd coulc
cause our stock price to fall.

To the extent we raise additional capital by isguiguity securities; our stockholders may expegesghstantic
dilution. We may sell common stock, convertiblewséies or other equity securities in one or maamsactions at price
and in a manner we determine from time to timew# sell common stock, convertible securities oreothquity
securities in more than one transaction, investoay be diluted by subsequent sales. Such salesaltsayresult ir
material dilution to our existing stockholders, ar&lv investors could gain rights superior to ergstockholders.

The public market for our common stock has beenatdé since completion of our initial public offerig. This
volatility may affect the ability of our investot® sell their shares as well as the price at whitley sell their shares .

We completed our initial public offering in Novemti#014. Since that time, our shares have traded $8.05 pe
share to $24.02 per share and dagdg-trading often has been volatile. This volatilhay continue or increase in t
future. The market price for the shares may beifstgmtly affected by factors such as progresshia development ¢
our technology, progress in our pre-clinical anishichl trials, agreements with research facilite@sco-developmen
partners, commercialization of our technology, cage by third party payers, variations in quartesiyd yearly
operating results, general trends in the medicalcdendustry, and changes in FDA and foreign ratiohs affecting u
and our industry. Furthermore, in recent yearsstbek market has experienced extreme price andnslffluctuation:
that are unrelated or disproportionate to the dpeygperformance of the affected companies. Thasad marke
fluctuations may adversely affect the market pdteur common stock.

Substantial future sales of shares of our commongk in the public market could cause our stock gito fall.

If our common stockholders (including those persahs may become common stockholders upon exergisar
options or warrants) sell substantial amounts af @ammon stock, or the public market perceives #tatkholder:
might sell substantial amounts of our common sttteé,market price of our common stock could dectiigmificantly.
Such sales also might make it more difficult fortassell equity or equityelated securities in the future at a time
price that our management deems appropriate.

We have the right to issue shares of preferred &totf we were to issue preferred stock, it is liik¢o have rights
preferences and privileges that may adversely afftae common stock

We are authorized to issue 10,000,000 shares ahkbtheckpreferred stock, with such rights, preferences
privileges as may be determined from timeitoe by our board of directors. Our board of dioes is empowere(
without stockholder approval, to issue preferrextistin one or more series, and to fix for any setie dividend right:
dissolution or liquidation preferences, redemptwites, conversion rights, voting rights, and othghts, preference
and privileges for the preferred stock. No sharfgsreferred stock are presently issued and oulsigrand we have r
immediate plans to issue shares of preferred stdtie issuance of shares of preferred stock, dépgrah the rights
preferences and privileges attributable to theguretl stock, could adversely reduce the votingtsigimd powers of tr
common stock and the portion of our assets allocfmtedistribution to common stockholders in a ldation event, an
could also result in dilution in the book value glare of our common stock. The preferred stockdcalso be utilizec
under certain circumstances, as a method for gpisdtditional capital or discouraging, delaying oeyenting a chanc
in control of our company, to the detriment of ti@ders of our common stock. We cannot assuretlyauwe will not,



under certain circumstances, issue shares of efenped stock.
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Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comme nts

Not applicable.

Item 2. Pr operti es

Our principal office and facilities are located1&744 San Fernando Road, Building 3, Sylmar, Qaliéo9134z
and consists of approximately 45,351 rentable sqfieet at a base rent of $30,883 per month. Owelexpires i
February 2022 and grants us an option to extentettse term for an additional 60 months period.dNginally rente:
these premises from Mann Biomedical Park LLC, atityeaffiliated with our Chairman of the Board, Add E. Manr
We believe that the terms of this lease are at bsafavorable as those that may have been obt&ioeda nonaffiliated
third party. We believe that these premises arej@ate for our foreseeable needs. In November 2b4industrie
center in which these premises are located wasts@d independent third party.

Our European office is located on the InnovatiorkR& EPFL, Rue Jean Daniel Colladon, CH 1015 LansaTh
lease consists of 180 square meters at a basefr@®79 CHF per month, or currently about $7,1@® month. Ot
lease is currently monthly with a six month notiequired for termination, with the Foundation fbetinnovation Pai
at EPFL.

Item 3. Lega | Pro ceedings

We are not a party to any pending legal proceedatger than those involving Pixium Vision descriiad'Risk
Factors—Risks Related to Intellectual Property @tiater Legal Matters”.

Iltem 4. Reserv ed
PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Relaed Shareholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Edfy
Securities

(a) Market Price, Dividends and Related Matters

Second Sight's common stock is traded on the NASOZeRital Market under the symbol “EYESThe following
table sets forth the high and low closing salesgsriof our common stock as reported on the NASD/AQIt@l Marke
for the following time periods.

High Low

2014
Fourth quarter $ 23.6( $ 10.1¢

On March 13, 2015, the closing sales price repdidedur common stock was $14.28 per share, araf timt dat
there were approximately 239 shareholders of record

We have never declared or paid cash dividends om@amon stock and do not anticipate paying anjddivds it
the foreseeable future.

This chart compares the cumulative total stockholé¢urn on our common stock with that of the NASQ
Composite index and the NASDAQ Medical Equipmemteix The chart assumes $100 was invested at the ofoth
market on November 19, 2014 (the date our commuokdirst commenced trading on NASDAQ) in our conmstock
the NASDAQ Composite index and the NASDAQ Medicguipment index. The comparison assumes reinvestof
dividends. The comparisons shown in the graph belmvbased upon historical data. We caution thaatsthck pric
performance shown in the graph below is not necig$adicative of, nor is it intended to forecatihe potential futur
performance of our common stock.
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COMPARISON OF 7 WEEK CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Second Sight, the NASDAQ Composite Index and the NASDAQ Medical Equipment Index
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11/19/14 11/26/14 12/3/14 12/10/14 12/17/14 12/24/14 12/31/14

Second Sight

Medical

Products, Inc. $ 1000 $ 866 $ 7366 $ 7481 $ 66.1f $ 551: $ 51.3¢
NASDAQ

Composite Inde: $ 100.0C $ 102.4: $102.1¢ $ 100.2i $ 99.3¢ $ 102.1¢ $ 101.3¢
NASDAQ Medical

EquipmentiInde: $ 100.0( $ 1025! $103.5¢ $ 101.8¢8 $ 101.7° $ 104.0: $ 102.8¢

Use of Proceeds from Initial Public Offering

On November 18, 2014, we sold 4,025,000 sharesmahwn stock in our IPO, including 525,000 shardd apor
exercise of the underwriter's over-allotment optpursuant to a registration statement (File No.-338073) that w
initially filed with the Securities and Exchange r@mission in August 2014. Our net proceeds totalgotraimatel
$34.2 million, after offering costs of approximatél5.0 million, including approximately $2.9 miltioin fair value ¢
warrants and shares of common stock issued in ctionewith the underwriting and other services rened for the 1PC
In addition to funding our ongoing business operatj we expect to invest the proceeds of the IPG@umbusiness
expand sales and marketing efforts, enhance ouertuArgus Il product, gain regulatory approvals &mlditiona
indications, and continue research and developimémtnext generation technology. Through Decemider2®14, th
net proceeds from the offering were used as follapgproximately $30.5 million was deposited intoigas cash ar
money market funds, and approximately $3.7 milliwas used to fund ongoing business operations. Nidnihe
proceeds were used for construction of plant, mgléind facilities, the purchase of real estateheracquisition of ar
business.

Iltem 6. Selected Fi nancial Data

The following selected consolidated financial dsit@uld be read in conjunction with “ManagemsriDiscussio
and Analysis of Financial Condition and ResultOgferationsand our consolidated financial statements and ttes
to those consolidated financial statements. Thesaldated statement of operations data set fogtbvb for the yeal
ended December 31, 2014, 2013and 2012 and thelmtaied balance sheet data as of December 31, 2042013 al
derived from, and are qualified in their entiretyfeference to, the Compasyaudited consolidated financial statem
included elsewhere in this Form ¥0- The consolidated balance sheet data as of Desef1, 2012 is derived from 1
audited consolidated financial statements not thetluherein, but which were previously filed witte tBecurities ar
Exchange Commission.
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Net sales
Cost of sales
Gross loss

Operating expenses:
Research and development, net of grants
Clinical and regulatory
Selling and marketing
General and administrative
Total operating expenses

Loss from operations

Interest income

Other income, net

Interest expense on convertible promissory notdd@an payabl

Amortization of discount on convertible promissoigtes

Write-off of unamortized discount on conversiorcofivertible
promissory notes

Net loss

Net loss per common she— Basic and diluted
Weighted average shares outstanding — Basic antkdil

Cash

Money market funds

Working capital

Total assets

Convertible promissory notes payable
Stockholders’ equity (deficiency)

Fiscal Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
3397,85 $ 156493 $ 1,367,22.
3,558,13! 5,629,321 4,396,741

(160,28)) (4,064,38) (3,029,52)
5,040,96' 3,248,46 3,045,15
2,621,91" 3,215,29 3,726,55
6,844,82! 3,301,45; 2,194,591
6,565,46. 4,167,93. 4,025,55:

21,073,17 13,933,14 12,991,86
(21,233,46)  (17,997,52)  (16,021,38)
9,10¢ 7,45¢ 7,51z
11,80¢ 34,76¢ 1,77¢
(1,956,55) (1,588,68) (138,93
(5,077,53)  (3,424,93) (128,09)
(6,954,61)) _ _

$ (35,201,24)

$ (22,968,92)

$ (16,279,12)

147 % (1.0 % (0.79
25,052,80 22,521,43 21,945,58
As of December 31,

2014 2013 2012
$ 61941, $ 62,56¢ $ 144,75
$ 33,999,56 $ 8,611,61. $ 4,310,03i
$ 33,524,99 $ 9,104,43 $ 4,275,97!
$43,069,44  $12,673,42 $ 7,992,57!
$ — $19,211,11 $ 8,273,35!
$34,618,24 $(9,221,07) $(3,043,82)

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of & ncial Condi tion and Results of Operations

The following discussion contains forwalabking statements that involve risks and uncetiigén Our actui
results could differ materially from those antidipdin these forwartboking statements as a result of many factorse
consolidated results of operations for the yeatkedrDecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 are not raegsndicative
of the results that may be expected for any fupeeod. The following discussion should be readdonjunction witl
the consolidated financial statements and the nibteeto included in Part 1V, Item 15 of this Fodf-K and ir
conjunction with the “Risk Factors” included in Phritem 1A of this Form 10-K.

Business Overview

We were founded in 1998 with a mission to devetopnufacture, and market prosthetic devices thabnesisior
to the blind. Our principal offices are locatedSyimar, California, approximately 25 miles northivedowntown Lo
Angeles. We also have an office in Lausanne, Swiétad, that manages our commercial and clinicalrapens ir

Europe and the Middle East.
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Our first commercial product, the Argus Il Systéma retinal prosthesis that can provide some fanat vision t
individuals blinded by retinitis pigmentosa (RPheTArgus Il System is an implantable neurostimatatilevice th:
uses electrical stimulation of the retina (basedhonireless video camera feed) to replace the iomaif the defunc
photo-receptors in RP patients.

Our major corporate, clinical and regulatory mibests include:
* In 1998, we were founded.
* In 2002, we commenced clinical trials for our ptgpe product, the Argus | retinal prosthesis.

 In 2006, we commenced clinical trials for the Argu$System, which later became our first comme
product.

* In 2011, we received marketing approval in Eurdpe Mark) for the Argus Il System.
* In 2013, we received marketing approval in the ethiStates (FDA) for the Argus Il System.

. In 2014, we completed our initial public offeringica began trading on NASDAQ under the syn
“EYES.”

We began selling the Argus Il System in Europehaténd of 2011, in Saudi Arabia in 2012, and in Wttec
States and Canada in 2014. We have limited regylapproval in Canada and Saudi Arabia, and wecargently
applying for full approval. To date, all of our ealhave been made by our direct sales force, bpiaveto add partne
and distributors to enhance our coverage of exjstind future markets. In 2014, we entered intofiost distributior
agreements, that cover the countries of Spain amkley, and we are at various stages of negotiatidtisa number ¢
other distributors for countries in Europe andMiddle East.

We have achieved certain insurance reimbursemelestones in the United States (Medicare Transiti¢tes:
Through Payment, New Technology Add-Payment, and coverage by a humber of insurgiesrga but reimburseme
hurdles remain as not every payer is coveringtéghnology. In Europe, we have achieved governmantbursemel
in Germany and have received a positive reimbursérdecision in France, and additional reimbursensgreing
sought in a number of other countries. Obtainirignbeirsement from governmental or private insuracm@panies
critical to our future commercial success. Dueh® tost of the Argus Il System, our sales will ineited without th
availability of third party reimbursement.

Plan of Operation

We currently market and sell our products in theététhStates, Europe and Saudi Arabia. Over the mextyears
we intend to use approximately $2.0 to $4.0 millafnthe proceeds from our IPO to expand our satekrarketin:
organizations in these existing markets to incresases coverage, market penetration and reventiese markets. Ov
the next 12 to 18 months, we intend to introduee Alngus Il System in additional countries througlr direct sale
force or by working with partners and distributors.

Over the next two years, we intend to use approtéip&4.0 million of the proceeds from our IPO cevdlopmer
and clinical efforts to enhance the external haréwand software of our Argus Il System, which coimgbrove thi
resolution and other performance characteristigh®fsystem. Increasing the resolution of the systeay enhance t
user experience and increase our potential maidetIsnage resolution may be achieved by enharmoede processin
including contrast enhancement and electronic zogmn addition, we believe that, through softwanbancements, \
may be able to create a number of virtual elecsdattween the physical electrodes on the currdéimatémplant. Thi:
could potentially enhance the resolution of exgtilevices by ten-fold or more.

Currently, our Argus Il System is approved for pas suffering from RP. We believe we can expandriheet fo
the Argus Il System beyond RP to patients with szt profound vision loss due to aggated macular degeneratior
AMD. We intend to use approximately $2.0 milliontbe proceeds from our IPO to conduct a pilot studyabout five
patients to evaluate the safety and benefit oftgris I System for use in persons suffering froiB. Recruitment fc
this study began in December 2014 and we plandmmbmplanting in this study in the first half 0025. If results fror
this study are promising, we anticipate beginnintarger scale efficacy trial in 2016 that coulddet marketin
approval for the Argus Il system for AMD patients 2019. We estimate that the cost to completeatiditional tria
would be approximately $4.5 million. If the ArgusSystem is successfully developed and approveddd to tre:
AMD, as to which there can be no assurances, wieveethat the potential addressable market oppitytdor tha
device will significantly exceed our existing RP nkets for the Argus Il System.
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We also plan to also use approximately $5.0 millointhe proceeds from our IPO to conduct preclir
development of a product for cortical stimulatidratt we refer to as the Orion | visual cortical phesis, which w
expect will be able to provide some vision resiorato individuals with almost all unpreventablerfe of blindness
Our objective in designing and developing the Odiafisual cortical prosthesis is to bypass thengetind optic nerv
and to directly stimulate the visual cortex regmithe brain. Human clinical testing is likely take the form of .
feasibility study followed by a premarket approvgivotal trial. The details of these trials will ba#eterminec
collaboratively with the FDA at that time. We cahm@gcurately estimate the timing or exact costheke trials at thi
time. If the Orion | visual cortical prosthesissisccessfully developed and approved for sale, adich there can be r
assurances, we believe that the potential addressadrket opportunity for that device will greatlxceed our existin
RP markets for the Argus Il System.

The amounts that we actually spend for any spepifipose may vary significantly and will dependaonumber o
factors, including, but not limited to, the pacepobgress of our commercialization and developraéfiotts, actual neec
with respect to research and development, cliniggting, regulatory approval, market conditionssui@nce
reimbursement, and changes in or revisions to mduyzt, sales and marketing strategies. Investdrbeavrelying on the
judgment of our management regarding the applicaifche proceeds from the sale of our common s!

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslddghdate No. 2014-15 (ASU 2014-1Hresentation ¢
Financial Statement— Going Concern (Subtopic 205-10)ASU 2014-15 provides guidance as to management’
responsibility to evaluate whether there is sulighdoubt about an entity’ability to continue as a going concern an
provide related footnote disclosures. In connectidgth preparing financial statements for each ahraral interim
reporting period, an entity’ management should evaluate whether there aretiomsdor events, considered in 1
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt aboutrti/’'s ability to continue as a going concern within gear after thi
date that the financial statements are issued ifbinnone year after the date that the financialeshents are available
be issued when applicable). Managemeevaluation should be based on relevant condiaodsevents that are knoy
and reasonably knowable at the date that the finbetatements are issued (or at the date thafirihacial statement
are available to be issued when applicable). Sobatadoubt about an entity’ability to continue as a going conc
exists when relevant conditions and events, corsidie the aggregate, indicate that it is probalée the entity will be
unable to meet its obligations as they become dtlénwone year after the date that the financiateshents are issu
(or available to be issued). ASU 2018-is effective for the annual period ending aflecember 15, 2016, and 1
annual periods and interim periods thereafter.yEaplplication is permitted. The Company is currgrtvaluating thi
impact the adoption of ASU 2014-15 on the Compafipancial statement presentation and disclosures.

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards qaFASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@14-
09 (ASU 2014-09)Revenue from Contracts with Custome&SU 2014-09 will eliminate transaction- and inttys
specific revenue recognition guidance under curtéi®. GAAP and replace it with a principle basegrapch fol
determining revenue recognition. ASU 2009-will require that companies recognize revenugeblaon the value «
transferred goods or services as they occur irctiiract. The ASU also will require additional disure about th
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenug @ash flows arising from customer contracts,udirlg significan
judgments and changes in judgments and assetsnizgedgrom costs incurred to obtain or fulfill ant@act. ASU 201-
09 is effective for reporting periods beginningeafbecember 15, 2016, and early adoption is nahjted. Entities ca
transition to the standard either retrospectivetyas a cumulativeffect adjustment as of the date of adopt
Management is currently assessing the impact toptash of ASU 201499 and has not determined the effect of
standard on the Company’s ongoing financial repgrti

In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standatdisdate No. 2014-08 (ASU 2014-08presentation o
Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, Plamd Equipment (Topic 36C. ASU 201408 amends th
requirements for reporting discontinued operatiand requires additional disclosures about discaetinoperation:
Under the new guidance, only disposals represertisgategic shift in operations or that have aomajfect on the
Companys operations and financial results should be ptedenas discontinued operations. This new accou
guidance is effective for annual periods beginrafitgr December 15, 2014. The Company is currentgtuating the
impact of adopting ASU 2014-08 on the Company'siltsf operations or financial condition.

Management does not believe that any other recesstled, but not yet effective, authoritative guick if currently
adopted, would have a material impact on the Coripdimancial statement presentation or disclosures
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The following discussion and analysis of finandandition and results of operations is based uporconsolidate
financial statements, which have been preparedrfiocmity with accounting principles generally apte in the Unite
States of America. Certain accounting policies astimates are particularly important to the underding of ou
financial position and results of operations arguine the application of significant judgment by esanagement or ¢
be materially affected by changes from period tagaein economic factors or conditions that aresalé of our contrc
As a result, they are subject to an inherent degfemcertainty. In applying these policies, ournagement uses th
judgment to determine the appropriate assumptiotetused in the determination of certain estimathese estimat
are based on our historical operations, our fubusiness plans and projected financial resultstéhms of existin
contracts, our observance of trends in the industfprmation provided by our customers and infaotiova availabl
from other outside sources, as appropriate. See Rdb our consolidated financial statements fonae complet
description of our significant accounting policies.

Revenue Recognition. Our revenue is derived primarily from the sale of Argus Il System, which is implant
during a surgery, and intended to provide sometfonal vision to patients blinded by retinitis pigmtosa (RP). We s
to university hospitals, teaching hospitals, langedical centers, and ambulatory surgical centeesr&ognize reven
when four basic criteria are met: (1) persuasivdaence of an arrangement exists; (2) surgical impkéoon has occurre
(3) the price is fixed or determinable; and (4)ledtability is reasonably assured. We generally aisgomer purcha
orders or purchase agreements to determine thieeegés of an arrangement. Sales transactions aeel lmasprices th
are determinable at the time we accept the custsnprrchase order. In order to determine whethdeaan it
reasonably assured, we assess a number of fairtolsding creditworthiness of the customer and maldinsuranc
coverage. If we determine that collection is naisanably assured, we will defer the recognitiorredfenue unt
collection becomes reasonably assured, which isrgéy upon receipt of payment. We may periodicgiignt specii
terms, such as extended payment terms. We defenueg when these special terms are granted ufitiblaprice it
fixed and collection becomes reasonably assure@ tOuthe nature of our revenue recognition poli€yexording
revenue only after surgical implantation, we haad ho returns related to Argus Il System recordedeaenue.

Stock-Based Compensation.Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards BoaFd\8B") ASC 718 Shar®ase
Payment (“ASC 718"), the Company records stock-hasenpensation expense for all stock-based awards.

Under ASC 718, the Company estimates the fair valustock options granted using the Blg&&holes optio
pricing model. The fair value for awards that axpexted to vest is then amortized on a straliglet-basis over tt
requisite service period of the award, which isegally the option vesting term.

* The grant price of the issuances, with certain ptioss, is determined based on the estimated &lirevof th
shares at the date of grant.

e The risk free interest rate for periods within temtractual life of the option is based on the Wr&asury yiel
in effect at the time of grant.

» As permitted by SAB 107, due to the Companiyisufficient history of option activity, managemetilizes thi
simplified approach to estimate the options exmbtéem, which represents the period of time thatoog
granted are expected to be outstanding.

» Volatility is determined based on average histonicdatilities of comparable companies in similadustry.

. Expected dividend yield is based on current yigldha grant date or the average dividend yield dhe
historical period. The Company has never declaregpadd dividends and has no plans to do so ir
foreseeable future.

Patent Costs. The Company has over 300 domestic and foreign tsatBuie to the uncertainty associated witt
successful development of one or more commerciddple products based on Compayesearch efforts and ¢
related patent applications, all patent costsuiiolg patentelated legal, filing fees and other costs, inahgdinternally
generated costs, are expensed as incurred. Paistst are included in general and administrativeerges in tr
consolidated statements of operations.

Convertible Promissory Notes and Warrants The warrants and embedded beneficial conversioturea
convertible promissory notes are classified astgqunder FASB ASC Topic 815-40 “Derivatives and gied) —
Contracts in Entity’s

42




Own Equity”. The Company allocates the proceeds of the conlefitomissory notes between convertible promis
notes and the financial instruments related to avds associated with convertible promissory not@set on the
relative fair values at the commitment date. Thevalue of the financial instruments related tormaats associated w
convertible promissory notes is determined utitizihe BlackScholes option pricing model and the respectivecatie
proceeds to the warrants is recorded in additigrzadi-in capital. The Company utilized the Bla8kholes optic
valuation model using the same valuation assumgtias described herein for Stock Based Compensalibe
embedded beneficial conversion feature associatéd c@nvertible promissory notes is recognized amhsured k
allocating a portion of the proceeds equal to thansic value of that feature to additional paideapital in accordan:
with ASC Topic 470-20 “Debt — Debt with Conversiand Other Options.The portion of debt discount resulting fr
the allocation of proceeds to the financial instemts related to warrants associated with converpibbmissory notes
being amortized over the life of the convertibl@emissory notes. For the portion of debt discoustlteng from thi
allocation of proceeds to the beneficial converdaature, it is amortized over the term of the sdtem the respecti
dates of issuance.

Long Term Investor Right Each beneficial owner (“IPO Shareholder”) of then@anys common stock, wi
purchased shares directly in the offering (“IPO 1889, may qualify to receive up to one additional shareammor
stock from the Company for each share purchasedberoffering (“IPO Supplemental Sharegiirsuant to the Lor
Term Investor Right that was included with each IBi@are. To qualify for receipt of IPO Supplemer@hbres, an IP
Shareholder was required to take action to bectmmelitect registered owner of its IPO Shares wigttirdays followin:
the closing date of the offering, or by February 2215. Furthermore, IPO Shareholders are requirdwld their IP(
Shares in their own name and not place them ireéstname’or trade them at any time during the 24 month
immediately following the IPO closing date. ThisigpTerm Investors Right is natetachable and transferable onl
limited circumstances.

The Company will issue IPO Supplemental Share®® Shareholders who have not otherwise forfeited thong
Term Investor Right if, during the two-year periotmediately following the IPO closing date, the Gmany’s commo
stock does not trade at or above $18.00 per sRaf¥4 of the IPO price per share) for any five consge day periot
If the Companys common stock trades on its principal exchang2@¢o of the IPO price per share or greater or
consecutive trading days during the two years #lfteiPO closing date, the Long Term Investor Rigititterminate.

The formula to determine the number of IPO Supplgaieshares to be issued on a trigger of the LagmgnTinvestc
Right will be: (i) $18.00 minus (ii) the averagktbe highest consecutive closing prices in anyd89 trading period ¢
the principal exchange during the two years after €losing Date (the “Measurement Averagdiyided by thi
Measurement Average. Fractional shares issuakdequmalifying IPO Shareholder resulting from thécakation will be
rounded up to the next whole share of common stiagéng into account the aggregate number of LoagrTinvestc
Rights of a holder. As an illustrative examplethi& highest average of consecutive closing prises any 90 calend
day period is $10.00 per share, each Lorggm Investor Right will be entitled to 0.80 addital shares of common sta
which is calculated as: ($18.00 - $10.00)/$10.00.

The IPO offering price for purposes of the caldolaof the amount of common stock to be issued boreg Tern
Investor Right will be subject to adjustment in theent of a reorganization, recapitalization oitagh of the Company’
shares, the issuance of a stock dividend or anjlasimvent. The amount of IPO Supplemental Shafesy, to b
issued will be computed by an independent publgpantant as soon as practicable following the sg@miversary (
the Closing Date. The determination by such inddpat public accountant will be final and binding the Compar
and on all qualifying IPO Shareholders and the Camypwill within about 15 days after receipt of weit determinatic
deliver to shareholders certificates evidencingatiditional shares.

The Company has identified and will track IPO Irtees who have perfected their Rights on a quarteslsis. At th
end of each reporting period, the Company will ldise the potential dilutive effect of the Rightcliding the number
common shares that would be issuable on such ld@ged on the actual share price movements sinde@he

The Right is an equity instrument that is accourfiteéchs a component of the actual price per comsiame paid
the investor in the IPO. For basic earnings pareshthe common shares associated with the Rightreated ¢
contingently issuable shares and will not be inetldh basic earnings per share until the actualbmurof shares can
calculated and the shares have been issued.

Results of Operations

Net sales. Our net sales are derived primarily from the sdleus Argus Il System. We began selling our prod
in Europe in 2011, Saudi Arabia in 2012, and thatédhStates and Canada in 2014. Our objective indease ol
product
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revenue over the next several years as we pursueetcialization of our product, as our product lmees more well-
known and accepted in the market, and as insurem@rage becomes more widespread.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales includes the salaries, benefits, nahteverhead, third party costs, warranty, chs
for excess and obsolete inventory, and other cesfaired to make our Argus Il System at our Syln@alifornic
facility. Historically, our cost of sales has bageater than our revenues, which has resultedassgosses. However,
the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2014, doadigher revenues and increased manufacturing batml efficiencie:
we generated a positive gross margin for the firse in our operating history. Our product involvasw an
technologically complex materials and processesw@snove from making small quantities of our pradiac clinical
trials to larger quantities for commercial disttiibm, we are developing new manufacturing techrsqaled process
that we expect to allow us to scale production. &k currently experiencing low yields on our mastifeing proces
but we expect that over the next few years we bglable to refine our processes and improve ounfaaturing yields
Accordingly, as we scale our production over thetriew years, we expect that our cost per unit ddtrease and \
will generate a positive gross profit.

Operating Expenses. We generally recognize our operating expenses asinagr them in four gener
operational categories: research and developmdinicat and regulatory, sales and marketing, andegal an
administrative. Our operating expenses also includen-cash component related to the amortizatiateferred stock-
based compensation allocated to research and gewetd, clinical and regulatory, sales and markesing general ai
administrative personnel. From time to time we heaeeived grants from institutions or agencieshsas the Nation
Institutes of Health, to help fund the some of dost of our development efforts. We have recordede grants .
offsets to the costs as they are incurred to comple related work.

» Research and development expenses consist prinofgignployee compensation and consulting costsectka
the design, development, and enhancements of orantwand potential future products, offset by grawvenu
received in support of specific research projedfs. expense our research and development costepsat
incurred. We expect research and development egpefts increase in the future as we pursue fu
enhancements of our existing product and develdmtdogy for our potential future products, suchtesQOrior
| visual cortical prosthesis. We also expect tehex additional grants in the future that will biéset primarily
against research and development costs.

» Clinical and regulatory expenses consist primaoflgalaries, travel and related expenses for pasd@ngage
in clinical and regulatory functions, as well aseimal and external costs associated with condyatiimical
trials and maintaining relationships with regulst@gencies. We expect clinical and regulatory egpert
increase substantially as we assess the safetgficalcy of enhancements to our current Argus Bt8gn, see
to expand the indications for the Argus Il Systeauch as AMD, and prepare to initiate clinical sésdb
potential future products, such as the Orion | aisortical prosthesis.

. Sales and marketing expenses consist primarilyatdries, commissions, travel and related expenst
personnel engaged in sales, marketing and busamsdopment functions, as well as costs associattt
promotional and other marketing activities. We etmales and marketing expenses to increase stibijaas
we hire additional sales personnel, initiate addai marketing programs, develop relationships wiéw
distributors, and expand the number of doctorsraedical centers that buy and implant our Argusyi$t8m
and any future products.

« General and administrative expenses consist ptliynafisalaries and related expenses for executagal
finance, human resources, information technologgt administrative personnel, as well as recruitimg
professional fees, patent filing costs, insuranegtcand other general corporate expenses, ingludimt. Wi
expect general and administrative expenses todseras we add personnel and incur additional celsted ti
the growth of our business and operation as a @ublinpany.

Interest expense on convertible promissory notefnterest expense is a neash expense associated with
Companys convertible promissory notes. Simple interesidsrued at 7.5% per annum based on the face véline
convertible promissory notes outstanding during ytear. The accrued interest is added to the amountitstandin
debt, but does not earn additional interest. Thiengeof the convertible promissory notes provided dotomati
conversion of principal and accrued interest irjaigy on our IPO, at $5.00 per share. Accordinglyhsequent to o
IPO in the fourth quarter of 2014, the Companyargykr incurred interest expense on the convenitdenissory notes.

Amortization of discount on convertible promissargtes. As discussed more fully above, our conver
promissory notes issued during 2012 and 2013 wsseed with detachable warrants and an embeddedidiel
conversion feature,
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which were recorded as an issuance discount withffaatting credit to additional paid-capital. This issuance disco
is amortized as a narash charge over the term of the convertible prsonis note. The terms of the convert
promissory notes provided for conversion into ggwh an IPO, at $5.00 per share. At December 3132¢h¢
unamortized issuance cost related to our convertgsbmissory notes was $12,032,146. As a resubiunfIPO ir
November 2014, $6,954,610 of unamortized issuanstsavere charged to income due to the automatigersion o
all outstanding convertible promissory notes intonmon stock. Accordingly, subsequent to our IPCthie fourtt
quarter of 2014, the Company no longer amortizedsbiuance discount on the convertible promissotgs

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2014 a2613

Net Sales. Our net sales increased from $1,564,933 in 201%3t897,852 in 2014, an increase of $1,832,91
117%. This increase in product revenue was dueslfmg more implants in 2014 and as well as attajna highe
average selling price for implanted devices. Wd 89 Argus Il Systems that were implanted in 20d@gmpared to z
in the prior year. In 2013, all implants were inr&pe and the Middle East, whereas in 2014, thex@ W6 implants
the United States and Canada and 13 in Europehanilliddle East. The decrease in implants in Eusomkthe Middl
East during 2014, as compared to 2013, is primdrily to sites in Italy and Saudi Arabia, which tbge accounted fi
10 implants in 2013, performing no implants in firet three quarters of fiscal 2014, before resugractivity with ¢
combined 4 implants in the fourth quarter of 20T4he increase in average selling price in 2014 prasarily due tt
establishing a higher selling price on the intrddhcof the Argus Il system in the United Stated &anada, combin
with a lower level of discounting and free good€imrope in comparison to 2013.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales decreased from $5,629,320 in 2053 658,135 in 2014, a decrease of $2,071
or 37%. This decrease is primarily due to incregsiar production volume and yields in 2014 relativ®013, resultin
in more finished goods and salssemblies being accepted into inventory and arldéewel of scrapped product be
expenses. As we manufacture more products, our fiaetaung overhead is spread over more units amctost per un
produced decreases. Also, as our yields improvevemdaccept more units into inventory, the amounsafppe
product that is written off to cost of sales dese=a We will continue to invest in improving our maéacturing
processes, and we expect that manufacturing yweilltdgmprove and cost of sales will decrease rekatio our revenus
over the next few years, although we expect sigaifi fluctuations on a quarter to quarter basis.

Research and development expens®esearch and development expense increased fra?d85866 in 2013 1
$5,040,969 in 2014, an increase of $1,792,503566.5This increase in expense is primarily related/ork developin
our next generation externals, which includes ngenear and a new video processing unit. In 20Bispent $936,2:
more on salaries and other compensation costsith@0913, and we spent $305,255 more on materiaissidting
services and other supplies to make and evaluatetppes. We expect research and development mostsrease in tt
future as we pursue further enhancements of ostiegiproduct and develop technology for our potérfititure cortice
implant product.

Clinical and regulatory expense. Clinical and regulatory expense decreased from 183280 in 2013
$2,621,919 in 2014, a decrease of $593,371, or I86.decrease is primarily attributable to lowevdls of staffing i
2014 compared to 2013. We expect clinical and gy costs to increase in the future as we condugtal trials tc
assess possible enhancements to our existing praahut to assess the safety and efficacy of ourentiproduct fc
treating blindness due to age related macular degéan.

Selling and marketing expense Selling and marketing expense increased from $343@1in 2013 to $6,844,8
in 2014, an increase of $3,543,373, or 107%. Tidsciase in costs is attributable to an increageeiaonnel, as well
higher costs for marketing and customer awarenexgams, as we increased our efforts to commezeidlie Argus
System as, beginning in 2014, we began sellingpooduct in the United States, Canada and Spainle\We expe(
these costs to increase in the future as we inereag selling and marketing resources to acceletht
commercialization of our product, we expect sellargl marketing expense to decrease over time wkgessed as
percentage of product revenue.

General and administrative expenseGeneral and administrative expense increased fréh6%,934 in 2013
$6,565,464 in 2014, an increase of $2,397,530,886.5This increase is primarily attributable to $&8 of highe
stock-based compensation charges in 2014, $823,161 hehigopmpensation costs, which includes $422,643tc
forgiveness of a loan receivable to an officerimarfice stock options, $175,000 of expense relatedstock award to t
Company’s Chairman, as well as higher spendingatent and audit related fees. The stbeked compensation cha
in 2014 includes $637,694 related to option grémisur chief executive officer. After we becomeublic company, w
expect our general and administrative costs
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to increase as we incur the additional costs ofigp@ public company, including higher legal, acdow) insurance
exchange listing, and other costs.

Interest expense on the convertible promissory siotelnterest expense on the convertible promissory s
increased from $1,588,687 in 2013 to $1,956,5580it4, an increase of $367,868, or 23%. This ineréaslue to tr
higher average level of debt outstanding duringd2€dmpared to 2013, although the debt was onlytaudéng for te
and one-half months in 2014. As a result of then@any’s IPO, effective November 18, 2014, all af thompanys
convertible promissory notes were converted intmmmn stock. After the IPO, the Company will noden incu
interest expense on the convertible promissorysote

Amortization of issuance discount on convertibl@npissory notes. Amortization of issuance discount
convertible promissory notes increased from $3324.,n 2013 to $5,077,535 in 2014, an increaselodR,604, ¢
48%. This increase is due to the higher averagel lefvdebt outstanding during 2014 compared to 2@itBough th
debt was only outstanding for ten and dradf months in 2014, and to higher value attributethe beneficial conversi
feature associated with promissory notes issuethg®013, but which was only outstanding for a dr2013. As
result of the Company’'s IPO, effective November 2814, all of the Compang’convertible promissory notes w
converted into common stock. After the IPO, the @any will no longer incur the amortization of isaga discount ¢
convertible promissory notes.

Write-off of unamortized discount on conversiorcafivertible promissory notes. The original terms of tt
Companys convertible promissory notes specified that tbees automatically converted into common stock ha
Company in the event, among other things, of an.IR€cordingly, as of the IPO date, the Company wrofi
$6,954,610 of deferred issuance costs relatedetadhvertible promissory notes that converted daimmon stock.

Net loss. The net loss was $22,968,925 in 2013, as compar$83,201,247 in 2014.

Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2013 a@@12

Overview. During 2012 the Company completed clinical tridiattled to the February 2013 FDA marke
approval for the Argus Il System. In early 2013 thompany shifted resources from product developraed clinica
testing to increase investment in production cdjtesi and commercialization efforts. This shift apending we
accomplished by decreasing staffing levels in #search and development and clinical and regulateggs during tt
first quarter of 2013 while increasing staffing éévin operations and sales and marketing througtheuyear. For tt
2013 year, total employee count decreased fromatQRanuary 1 to 104 at December 31, but the mignoployee
shifted towards production and commercialization.

Net Sales. Our net sales increased from $1,367,224 in 201®1t664,933 in 2013, an increase of $197,70
14%. This increase in product revenue was due ptainting 22 Argus Il systems in 2013, as compaoetbtimplants i
the prior year, offset by a lower average sellimgegin 2013. Our average selling prices in 2018lided from 201z
mainly due to reduced pricing in Europe. In sonsances, we discounted our prices to introduceoastuct into ne
hospital centers, and in other situations, duehtolack of insurance reimbursement or other fundiwg gave pric
discounts to maintain momentum at certain implamters. We believe that as the market for our ppbdacomes mo
established, and as insurance reimbursements ifoméw technology become more standard, pricingunope wil
stabilize. In 2012, our revenues came from Eurap&013, revenue came from Europe and the Middkst. ERroduc
sales did not commence in the United States anddzanntil 2014. We expect smaller price variatidopwed by
price stabilization, as we enter new markets.

Cost of sales. Cost of sales increased from $4,396,746 in 201$5t629,320 in 2013, an increase of $1,232
or 28%. The increase in cost of sales is primatilg to increasing our production capacity, inclgdihe addition ¢
direct and indirect personnel to the operationf,stehile still experiencing low yields and incumg higher charge
related to our allowance for excess and obsoletniory.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, we inetceasir allowance for excess and obsolete inveniy
$1,042,621, or 188%, to $1,595,792. During 2013aise increased our manufacturing activity subslintover 2012
which resulted in a $1,336,083, or 104%, increaseadrk in process inventory at yeamnd as compared to a year eal
The large increase in the allowance during 20X8iesto increased production activity and costsngutie year withol
a similar increase in production of goods that comied to our manufacturing standards. As we inegdise amount |
work in process inventory and manufacturing actiduring the year, we experienced a high levelimitéd use c
unusable subassemblies, as a result of which aling@mwork in process inventory contained a sigaificamount ¢
goods that will be discarded. We also implemented
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design changes during the year, the effect of whiak to make obsolete certain older designs, whiclhe most pa
consisted of sub-assemblies included in work irc@ss inventory.

We anticipate that this increased allowance wiléhaninimal impact on future operations. As thessni ar
discarded in future periods, they will be charggdiast the reserve and we expect that there witidmainal impact o
the Company’s operations.

We will continue to invest in improving our manuiagng processes. We expect manufacturing yieldsnfarove
and production costs to decrease over the nextaexears, although significant fluctuations magwcon a quarter
quarter basis.

Research and development expens®&esearch and development expense increased frd5$B57 in 2012 1
$3,248,466 in 2013, an increase of $203,309, orTMi& increase in expense is primarily due to $82®.0f lower grar
revenue offsets in 2013 compared to 2012, andhimlzer level of stockbased compensation in 2013. Offsetting t
increases, compensation costs were lower in 20&3aa lower level of staffing. We expect reseant developme
costs to increase in the future as we pursue fughkancements of our existing product and deviopnology for ot
potential future cortical implant product.

Clinical and regulatory expense. Clinical and regulatory expense decreased from 283566 in 2012 |
$3,215,290 in 2013, a decrease of $511,266, or T4f6.decrease from 2012 to 2013 is primarily bttrable to a lowt
level of staffing during 2013 compared to 2012, anldwer level of clinical trial activity after th€ompany receive
FDA marketing approval for the Argus Il System. \&ect clinical and regulatory costs will incre@séhe future a
we conduct clinical trials to assess possible eoérments to our existing product, and assess safetythe efficacy ¢
our current product for treating blindness duege eelated macular degeneration, or AMD.

Selling and marketing expense Selling and marketing expense increased from $258®4in 2012 to $3,301,4
in 2013, an increase of $1,106,862, or 50%. Thiseiase in costs is attributable to an increaselimg and marketin
personnel, resulting in higher compensation ca@stsyell as higher marketing and market researeteslcosts. Whi
we expect these costs to increase in the futurereaincrease our selling and marketing resourceactelerate tt
commercialization of our product, we expect sellargl marketing expense to decrease over time wkgressed as
percentage of revenue.

General and administrative expenseGeneral and administrative expense increased fré®2%,558 in 2012
$4,167,934 in 2013, an increase of $142,376, or Aftfer we become a public Company, we expect theests ti
increase as we incur the additional costs of beingublic Company, including higher legal, accoumtimsurance
exchange listing, and other costs.

Interest expense on the convertible promissory saotelnterest expense on the convertible promissory s
increased from $138,934 in 2012 to $1,588,687 itB2@n increase of $1,449,753, or 1,043%. Thiease is due to t
higher average level of debt outstanding during32€dmpared to 2012.

Amortization of issuance discount on convertibl@npissory notes. Amortization of issuance discount
convertible promissory notes increased from $12B,092012 to $3,424,931 in 2013, an increase 02%R3834, ¢
2,574%. This increase is due to the higher avelags of debt outstanding during 2013 compareddd2? and to high:
value attributed to the beneficial conversion feassociated with promissory notes issued in 28%%f December 3
2013, the unamortized issuance discount on theertible promissory notes was $12,032,146.

Net loss. Net loss was $16,279,127 for the year ended DeceBthe2012, as compared to $22,968,925 fo
year ended December 31, 20

Liquidity and Capital Resources

On November 18, 2014, we sold 4,025,000 sharesmfion stock in an IPO, including 525,000 shared spbr
exercise of the underwriter's ovallotment option, at a price of $9.00 per sharer @i proceeds totaled $34,195,¢
after cash offering costs of $2,029,363, and exolydioneash costs of $2,941,109 for the fair value of amits an
common stock issued in connections with servicadesed. We expect to invest the proceeds of theihRfir busines
principally to expand sales and marketing effoeishance current product, gain regulatory approf@sadditiona
indications, and continue research and developmenhext generation technology.

In accordance with the original terms of the Conyparconvertible promissory notes, the notes convarttdthe
Company’s common stock upon the Compan?O. In November 2014, convertible promissoryesatith a face vall
of $29,519,162, plus accrued interest of $3,676,8@verted into 6,639,137 shares of common stock.
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Working capital was $33,524,991 at December 3142@% compared to $9,104,436 at December 31, 24
increase of $24,420,555 or 268%. Working capitas ¥9,104,436 at December 31, 2013, as compai®t 235,975
December 31, 2012, an increase of $4,828,461 d¥%11\®/e use our cash, money market funds and wortamgal tc
fund our operating activities.

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

During 2014, we used $17,092,342 of cash in opegadctivities, consisting primarily of a net lo4s$85,201,24
offset by a norcash charge of $6,954,610 for the write off of undaimed issuance costs related to the autol
conversion of convertible debt triggered by out JRMd other nomash charges of $9,556,534 for amortizatio
discount on convertible notes payable, mash interest accrued on convertible notes payal#ereciation ar
amortization of property and equipment, st@sed compensation, a stock grant to a relatey, gammon stock issu
for services, and common stock issuable and demildag a net change in operating assets and liabilitf $1,597,76
This compares to 2013, when we used $17,426,862ash in operating activities, consisting of a netsl o
$22,968,925, reduced by noash charges of $6,099,284 for depreciation andt&aton of property and equipme
stock-based compensation, amortization of discaumtonvertible notes payable, and reash interest accrued
convertible notes payable, and increased by ahagtge in operating assets and liabilities of $557.,2

During 2013, we used $17,426,862 of cash in opagadctivities, consisting of a net loss of $22,9@8, reduce
by non-cash charges of $6,099,284 for deprecianod amortization of property and equipment, stoage
compensation, amortization of discount on convkrtitptes payable, and neash interest accrued on convertible r
payable, and increased by a net change in operasisgts and liabilities of $557,221. This comp#éoe2012, when w
used $15,321,214 of cash in operating activitieasisting of a net loss of $16,279,127, reduceddiycash charges
$1,499,605 for depreciation and amortization ofperty and equipment, stoddased compensation, amortizatior
discount on convertible notes payable, and cash interest accrued on convertible notes payahtéjncreased by a |
change in operating assets and liabilities of $5e,

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Investing activities in 2014 used $25,948,300 ofhcareflecting $25,387,949 in purchases of moneykei
investments and $560,351 for the purchase of ecgripm

Investing activities in 2013 and 2012 used $4,580,and $2,847,259 of cash, respectively. Of thesels
$4,301,576 related to investments in money markatl$ in 2013, compared to $2,651,176 in 2012. Ve ake
$246,004 to purchase property and equipment in 20dr@pared to $196,083 in 2012.

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Financing activities provided $43,803,962 of cast2014, including of $34,195,637 net proceeds fmm IPO
$9,098,971 from the issuance of 1,299,853 sharesonfmon stock at $7.00 per share in a private piecg an
$509,354 from stock option and warrant exercis@gri€ing activities provided $21,974,617 of cas2@13, includin
$19,519,162 from the issuance of convertible preoris notes primarily to existing investors and $8,685 from th
issuance of 342,955 shares of common stock to ngesfors at $7.00 per share to new investors an8,436 fron
stock option exercises, offset by a convertiblenepayment of $53,666.

Financing activities provided $21,974,617 of cast2013 compared to $17,984,016 in 2012. In 20i&nfEing
activities included $19,519,162 from the issuanteanvertible promissory notes primarily to exigtimvestors ar
$2,400,685 from the issuance of 342,955 share®mimmon stock in a private placement to new invesar$7.00 pe
share and $108,436 from stock option exercisesgbffy a convertible note repayment of $53,66&0h2, financin
activities included $10,000,000 from the issuanteamvertible promissory notes to existing investand $7,880,0¢
from the issuance of 1,576,016 shares of commak giomarily to existing investors at $5.00 perrghaash provide
by stock option exercises was $103,936 in 2012,

Since our inception, we have generated limitedmaes from the sale of products and have financeaperation
primarily through the issuance of common stock,vestible debt (which has been converted into comistogk), an
grants from government agencies and other insiitati Our initial public offering (“IPO”)has provided us wi
sufficient financial resources to fund our opernasidor a period in excess of the next twelve manths a result of tt
IPO, the report by our independent registered puldicounting firm on the Compasy2014 consolidated financ
statements does not containemphasis paragraph with respect to our abilityaiotioue as a going concern, as did
report by our independent registered public acdogritrm on our 2013 consolidated financial statetse
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Although our objective is to increase revenues fppyoduct sales within the next two years, as welicareduce tt
related cost of sales, in an amount sufficient dach operating and cash flow breakeven levelsetiean be n
assurances that we will be successful in this tegdrwe are unsuccessful in being able to fund @perations frot
internal resources within the next two years, we mansider raising additional debt and/or equitpited. Howevel
there can be no assurances that we will be ablgetore any such additional financing on acceptédyies an
conditions or at all.

Financial Commitments

Effective August 2012, we entered into a leaseagent (the “Sylmar Lease"with a Company owned by t
major stockholder of the Company for office spaoe d term of five years that expires on February ZBL7. Th
Sylmar Lease included rental of additional spagaroencing January 1, 2013 and a five year opticertew. The lea:
requires us to pay real estate taxes, insurance@mnedhon area maintenance each year, and is stibjpetiodic cost ¢
living adjustments. In April 2014, the Sylmar Leasas renegotiated with the term ending on Febr@8&ry2022, and
five year option to renew. The new lease also reguus to pay real estate taxes, insurance and conare
maintenance each year and includes automatic isesda base rent each year. In November 2014nthestrial cente
in which Company’s premises are located was solthtmmdependent third party.

Our Swiss subsidiary rents office space in Switaailon a month-toaonth basis for CHF 7,079 (approxima
$7,100) per month.

Future minimum rental payments required under therating leases are as follows for the years elxmbe
31

Years Amount

2015 $ 778,44¢
2016 808,06¢
2017 833,04!
2018 858,03t
2019 883,77
Thereafter 2,004,91!
Total $ 6,166,29:

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qu alitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Interest Rate Sensitivity

The primary objective of our investment activitissto maintain the safety of principal and preseligaidity
without incurring significant risk. We invest cashexcess of our current needs in money markedsuin genere
money market funds are not considered to be sulbjedtterest rate risk because the interest paidsueh fund
fluctuates with the prevailing interest rate. Asdcember 31, 2014, our cash equivalents consgikdy of mone
market funds.

Exchange Rate Sensitivity

The majority of our product sales and operatingeesges are denominated in U.S. dollars. Howevece s
generate revenue outside of the United States @ntawe sales, marketing and other operations eutdidhe Unite
States, we do generate a portion of our revenudrend a portion of our operating expenses in fpmegurrencies. O
primary currency for revenues generated outsidéhef United States is the Euro, and our primary engies fo
operating expenses incurred outside of the Statetha Swiss Franc and the Euro. If the Euro weslegainst the U.
dollar, our revenue as reported in U.S. dollard ddcline. Historically, we have not entered irfiteign currenc
forward contracts to hedge our operating expenpesxe to foreign currencies, but we may do sbénfature.
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Item 8. Financial Statements a nd Su pplementary &a

Our financial statements and supplementary datainext] by this Item are provided in the consolidatieéncia
statements of the Company included in this ForniK1s listed in Item 15(a) of this Form 10-K.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Acco uarits on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Proc edures

Disclosure of Controls and Procedures

Our management carried out an evaluation, understipervision and with the participation of our pipal
executive officer and principal financial officeof the effectiveness of the design and operatiorowf disclosur
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 15&) of the Exchange Act) as of the end of théopecovered by th
report. Based on this evaluation, our principal cetiwe officer and principal financial officer cdnded that ot
disclosure controls and procedures were effectveféhe end of the period covered by this report.

The design of any system of control is based ugwtain assumptions about the likelihood of futuverds, an
there can be no assurance that any design wilesgicin achieving its stated objectives under allrievents, no mat
how remote, or that the degree of compliance whithgolicies or procedures may not deteriorate. Bszaf its inhere
limitations, disclosure controls and procedures malyprevent or detect all misstatements. Accoiglingven effectiv
disclosure controls and procedures can provide oeasonable assurance of achieving their contr@ctibes. It
addition, the design of disclosure controls anctcedures must reflect the fact that there are resotmnstraints and tt
management is required to apply its judgment inuatang the benefits of possible controls and pdoces relative |
their costs.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finangal Reporting

This Annual Report on Form 1K-does not include a report of management's assgggmegarding internal cont
over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13é) of the Exchange Act) or an attestation repafrour independe
registered public accounting firm due to a transitperiod established by the rules of the SEC fawnly public
companies.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reportirg

There have been no changes in our internal cootrel financial reporting that occurred during ouosinrecer
fiscal quarter that have materially affected, @ wrasonably likely to materially affect, our imtak control over financi
reporting.
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Iltem 9B. Othe r Info rmation

None.

PART IlI

Certain information required by Part Il is omittédm this Annual Report on Form ¥-and is incorporated |
reference from our definitive proxy statement retto our 2015 annual meeting of stockholders,spant ti
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act d34,9s amended, also referred to in this AnnuabRem Form 10-
K as our 2015 Proxy Statement, which we expedieanith the SEC no later than April 30, 2015.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers a nd Corporge Governance

Information regarding our directors, including thedit committee and audit committee financial etgeant
executive officers and compliance with Section 1®fathe Exchange Act will be included in our 20RExy Stateme
and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executi ve Comp ensation

The information required by this item regarding @xéve compensation will be included in our 2015
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matte

The information required by this item regardingsédg ownership of certain beneficial owners andnagemer
will be included in our 2015 Proxy Statement anohc®rporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transa@ns, and Director Independence

The information required by this item regarding tair relationships and related transactions anécth
independence will be included in our 2015 Proxytesteent and is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 14. Principal Accoun ting Fees and Services

The information required by this item regardingngipal accounting fees and services will be inctugeour 201
Proxy Statement and is incorporated herein by eefss.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(@) The following documents are included in this AnnReport on Form 10-K:

1.

The consolidated financial statements listed inabeompanying Index to Consolidated Financial &tate:
are filed as part of this report.

All financial schedules have been omitted becads®e required information is either presented in
consolidated financial statements or the notesther is not applicable or required.

The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation $ikd Item 15(b) of this Annual Report on FormKL@re
listed in the Exhibit Index immediately precedihg exhibits and are incorporated herein. We hasmtified ir
the Exhibit Index each management contract and eosgiion plan filed as an exhibit to this Annuap&e or

Form 10-K in response to Item 15(a) (3) of FormKLO-
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SIG NATURE S

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 18{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Regigthas dul
caused this report to be signed on its behalf byutidersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Dated: March 16, 201

Second Sight Medical Products, li

/s/ ROBERT J. QREENBERG
Robert J. Greenberg
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this Report has been signed béipwhe
following persons on behalf of the Registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name

Title Date

/s/ ROBERTJ. GREENBERG

Robert J. Greenbel

/s/ THoMAS B. MILLER

Thomas B. Miller

/s/ ALFRED E. MANN

Alfred E. Mann

/s] WiLLiam J. LINK

William J. Link

/s/ AARON MENDELSOHN

Aaron Mendelsohi

/s] GREGG WILLIAMS

Gregg Williams

Chief Executive Officer and Director

March, 2015

(Principal Executive Officer)

Chief Financial Officer

March 16, 2015

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

Chairman of the Board

Director

Director

Director
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Second Sight Medical Products, Inc. and Subsjdia

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balameets of Second Sight Medical Products, Ind
Subsidiary (the “Company’as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the relatesbiidated statements of operati
comprehensive loss, stockholders’ equity (deficg@nand cash flows for each of the years in thedlgear period ende
December 31, 2014. The Compashiynanagement is responsible for these consolidfitedicial statements. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thegesobidated financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighti
(United States). Those standards require that wa phd perform the audits to obtain reasonablerasse abol
whether the financial statements are free of naltenisstatement. The Company is not required t®haer were w
engaged to perform, an audit of its internal cdriker financial reporting. Our audits included smferation of intern:
control over financial reporting as a basis forigeisig audit procedures that are appropriate ircttmimstances, but r
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on thectiffeness of the Compamyinternal control over financial reportil
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidengparting th
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemestsessing the accounting principles used andfisam estimate
made by management, as well as evaluating the lbVigrancial statement presentation. We believet thar audit
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all materéspects, tr
financial position of the Company as of DecemberZf1 4 and 2013, and the results of its operatmusits cash flow
for each of the years in the thrgear period ended December 31, 2014 in conformiith \&@ccounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Gumbiner Savett Inc.
March 16, 2015

Santa Monica, California
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

ASSETS
Current asset:
Cash
Money market fund
Accounts receivabl
Inventories, ne
Prepaid expenses and other current a:

Total current asse

Property and equipment, r
Deposits and other assi

Total asset

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Current liabilities:

Accounts payabl

Accrued expense

Accrued compensation exper

Accrued clinical trial expense

Deferred revenu

Deferred grant revent

Total current liabilities

Convertible promissory notes, including $15,389,pagable to related
parties, including accrued interest of $1,724,0@%,0f unamortized
discount of $12,032,14

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingenci

Stockholder equity (deficiency)

Preferred stock, no par value, 10,000,000 shatb®rared and none

outstanding
Common stock, no par value; 200,000,000 share®drn#u; shares

issued and outstanding: 35,241,428 and 23,050,008@mber 31,

2014 and December 31, 2013, respecti
Common stock to be issu
Additional paic-in capital
Notes receivable, including amount due from arceffiof $0 and

$423,217 at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 28d/®ctively,

to finance stock option exercis
Accumulated other comprehensive |
Accumulated defici

Total stockholder equity (deficiency

Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity

December 31

2014 2013

$ 619,41: $ 62,56t
33,999,56 8,611,61.
707,64 468,64
5,721,99 2,346,77!
927,57 298,22
41,976,18 11,787,81
1,004,64 723,47
88,61 162,13

$ 4306944 $  12,673,42
$ 513,10 $ 314,32
1,412,38: 662,88:
1,361,89. 1,146,02
488,91( 491,26

599,90 68,87
4,075,001 —
8,451,19 2,683,38

— 19,211,11

8,451,19 21,894,49
163,171,00 88,311,19
166,25( —
24,590,36 20,785,49
(171,43 (587,54)
(473,97) (267,495
(152,663,96) (117,462,72)
34,618,24 (9,221,07)

$ 4306944 $  12,673,42

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEME NTS OF OPERATIONS

Net sales
Cost of sale!
Gross los:

Operating expense
Research and development, net of gr.
Clinical and regulator
Selling and marketin
General and administrati\
Total operating expens

Loss from operation

Interest incom

Other income, ne

Interest expense on convertible promissory notels
loan payabl¢

Amortization of discount on convertible promissory
notes

Write-off of unamortized discount on conversion of
convertible promissory nott

Net loss
Net loss per common she basic and dilute:

Weighted average shares outstanding — basic and
diluted

Years Ended December 31

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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2014 2013 2012
$ 339785 $ 156493 $ 1,367,222
3,558,13! 5,629,321 4,396,741
(160,285 (4,064,38) (3,029,52)
5,040,96' 3,248,46/ 3,045,15
2,621,91' 3,215,291 3,726,55
6,844,82! 3,301,45; 2,194,591
6,565,46. 4,167,93 4,025,55:
21,073,17 13,933,14 12,991,86
(21,233,46) (17,997,52) (16,021,38)
9,10¢ 7,45¢ 7,51z

11,80¢ 34,76¢ 1,77t
(1,956,55) (1,588,68) (138,93,
(5,077,53) (3,424,93) (128,09)
(6,954,611 — —
$ (35201,24) $ (22,968,92) $ (16,279,12)
$ (141 $ (1.0 $ (0.74)
25,052,80 22,521,43 21,945,58




SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPR EHENSIV E LOSS

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Net loss $ (35201,24) $ (22,968,92) $ (16,279,12)
Other comprehensive los
Foreign currency translation adjustme (206,474 (82,364 (43,539
Comprehensive los $ (35,407,72) $ (23,051,28) $ (16,322,66)

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCK HOLDERS' EQUITY ( DEFICIENCY)

Balance, Decemb
31, 2011
Issuance of shares
common stock in
connection with
private placemer
Fair value of warrant
issued in
connection with
convertible
promissory note
Fair value of
beneficial
conversion featur
in connection witt
convertible
promissory note
Exercise of stocl
options
Stocl-basec
compensation
expense
Repayment of note
receivable for
stock option
exercises, ne
Comprehensive los
Net loss
Foreign currenc!
translation
adjustment
Comprehensive los
Balance, Decemb
31, 2012
Issuance of shares
common stock in
connection with
private placemer
Fair value of warrant
issued in
connection with
convertible
promissory note
Fair value of
beneficial
conversion featur
in connection witt
convertible
promissory note
Exercise of stocl
options
Stocl-basec
compensation
expense
Notes receivable
including amount
due from officer
of $100,000 for
stock option
exercises, ne
Comprehensive los
Net loss
Foreign currenc!
translation
adjustment
Comprehensive los
Balance, Decemb
31, 2013

Notes
Receivable Accumulated Total
Common Stock Additional for Stock Other Stockholders’
Common Stock Issuable Paid-in Option Comprehensive Accumulated Equity

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Exercises Loss Deficit (Deficiency)
20,771,80 $ 77,585,13 — $ — $ 3,522,556 $ (354,624 $ (141,590 $ (78,214,66) $ 2,396,81!
1,576,011 7,880,08! — — — — — — 7,880,081
— — — — 1,044,64 — — — 1,044,64

— — — — 945,501 — — — 945,50(

27,43( 100,54 — — — — — — 100,54

— — — — 907,86: — — — 907,86:

— — — — — 3,38¢ — — 3,38¢
— — — — — — —  (16,279,12) (16,279,12)
— — — — — — (43,53¢) — (43,53%)
— — — — — — (43,53  (16,279,12) (16,322,66)
22,375,24 $ 85,565,76 — 3 —$ 6442057 $ (351,23) $ (185,139 $ (94,493,79)$  (3,043,82)
342,95! 2,400,68! — — — — — — 2,400,68!
— — — — 3,107,37! — — — 3,107,37!

— — — — 10,487,64 — — — 10,487,64
331,87: 344,74; — — — — — — 344,74:
— — — — 769,891 — — — 769,89t
— — — — — (236,30f) — — (236,301)
— — — — — — —  (22,968,92) (22,968,92)
— — — — — — (82,36¢) — (82,36)
— — — — — — (82,364  (22,968,92) (23,051,28)
23,050,07 $ 88,311,19 — 3 — $ 20,78549 $ (587,54) $ (267,49) $(117,462,72) $  (9,221,07)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DE FICIENCY)

Issuance of commc
stock in connection
with initial public
offering

Issuance costs of initii
public
offering

Fair value of warrant
issued in connectior
with initial public
offering

Issuance of commc
stock in connection
with conversion
of convertible
promissory
notes

Issuance of common
connection with
warrant
exercise

Issuance of commc
stock in connection
with private
placement

Finder¢ fee paid or
private
placement

Exercise of stocl
options

Stocl-basec
compensation
expense

Common stocl
cancelled

Stock issued il
connection with
professional
services

Common stock issuab
for services

Stock grant in connectit
with services by a
director

Repayment of note
receivable for stock
option exercises,
net

Forgiveness of note
receivable from an
officer for stock
option
exercises

Comprehensive los
Net loss
Foreign currenc

translation
adjustment

Comprehensiv:
loss

Balance, December 3
2014

(Continued)
Notes

Receivable Accumulated Total
Common Stock Additional for Stock Other Stockholders’

Common Stock Issuable Paid-in Option ~ Comprehensive Accumulated Equity

Shares Amount Shares  Amount Capital Exercises Loss Deficit (Deficiency)

4,025,001 36,225,00 — — — — — — 36,225,00
— (4,970,47) — — — — — — (4,970,47)
— — — — 2,771,60: — — — 2,771,60.
6,639,13 33,195,53 — — — — — — 33,195,53
2,05¢ 10,29t — — — — — — 10,29t
1,299,85! 9,098,97 — — — — — — 9,098,97
64,38¢ 450,68t — — (450,689 — — — —
115,02¢ 505,59! — — — — — — 505,59!
— — — — 1,474,64! — — — 1,474,64.
(1,329 (9,30¢) — — 9,30¢ — — — —
22,21t 178,50! — — — — — — 178,50!
— — 16,20« 166,25( — — — — 166,25(
25,00( 175,00( — — — — — — 175,00(
— — — — — (6,536 — — (6,536)
— — — — — 422,64: — — 422,64!
_ — — — — — — (35,201,24) (35,201,24)
— — - — — — (206,47 — (206,47,
— — — — — — (206,474 (35,201,24) (35,407,72)
35,241,42. $ 163,171,00 16,20 $ 166,25($ 24,590,36 $ (171,430)$ (473,97)$ (152,663,96)$  34,618,24

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanassients.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF C ASH F LOWS

Cash flows from operating activitie
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash irsed
operating activities
Depreciation and amortization of property and
equipmen
St Stoclbased compensatic
Stock grant in connection with services by a dive
Forgiveness of notes receivable related to stock
option exercist
Amortization of discount on convertible notes
payable
Non-cash interest accrued on convertible notes
payable

Years Ended December :

Write off of unamortized discount on conversion of

convertible promissory note

Common stock issued for research and develop
agreemen

Common stock issuable for servic

Changes in operating assets and liabilit
Restricted cas
Accounts receivabl
Grants receivabl
Inventories
Prepaid expenses and other as
Inventories Accounts payak
Accrued expense
Accrued compensation expen:
Accrued clinical trial expenst
Deferred revenu
Deferred grant revent

Net cash used in operating activit

Cash flows from investing activitie
Purchases of property and equipm
Investment in money market funds

Net cash used in investing activiti

Cash flows from financing activitie
Proceeds from sale of common st
Proceeds from exercise of common stock opt
Repayment of convertible promissory n
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes pa
Proceeds from exercise of warrants attached to

convertible notes payab
Net cash provided by financing activiti

Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Cash:
Net increase (decreas
Balance at beginning of ye

Balance at end of ye.

2014 2013 2012

$ (35,201,24) (22,968,92) $ (16,279,12)
279,17 315,77 324,71
1,474,64! 769,89 907,86
175,00 — —
422,64 — —
5,077,53! 3,424,93 128,09°
1,952,28; 1,588,68 138,93
6,954,61! — _
9,00( — —
166,25( — —

— 163,57! (163,570)
(239,00 (148,31 97,43
— 47,56’ 68,86:
(3,375,22) (559,88 (595,73
(555,83 (34,177 (62,397
198,77¢ (417,05() 492,48:
749,50 176,201 (129,919
215,86t 283,78t (318,761
(2,357) 29,52: 65,26(
531,02¢ (98,459 4,65t
4,075,00! — —
(17,092,34) (17,426,86) (15,321,21)
(560,35 (246,00 (196,08))
(25,387,94) (4,301,57) (2,651,17)
(25,948,30) (4,547,58)) (2,847,25))
43,294,60 2,400,68! 7,880,08!
499,05¢ 108,43 103,93

— (53,66¢) —

— 19,519,16 10,000,00

10,29¢ — —
43,803,96 21,974,61 17,984,01
(206,47 (82,369 (43,53%)
556,84 (82,189 (227,99%)
62,56 144,75 372,74

$ 619,41 6256 $ 144,75.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financitdsients.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.

AND SUBSIDIARY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Continued)

Supplemental cash flow information:

Non-cash financing and investing activities:
Fair value of warrants issued in connection with
convertible promissory notes
Fair value of warrant issued as part of underwgit
fee for the Company’s initial public offering
Fair value of beneficial conversion feature issine
connection with convertible promissory notes

Employee exercise of stock options through sec
promissory notes

Principal and accrued interest on notes payable
converted to common stock

Common stock issued in connection with finder
paid on private placements

Common stock issued for professional services
rendered in connection with initial public offeri

Years Ended December 31,

2014

2013

2012

3,107,37!

1,044,64!

2,771,60.

10,487,64

945,50(

252,16}

2,511

33,195,53

450,68t

@ |8 |l&v ||

169,50!

@ |8 |&v ||

A |8 |8 |7

See accompanying notes to consolidated financ#tsients.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business Operations

Second Sight Medical Products, Inc. (“Second Sightthe Company”)formerly Second Sight LLC, was founc
in 1998 as a limited liability company and was sthgently incorporated in the State of Californi203. Second Sig
develops, manufactures and markets implantableth@tic devices that can restore some functionabwiso patient
blinded by outer retinal degenerations, such amRstPigmentosa.

In 2007, Second Sight formed Second Sight (Swirel] Sarl, initially to manage clinical trials fids products i
Europe, and later to manage sales and marketimiiope and the Middle East. As the laws of Switeadl require
least two corporate stockholders, Second Sighttggwand) Sarl is 99.5% owned directly by the Comypand 0.59
owned by an executive of Second Sight, who is gctis a nominee of the Company. Accordingly, Sec8iuh!
(Switzerland) Sarl is considered 100% owned foafiicial statement purposes and is consolidated Séttond Sight f
all periods presented.

The Companys current product, the Argus Il system, enteredicdi trials in 2006, received CE Mark approval
marketing and sales in the European Union (“EWY)2011, and approval by the United States Food Bnat
Administration (“FDA”) for marketing and sales in the United States inr320he Company began selling its produ
Europe in 2011, in Saudi Arabia in 2013, and inWimited States and Canada in 2014.

Since its inception, the Company has generatedddnievenues from the sale of products and hasdedh it
operations primarily through the issuance of comratmtk, convertible debt (which has been conveirtéal commol
stock), and grants primarily from government agesiciThe Company’s initial public offering (“IPOf) Novembe
2014 has provided it with sufficient financial resces to fund its operations for a period in exagsthe next twelv
months. As a result of the IPO, the report by tr@m@anys independent registered public accounting firmtloa
Company’s 2014 consolidated financial does notaioran emphasis paragraph with respect to the Coympability tc
continue as a going concern, as did the reporhbydompanys independent registered public accounting firmtre
Company'’s 2013 consolidated financial statements.

Although the Companyg’ objective is to increase revenues from produessaithin the next two years, as well a
reduce the related cost of sales, in an amounicgrft to reach operating and cash flow breakeeenrls, there can
no assurances that the Company will be successthls regard. If the Company is unsuccessful ingable to fund il
operations from internal resources within the resd years, the Company may consider raising additiolebt and/
equity capital. However, there can be no assuratitasthe Company will be able to secure any sutiitiana
financing on acceptable terms and conditions atlat

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statememiside the financial statements of Second Siglat &acon
Sight Switzerland. Intercompany balances and tiitses have been eliminated in consolidation.

Accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are stated net of awatioce for doubtful accounts. The Company performgoon¢
credit evaluations of its customefaiancial condition and generally requires no deltal from its customers or inter
on past due amounts. Management estimates theaalt@vfor doubtful accounts based on review andyaisab
specific customer balances that may not be cdilkectind how recently payments have been receivedouxts ar
considered for writeff when they become past due and when it is detexinthat the probability of collection
remote. There was no allowance for doubtful accoahDecember 31, 2014 and 2013.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or marttetermined by the first-in, firstat method. Inventories cons
primarily of raw materials, work in progress andighed goods, which includes all direct materiahdr and otht
overhead costs.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegCont’d)

The Company establishes a reserve to mark dowmventory for estimated unmarketable inventory édoathe
difference between the cost of inventory and thieneded net realizable value based on assumptibogtdhe usabilit
of the inventory, future demand and market condgidf actual market conditions are less favordiden those project
by management, additional inventory reserve manehaired.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at historiaadt dess accumulated depreciation and amortizi
Improvements are capitalized, while expendituresriaintenance and repairs are charged to expengsewsed. Upo
disposal of depreciable property, the appropriat®perty accounts are reduced by the related cogtsaacumulate
depreciation. The resulting gains and losses dlected in the consolidated statements of operation

Depreciation is provided for using the straitjihe method in amounts sufficient to relate thetoolsassets f
operations over their estimated service lives. ekakl improvements are amortized over the shoft¢helife of the
asset or the related lease term. Estimated useds| of the principal classes of assets are asvisl|

Lab equipmen 5-7 years

Computer hardware and softwz 3-7 years

Leasehold improvemen 1-5 years or the term of the lease, if sha
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 5-10 years

The Company reviews its property and equipmentifigpairment annually or whenever events or chang
circumstances indicate that the carrying valueughsassets may not be recoverable. There were pairiiment losse
recognized in 2014 and 2013.

Depreciation and amortization of property and emgipt amounted to $279,179, $315,770 and $324,7i1thé
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 ctasge.

Research and Development

Research and development costs are charged totioperén the period incurred and amounted to $5%89
$3,248,466 and $3,045,157 net of grant revenuehtoyears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and g ctively.

Patent Costs

The Company has over 300 domestic and foreign tmat&ue to the uncertainty associated with the esgfo
development of one or more commercially viable piadgl based on Compasytesearch efforts and any related pi
applications, all patent costs, including patesitted legal, filing fees and other costs, inahgdinternally generatt
costs, are expensed as incurred. Patent costs$666617, $669,011 and $689,633 for the years ebdegmber 3.
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively, and are includedeneral and administrative expenses in the alimaec
statements of operations.

Revenue Recognition

The Companys revenue is derived from the sale of its Argusetinal implant, which is implanted during ret
surgery to provide limited vision to patients bldby Retinitis Pigmentosa.

The Company sells to university hospitals, teachiogpitals and large medical centers. The Compaoggnize
revenue when four basic criteria are met: (1) pesime evidence of an arrangement exists; (2) salrgigplantation he
occurred; (3) the price is fixed or determinabled 4) collectability is reasonably assured. ThenBany generally us
customer purchase orders or contracts to detertiéexistence of an arrangement. Sales transactrerisased on pric
that are determinable at the time
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegCont’d)

that the customes’ purchase order is accepted by the Company. ker deddetermine whether collection is reason
assured, the Company assesses a number of faatgling creditworthiness of the customer and ro&dinsuranc
coverage. If the Company determines that colleasamot reasonably assured, the Company will diserecognition ¢
revenue until collection becomes reasonably asswvbith is generally upon receipt of payment. ThemPany ma
periodically grant special terms, such as extenqasanent terms. The Company defers revenues whea #pecial tern
are granted until a final price is fixed and cdil@s becomes reasonably assured. Due to the nafute Companyg
revenue recognition policy of recording revenueyatter surgical implantation, the Company has hadeturns relate
to Argus Il System recorded as revenue.

Grant Receipts and Liabilities

From time to time, the Company receives grants tedp fund specific development programs. Any ants
received pursuant to grants are offset againstdlaed operating expenses as the costs are idcidging the yea
ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 grantst cdfg@inst operating expenses were $19,245, $174a56
$601,255, respectively.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymaiith accounting principles generally acceptedhia Unitet
States requires management to make estimates anthpisons. These estimates and assumptions affeateporte
amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure ottiogent assets and liabilities at the date offitencial statements a
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegydhereporting period. Actual amounts could diffeaterially fron
those estimates.

Concentration of Risk
Credit Risk

Financial instruments that subject the Companydiecentrations of credit risk consist primarily afst, mone
market funds, and trade accounts receivable. Thmpaay maintains cash and money market funds withnfiia
institutions that management deems reputable, @tich@s, cash balances may be in excess of FDICS#R@ insuranc
limits. The Company extends differing levels ofditéo customers, and typically does not requiréateral.

The Company also maintains a cash balance at aiha®Witzerland. Accounts at such bank are insunpedo ai
amount specified by the deposit insurance agen8watzerland.

Customer Concentration

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 20128ah4d, the following customers comprised more thd% bi
revenues

2014 2013 2012
Customer 1 21% 0% 0%
Customer 2 10% 0% 0%
Customer 3 6% 13% 0%
Customer 4 3% 31% 1%
Customer 5 3% 0% 2%
Customer 6 0% 13% 0%
Customer 7 0% 12% 21%
Customer 8 0% 7% 32%
Customer 9 0% 6% 14%
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegCont’d)

As of December 31, 2014 and 2013, the followingamers comprised more than 10% accounts receivable:

2014 2013
Customer 1 32% 9%
Customer 2 20% 45%
Customer 3 13% 0%
Customer 4 13% 0%
Customer 5 0% 21%
Customer 6 0% 20%

Geographic Concentration

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@ab#8, regional revenue, based on customer locatarsiste
of the following:

2014 2013 2012
United States 47% 0% 0%
Germany 16% 32% 75%
Canada 10% 0% 0%
Italy 8% 18% 21%
Spain 9% 0% 0%
Saudi Arabia 3% 31% 1%
France 3% 7% 0%
Netherlands 0 13% 0%

Sources of Supply
Several of the components, materials and servised im the Compang’current Argus Il product are available fi

only one supplier, and substitutes for these itearsnot be obtained easily or would require subistadiesign o
manufacturing modifications. Any significant proinieexperienced by one of the Compangble source suppliers co
result in a delay or interruption in the supplycoimponents to the Company until that supplier ctimesproblem or €
alternative source of the component is located qudlified. Even where the Company could qualifyeiadative
suppliers, the substitution of suppliers may beadtigher cost and cause time delays that impedecdh@mercie
production of the Argus II, reduce gross profit gias and impact the Compagyabilities to deliver its products as r

be timely required to meet demand.

Foreign Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statemasisf December 31, 2014 and 2013 include assetarging tc
approximately $2,091,000 and $729,000, respectivelgating to operations of the Company in Switzed. It is alway
possible unanticipated events in foreign countiadd disrupt the Company’s operations.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The authoritative guidance with respect to fairueaéstablishes a fair value hierarchy that pricegithe inputs
valuation techniques used to measure fair value timee levels, and requires that assets andiliabilcarried at fa
value be classified and disclosed in one of thegegories, as presented below. Disclosure as risfaes in and out
Levels 1 and 2, and activity in Level 3 fair valmeasurements, is also required.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegCont’d)

Level 1. Observable inputs such as quoted pricestine markets for an identical asset or liabilitgt the Compar
has the ability to access as of the measurement &atancial assets and liabilities utilizing Levelinputs includ
active-exchange traded securities and exchangetolesevatives.

Level 2. Inputs, other than quoted prices includethin Level 1, which are directly observable ftretasset «
liability or indirectly observable through corroladion with observable market data. Financial asaets$ liabilitie:
utilizing Level 2 inputs include fixed income seities, non-exchange based derivatives, mutual fuadd fairvalue
hedges.

Level 3. Unobservable inputs in which there idditbr no market data for the asset or liability ethrequires tt
reporting entity to develop its own assumptionsnafcial assets and liabilities utilizing Level 3piuts includ
infrequently-traded non-exchangased derivatives and commingled investment fuadd,are measured using pre
value pricing models.

The Company determines the level in the fair vdliggarchy within which each fair value measurenfahis in its
entirety, based on the lowest level input thaigsificant to the fair value measurement in itsiety. In determining tr
appropriate levels, the Company performs an armbfsihe assets and liabilities at each reportirgpgd end.

Money market funds are the only financial instruiriat is measured and recorded at fair value erCthmpanyg
balance sheet, and they are considered Level htuatusecurities in both 2013 and 2014.

Stock-Based Compensation

Pursuant to Financial Accounting Standards BoaRAS8B”) ASC 718 Share-Based Payment (“ASC 718Hg
Company records stock-based compensation expena# $tock-based awards.

Under ASC 718, the Company estimates the fair valustock options granted using the Bld&&holes optio
pricing model. The fair value for awards that axpexted to vest is then amortized on a straliglet-basis over tt
requisite service period of the award, which isegally the option vesting term.

The fair value of each stock option award is estman the date of grant using the Bl&tholes option valuatis
model. The assumptions used in the Black-Scholestian model are as follows:

e The grant price of the issuances, with certain ptioms, is determined based on the estimated &irevof thi
shares at the date of grant.

e The risk free interest rate for periods within ttentractual life of the option is based on the Wr&asury yiel
in effect at the time of grant.

» As permitted by SAB 107, due to the Comparigsufficient history of option activity, managemeitilizes th
simplified approach to estimate the options exmktéem, which represents the period of time thatoog
granted are expected to be outstanding.

e Volatility is determined based on averagedrisal volatilities of comparable companies in gamindustry.

» Expected dividend yield is based on current yididhe grant date or the average dividend yield dhe
historical period. The Company has never declaregpaid dividends and has no plans to do so ir
foreseeable future.

Long Term Investor Right

Each beneficial owner (“IPO Shareholder”) of then@pany's common stock, who purchased shares directlye
offering (“IPO Shares”)may qualify to receive up to one additional shareammon stock from the Company for e
share purchased in the offering (“IPO SupplemeBkares”pursuant to the Long Term Investor Right that werduidec
with each IPO Share.
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SECOND SIGHT MEDICAL PRODUCTS, INC.
AND SUBSIDIARY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of Significant Accounting PoliciegCont’d)

To receive IPO Supplemental Shares, within 90 dajswing the closing date of the offering, or bglifuary 22, 201
an IPO Shareholder was required to take actioretmime the direct registered owner of its IPO Shdraghermore
IPO Shareholders are required to hold their IPOr&hmn their own name and not place them in “stne@he”or trade
them at any time during the 24 month period immediyafollowing the IPO closing date. This Long Tetnvestor:
Right is non-detachable and transferable onlymitéd circumstances.

The Company will issue IPO Supplemental Share®@ $hareholders who have not otherwise forfeited thonc
Term Investor Right if, during the two-year periotmediately following the IPO closing date, the Gmany’s commo
stock does not trade at or above $18.00 per sRaG¥4 of the IPO price per share) for any five contige day periot
If the Companys common stock trades on its principal exchang#0@¢o of the IPO price per share or greater or
consecutive trading days during the two years #lfiteiPO closing date, the Long Term Investor Rigtitterminate.

The formula to determine the number of IPO SupplaaieShares to be issued on a trigger of the LagmgnTinvestc
Right will be: (i) $18.00 minus (ii) the averagetbe highest consecutive closing prices in any &p tdading period ¢
the principal exchange during the two years after €Closing Date (the “Measurement Averagdiyided by th
Measurement Average. Fractional shares issuatdequealifying IPO Shareholder resulting from thecoddtion will be
rounded up to the next whole share of Common Stag¢fng into account the aggregate number of Loamillnvestc
Rights of a holder. As an illustrative examplethié highest average of consecutive closing priees any 90 calend
day period is $10.00 per share, each Larggm Investor Right will be entitled to 0.80 addital shares of common sta
which is calculated as: ($18.00 - $10.00)/$10.00.

The IPO offering price for purposes of the caldolaof the amount of common stock to be issued boreg Tern
Investor Right will be subject to adjustment in thent of a reorganization, recapitalization ortagh of the Company’
shares, the issuance of a stock dividend or anjlasimvent. The amount of IPO Supplemental Shafesny, to b
issued will be computed by an independent publepactant as soon as practicable following the sg@miversary «
the Closing Date. The determination by such inddpethpublic accountant will be final and binding the Compan
and on all qualifying IPO Shareholders and the Camypwill within 15 days after receipt of written tdeminatior
deliver to shareholders certificates evidencingattiditional shares.

The Company has identified and will track IPO Irntees who have perfected their Rights on a quartealsis. At th
end of each reporting period, the Company will ldise the potential dilutive effect of the Right¢linding the number
common shares that would be issuable on suchlofaded on the actual share price movements sindB@he

The Right is an equity instrument that is accouritedhs a component of the actual price per comsiane paid k
the investor in the IPO. For basic earnings pereshdne common shares associated with the Rightreeged &
contingently issuable shares and will not be inetlith basic earnings per share until the actualbsurof shares can
calculated and the shares have been issued.

Convertible Promissory Notes and Warrants

The warrants and embedded beneficial conversiomrieaf convertible promissory notes are classifisdequit
under FASB ASC Topic 815-40 “Derivatives and Hedgir- Contracts in Entity’'s Own Equity'The Compan
allocates the proceeds of the convertible promyssmtes between convertible promissory notes amd fitancia
instruments related to warrants associated withvexdible promissory notes based on their relataie ¥alues at tt
commitment date. The fair value of the financiatioments related to warrants associated with atible promissor
notes is determined utilizing the Blackcholes option pricing model and the respectivecatied proceeds to f
warrants is recorded in additional paid-in capitdle Company utilized the Blackeholes option valuation model us
the same valuation assumptions as described Here8tock Based Compensation. The embedded bealetmnversio
feature associated with convertible promissory sitdeecognized and measured by allocating a podidhe proceec
equal to the intrinsic value of that feature toitdddal paid-in capital in
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accordance with ASC Topic 470-20 “Debt — Debt withnversion and Other OptionsThe portion of debt disco.
resulting from the allocation of proceeds to thaaficial instruments related to warrants associatitid convertible
promissory notes is being amortized over the lif¢he convertible promissory notes. For the portidrdebt discoul
resulting from the allocation of proceeds to thedfial conversion feature, it is amortized ovag term of the not
from the respective dates of issuance.

Comprehensive Income or Loss

The Company complies with provisions of FASB AS®2Zomprehensive Income, which requires compai
report all changes in equity during a period, exdbpse resulting from investment by owners andritistions tc
owners, for the period in which they are recognizedmprehensive income is defined as the changeuity during
period from transactions and other events from omwner sources.

Comprehensive and other comprehensive income (issgported on the face of the financial statesieRbr th
years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 chanzi®e income (loss) is the total of net inconesg) and oth
comprehensive income (loss) which, for the Compaowsists entirely of foreign currency translatamjustments ar
there were no material reclassifications from ott@nprehensive loss to net loss during the yeadsdDecember 3
2014, 2013 and 2012.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transactions

The financial statements and transactions of tHesidiary’s operations are reported in the local (functic
currency of Swiss francs (CHF) and translated &dollars in accordance with U.S. GAAP. Assets katlllities ol
those operations are translated at exchange raefeict at the balance sheet date. The result@mgsgand losses frc
translating foreign currency financial statements eecorded as other comprehensive income (lossyeries ar
expenses are translated at the average exchaeg®rahe reporting period. Foreign currency tratish gains (losse
resulting from exchange rate fluctuations on tratisas denominated in a currency other than theidor operations’
functional currencies are included in expensebénconsolidated statements of operations.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under an asddiability approach for financial accountingdareportin
for income taxes. Accordingly, the Company recogsideferred tax assets and liabilities for the etgakimpact ¢
differences between the financial statements amdath basis of assets and liabilities.

The Company records a valuation allowance to redtsogeferred tax assets to the amount that is rikely thar
not to be realized. In the event the Company waketermine that it would be able to realize itsediefd tax assets in |
future in excess of its recorded amount, an adjestrto the deferred tax assets would be creditezpéwations in tt
period such determination was made. Likewise, shtheé Company determine that it would not be ablestilize all c
part of its deferred tax assets in the future,djnsdment to the deferred tax assets would be eldatig operations in tl
period such determination was made. The Companyird@sred losses for tax purposes since inceptiod ha
significant tax losses and tax credit carryforwarsese amounts are subject to valuation allowaasésis not likel
that they will be realized in the next few years.

Product Warranties

The Companys policy is to warrant all shipped products agaitefects in materials and workmanship for two y
by replacing failed parts. The Company also pravidghree-year manufacturgrvarranty covering implant failure
providing a functionallyequivalent replacement implant. Accruals for prddu@rranties are estimated basec
historical warranty experience and current prodpetformance trends, and are recorded at the timenue i
recognized as a component of cost of sales. Theanigr liabilities are reduced by material and labosts used
replace parts over the warranty period in the
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periods in which the costs are incurred. The Compaeriodically assesses the adequacy of its redovdarrant
liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessamg Warranty liabilities are included in accrued exges in tr
consolidated balance sheets.

Presentation of sales and value added taxes

The Company collects value added tax on its sal&rope and certain states in the United Sateesmp sales t
on the Companyg sales to nhonexempt customers. The Company colleat valued added and sales tax from custc
and remits the entire amount to the respective caititrs. The Compang’ accounting policy is to exclude the
collected and remitted to the authorities from rewes and cost of revenues.

Net Loss per Share

The Company’s computation of earnings per shar®$'Eincludes basic and diluted EPS. Basic EPS is mee
as the income (loss) available to common sharem®ldivided by the weighted average number of comisizare
outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS is simtlarbasic EPS but presents the dilutive effect qrerashare basis
potential common shares (e.g., convertible noteglga, convertible preferred stock, preferred stackrants an
common stock options) as if they had been conveatelde beginning of the periods presented, orisse date, if late
Potential common shares that have an dihtiive effect (i.e., those that increase inconee ghare or decrease loss
share) are excluded from the calculation of dilUE&RS.

Loss per common share is computed by dividing as$ by the weighted average number of shares ofmow
stock outstanding during the respective periodsidBand diluted loss per common share is the samallf period
presented because all convertible notes payablemom stock warrants and common stock options cudstg wer:
anti-dilutive.

At December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the Compaalp@ed the outstanding securities summarized beldvich
entitle the holders thereof to ultimately acquitares of common stock, from its calculation of @sga per share,
their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

2014 2013 2012
Long Term Investor Rights 1,021,02 — —
Underwriter's warrants 805,00( — —
Convertible notes payable — 6,248,65: 2,027,08:
Warrants associated with convertible debt 1,178,70 1,180,76! 400,00(
Common stock options 3,251,62 2,240,56! 2,727,50.
Total 6,256,35! 9,669,98! 5,154,58!

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stansldggpdate No. 2014-15 (ASU 2014), Presentation
Financial Statements — Going Concern (Subtopic P0b-ASU 2014-15 provides guidance as to managéement
responsibility to evaluate whether there is suligthdoubt about an entitg’ability to continue as a going concern ar
provide related footnote disclosures. In connectiath preparing financial statements for each ahrama interin
reporting period, an entity’ management should evaluate whether there ardtiomsdor events, considered in
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt aboutrtig/'s ability to continue as a going concern within gear after th
date that the financial statements are issued ifbinnone year after the date that the financiateshents are available
be issued when applicable). Managemeevaluation should be based on relevant condiaosevents that are kno
and reasonably knowable at the date that the finhatatements are issued (or at the date thafirthacial statemen
are available to be issued when applicable). Sobatadoubt about an entity’ability to continue as a going conc
exists when relevant conditions and events, consitie the
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aggregate, indicate that it is probable that th@yewill be unable to meet its obligations as thecome due within ol
year after the date that the financial statemergsssued (or available to be issued). ASU -15 is effective for th
annual period ending after December 15, 2016, andrfnual periods and interim periods thereaftarlyEapplication i
permitted. The Company is currently evaluating ithpact the adoption of ASU 2014-15 on the Comparfiiancia
statement presentation and disclosures.

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards qaFASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@14-
09 (ASU 2014-09), Revenue from Contracts with Comgis. ASU 2014-09 will eliminate transaction- andustry-
specific revenue recognition guidance under curté®. GAAP and replace it with a principle basegrapch fo
determining revenue recognition. ASU 2009-will require that companies recognize revenugetlaon the value
transferred goods or services as they occur irctidract. The ASU also will require additional disure about tt
nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenug @ash flows arising from customer contracts,udiclg significar
judgments and changes in judgments and assetsnizgedgrom costs incurred to obtain or fulfill anteact. ASU 201-
09 is effective for reporting periods beginningeafDecember 15, 2016, and early adoption is nahjped. Entities ca
transition to the standard either retrospectivetyas a cumulativeffect adjustment as of the date of adop
Management is currently assessing the impact toptasth of ASU 201439 and has not determined the effect of
standard on the Company’s ongoing financial repgrti

In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standatdigdate No. 2014-08 (ASU 201B), Presentation
Financial Statements (Topic 205) and Property, tPlamd Equipment (Topic 360). ASU 2008- amends tt
requirements for reporting discontinued operatiand requires additional disclosures about discartinoperation
Under the new guidance, only disposals represertistgrategic shift in operations or that have aomejfect on th
Companys operations and financial results should be ptedenas discontinued operations. This new accou
guidance is effective for annual periods beginrafitgr December 15, 2014. The Company is currentgluating th:
impact of adopting ASU 2014-08 on the Company'siltsf operations or financial condition.

Management does not believe that any other recesstled, but not yet effective, authoritative guick if current!
adopted, would have a material impact on the Coripdimancial statement presentation or disclosures

3. Money Market Funds

Money market funds at December 31, 2014 totaled¥®3563 and consisted of $268,464 in the City dwet
Rochdale Government Fund Class S, $1,024,101 imetedfed Deposit, $6,427 in the BBIF Money FundsSl&
$32,644,788 in the FFI Institutional Fund, and $83, held in a deposit account in Switzerland asirsgcfor the
performance of a contract. Money market funds atebeber 31, 2013 totaled $8,611,614 and consist&y ©8,368 i
the City National Rochdale Government Fund Clas$3550,845 in a Preferred Deposit, $3,351,104h& BBIF
Money Fund Class 3, and $941,297 in the FFI Irtsibal Fund.

The investment objective of the City National RoaledGovernment Money Market Fund is to preservedpa
and maintain a high degree of liquidity while privig current income through a portfolio of liquldgh quality, short-
term U.S. Government bonds and notes, at least 80%hich is in U.S. Government securities. The Qitgtiona
Rochdale Government Money Market Fund is managedCity National Rochdale, LLC. The Preferred Bust
Deposit Fund is managed by Merrill Lynch and isiglesd to provide liquidity, safety and competitiyeelds. Thi
investment objective of the BBIF Money Fund is é®ls current income, preservation of capital andidiiy through
diversified portfolio of U.S. dollar-denominatedostr-term securities with maturities of not more thary 3fays (1
months). The BBIF Money Fund is managed by BlackRaédvisors, LLC. The investment objective of thel
Institutional Fund is to seek maximum current ineooonsistent with liquidity and the maintenanceagdortfolio o
high-quality, short-term money market securitidlse FFI Institutional Fund is managed by BlackRock/i&ors, LLC.
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The following table presents money market fundsheir level within the fair value hierarchy at Dedeer 31, 201
and 2013.

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
December 31, 2014:
Money market funds $ 3399956 $ 3399956 $ — 3 —
December 31, 2013:
Money market funds $ 8,611,61.  $ 8,611,61  $ — % —

4, Selected Balance Sheet Detail

Inventories, net

Inventories consisted of the following at DecemB®&r2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Raw materials $ 610,43: $ 510,80:
Work in process 4,729,23! 2,617,50;
Finished goods 1,748,961 814,25(
7,088,63! 3,942 ,56;
Allowance for excess and obsolescence (1,366,64) (1,595,79)

$ 5,721,99 $ 2,346,77

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciion

Property and equipment consisted of the followinBecember 31, 2014 and 2013:

2014 2013
Laboratory equipment $ 3,285,842 $ 2,986,77C
Computer hardware and software 1,700,612 1,448,64C
Leasehold improvements 362,408 359,173
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 135,303 129,231

5,484,165 4,923,814
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (4,479,519) (4,200,34C)

$ 1,004,64¢€ $ 723,474

5. Related Party Transactions

As of December 31, 2013, three members of the CagipaBoard of Directors and certain of their affilig
(collectively, the “Related Party Investors”) he§@3,378,808 in face value of the Compangbnvertible promisso
notes. These convertible notes, which are nfigitg-described in Note 7, entitled the RelatedtfPdnvestors to (
simple interest of 7.5% per annum accrued on thstanding face value of convertible notes, (ii) mats to purcha:
shares of the Comparsytommon stock at $5.00 per share, and (iii) thietio convert their convertible notes into sh
of the Companys common stock at $5.00 per share upon the ocagrehcertain events, one of which was an ir
public offering of the Compang’ common stock. In June 2014, an entity associaitid one of these Related Pe
Investors assigned $200,000 in face value of tleeswertible notes payable to unrelated partiess Hasignme
included all accrued interest and the related 8y@@0ants. As more
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fully described in Note 7, all of the Compasyonvertible promissory notes were converted ¢gotmmon stock upon t
initial public offering of common stock. Accordinglthe Related Party Investors received 5,210,9#8es of th
Companys common stock upon conversion of their converfislamissory notes. As of December 31 2013, thetBe
Party Investors held convertible promissory notesluding accrued interest, totaling $24,731,246.04 December 3
2014 and 2013, in connection with the issuancéne$é convertible notes, the Related Party Invesield warrants 1
purchase 927,152 and 935,151 shares, respectifelye Companys common stock. During the period January 1,
to November 18, 2014 (the date the notes were ctat/éo common stock of the Company), the Compatpnde:
interest expense to the Related Party Investofl ¢§33,611. During the year ended December 31,,461&nnectio
with these convertible notes, the Company recoidadest expense to the Related Party Investoftl (£39,956. Tt
Related Party Investors purchased these convertidiks on the same terms and conditions as the iothestors in th
convertible note financings. The Related Party $toes were also stockholders of the Company atithe that the
purchased the convertible notes.

The Companyg largest stockholder and chairman is also a satistaontributor to the Alfred E. Mann Foundal
for Scientific Research (the “FoundationBeginning February 2007, an officer of the Compatso became tl
Chairman of the Board of the Foundation. The Compamd the Foundation share certain limited adnritiste ani
engineering employees. The shared employees makall@ation of their time between the Company ahe
Foundation. There are also various other costsedhbetween the Company and the Foundation. In ctionewith
these shared costs, the Company owed the Foundktion4 and $11,887 as of December 31, 2014 andrblser 31
2013, respectively.

On May 31, 2011, an officer of the Company entergd a loan agreement with the Company to finari
exercise of stock options to purchase 100,000 share$319,000, with a maturity date of May 31, @Gnd intere:
accruing at 2.26% per annum. On December 11, 2iE3same officer of the Company entered into arsgdoar
agreement with the Company to finance the exemistock options to purchase 200,000 shares of comstock fo
$100,000, with a maturity date of December 31, 2848 interest accruing at 1.64% per annum. As afebder 3!
2013, the balance outstanding pursuant to the ¢aod, including accrued interest, was $423,217s& keans receivat
were recorded in the Company’s financial statemaatan offset to stockholders’ equity. In July 20ttde Companyg
Board of Directors approved forgiving this noteawable and related accrued interest of $422,648¢clwamount i
included in general and administrative expensahenCompanys statement of operations for the year ended Deel
31, 2014.

Prior to November 2014, the Company leased ite@ffind laboratory space in Sylmar, California uradeoperatin
lease with Mann Biomedical Park, LLC (formerly SgnmBiomedical Park, LLC), which is wholly owned Byfred E.
Mann, a stockholder of the Company (see Note I8Ndvember 2014, the Mann Biomedical Park, LLC wsalsl to al
unrelated third party.

The Company entered into a loan agreement withnéity effiliated with Mr. Mann to lend the Companyp to $3.!
million at an annualized interest rate of 1.5% on an umeddwasis. The Company borrowed $2.0 million punstm this
loan agreement on October 1, 2014, and repaidaie dn November 24, 2014, including $4,274 of egerAs o
December 31, 2014, no amounts were due or outstguudider this agreement.

6. Grants

In April 2010, the Company was awarded a developgraed testing grant of $2,988,224 from the Depantnud
Health and Human Services, National Institutes eflth (NIH). The grant was for three years commegnén May
2010. The grant included managing various subcotstraith designated individuals and their respecfivstitutions
The grant reimburses research costs to develomadmdy for the prevention, cure and ameliorationtiod loss c
eyesight and other neurologic applications. The gamy recorded funding under the grant as an oftse¢search ar
development expenses. In 2014, 2013 and 2012,robsaad development expenses were offset by $198%151,56.
and $601,255, respectively.

In August 2010, the Company was awarded a foreigntgpf CHF230,000 from the European Union Fed@féite
for Professional Education and Technology (value®251,600 at December 31, 2012) to support trgigind cares
development of researchers. In January 2013, thep@ny had yet to meet the requirements as spedifjetthe grar
agreement, and therefore, management decided poirsae the grant and returned partial advancesviest pursuant



the grant totaling $163,576.
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In September, 2014, the Company entered into & Research and Development Agreement or JRDA wiité
Johns Hopkins University Applied Physics LaboratoryAPL. The JRDA includes a subcontract to do aese under
grant received by APL. Under the JRDA, the Comphag agreed to perform research regarding integratioAPL
research in to a visual prosthesis system. In @cidt014, APL paid the Company $4.075 million iredamp sum t
conduct its portion of the research. The JRDA astudes a license from APL to the Company, for life of any
patents resulting from APE’ portion of the research. The APL portion of tlesearch includes image proces
enhancements for a visual prosthesis. In exchamgeaé license, the Company issued 1,000 shariéss cbmmon stoc
to APL , has agreed to pay APL patent prosecution costst@mady APL a royalty of .25% of net sales of liset
products. The Company has not commenced any résaaccdevelopment activities under JDRA and as sectrde:
funds received under this grant as deferred revahlecember 31, 2014.

7. Convertible Promissory Notes and Warrants

During 2010 and 2011, the Company borrowed money series of financing rounds by issuing $15,440,61
convertible notes (the “2010 - 2011 Notepf)marily to existing stockholders. The notes aedrinterest at 7.5%
annum and had a variety of maturity dates. Duri@gj12 all but two of the 2010 and 2011 Notes, wittoenbined fac
value $47,001, were converted into 3,195,590 shafrdee Company common stock at $5.00 per share. In March
the Company redeemed the remaining two notes 8686 in cash.

During 2012 and 2013, the Company borrowed monéyaily from existing investors in three separateimnd:
through the issuance of convertible promissory sigtellectively, the “Convertible Notestptaling $29,519,162. TI
first round of Convertible Notes in the amount &®)0,000 was issued from July through NovembeR22@e ‘July
2012 Notes). The second round of Convertible Natethe amount of $5,000,000 was issued from Octobeugt
December 2012 (the “October 2012 Note§he third round of Convertible Notes in the amoaht$19,519,162 w:
issued from February through December 2013 (théorlrry 2013 Notes”)There were no placement fees assoc
with the Convertible Notes, and other administatbosts were nominal and were expensed as incurhedJuly 201
Notes and the October 2012 Notes had maturity d#téaly 31, 2015. The February 2013 Notes had trnityadate o
February 28, 2016. The Convertible Notes accrutateast at the rate of 7.5% per annum, which is dddé¢he principe
amounts. For the year ended December 31, 2014arthaalized effective interest rate on the July 20t®es, th
October 2012 Notes and the February 2013 Notes M@, 19.2%, and 63.3%, respectively. For the peale
December 31, 2013, the annualized effective intenaes on the July 2012 Notes, the October 2012Nand th
February 2013 Notes were 14.5%, 14.9% and 33.3%pentively. For the year ended December 31, 201¢
annualized effective interest rates on the July220lbtes and the October 2012 Notes were 14.5% a@n8l%d
respectively

The Convertible Notes were due on their respectiaéurity dates or convertible into the Compangbmmon stoc
upon the occurrence of a “capital eventhich is defined as (i) a sale of stock to a thpatty, excluding existir
shareholders, of not less than $15,000,000, (iijn@fal public offering, or (iii) a “qualifying rerganization eventas
defined in the Convertible Promissory Note agregmé&he Convertible Promissory Note agreement copthii
beneficial conversion feature that provided thah# notes were converted due to a capital evemt &l outstandir
principal and interest would be converted into ekaif common stock at the lower of the purchaseegraid pursuant
the capital event, or at $5.00 per share. If natabpvent occurred before the maturity date, toe@rtible Promissol
Note agreement provided that, at the election efttblder, all outstanding principal and interestldde converted
shares of common stock at $5.00 per share. Du@ig,2the debt issuance discount recorded in commeutith this
beneficial conversion feature was $10,487,645.

In connection with the Convertible Notes, the Compassued warrants to purchase 1,180,766 shardhe
Companys common stock. The warrants grant the holderigie to purchase additional shares of common std¢ke
Company equal to the product of (a) twenty percendtiplied by (b) the face amount of the convdeihote divided b
$5.00. The exercise price for each share purchasddr the warrant is $5.00. Until their expiratidate, the warran
may be exercised at any time, and from time to tim&hole or in part. As originally issued, thervamts expired on tl
earlier of their expiration dates, upon a changeantrol event, or within 30 days of prior writt@otice of a pendir
IPO. In June 2014, the board of directors amended
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the warrants to provide that they will not expiretbe occurrence of an IPO. The warrants assocwitbdthe July 201
Notes and the October 2012 Notes have an expirdadm of July 31, 2017. The warrants associateld thi¢ Februal
2013 Notes have an expiration date of Februar2@88. During 2013 and 2012, the debt issuance giigaecorded i
connection with the fair value of warrants issues 3,107,379 and 1,044,649, respectively.

As of December 31, 2014, there were outstandingamés associated with the Convertible Notes to lpas:
1,178,707 shares of the Company’s common stock, awtveighted average remaining contractual lif2.8¥ years.

During the fourth quarter of 2014, because of thecsssful completion of the Company’s IPO, the Canys
Convertible Notes were automatically converted i6t639,137 shares of the Companyommon stock, and i
unamortized discount on the Convertible Notes 09$4,610 was written off.

The calculated value of the warrants associatek thit Convertible Notes was estimated on the rdispedates ¢
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing madsligh the following assumptions:

2013 2012
Risk-free interest rate 0.65% -1.68% 0.60% —-83%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0%
Expected volatility 57.5% 63.9%
Expected term 4.2 -5.0 year 4.6 -5.0 year
Weighted-average grant date calculated fair value $ 39 3% 2.61

A summary for warrant activity the years ended Datoer 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012 is presented below:

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Number of Average Contractual
Shares Exercise Price Life (in Years)
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2011 — $ —
Granted 400,00( 5.0C
Exercised — —
Forfeited or expired — —
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2012 400,00( $ 5.0C
Granted 780,76t 5.0C
Exercised — —
Forfeited or expired — —
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2013 1,180,76 $ 5.0C
Granted 805,00( 11.2¢
Exercised (2,059 5.0C
Forfeited or expired — —
Warrants outstanding at December 31, 2014 1,983,70 $ 7.5¢ 3.7¢
Warrants exercisable at December 31, 2014 1,178,70 $ 5.0C 2.97
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The estimated aggregate intrinsic value of warrer&scisable at December 31, 2014 and 2013 wa®xpmately
$6,200,000 and $2,362,000, respectively.

Convertible promissory notes consisted of the foitmy at December 31, 2013:

July 2012 October 2012 February 2013
Notes Notes Notes Total
Principal outstanding $ 5,000,001 $ 5,000,00! $ 19,519,16 $ 29,519,16
Accrued interest 482,33: 404,07 837,69:. 1,724,091
Unamortized discount (554,28 (586,27 (10,891,58) (12,032,14)
4,928,041 4,817,801 9,465,26! 19,211,11
Less current portion — — — —
Long-term portion $ 4,928,041 $ 4,817,80 $ 9,465,26! $ 19,21111

8. Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has a 401(k) Savings Retirement Plnctivers substantially all fullme employees who meet -
plan’s eligibility requirements and provides for an eaygle elective contribution. The Plan provides forpye!
matching contributions. Employer contributions drscretionary and determined annually by the Bazriirectors
For the years ended December 31, 2014, 2013 ar@g] 2@iployer contributions to the Plan totaled $626, $109,86
and $129,486, respectively.

The Company is required to contribute to a govemtrsponsored pension plan for the employees ¢
Switzerland-based subsidiary. For the years endetember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, the emplsygottion of th
amounts contributed to the subsidiarpension plan on behalf of those employees wa8,$08, $94,157 and $78,0
respectively.

9. Equity Securities

In June 2014, the Compamyarticles of incorporation were amended to in@easthorized common shares
200,000,000, no par value, and to authorize 100@@0shares of preferred stock, no par value. Theng2amy's
consolidated financial statements have been rdtvedc restated to reflect this amendment. The Ba#rDirectors he
the authority to establish the rights, preferenpgeisjleges and restrictions granted to and impagean the holders
preferred stock and common stock.

November 2014 IPO

On November 18, 2014, the Company sold 4,025,08feshof common stock in an IPO, including 525,008re:
sold upon exercise of the underwriter's oadiotment option. Net proceeds to the Company edtalpproximately $34
million, net of offering costs of approximately $5million, including approximately $2.9 million fahe fair value ¢
warrants and common stock issued in connectiorts seitvices rendered. The proceeds from the IP@xected to k
used by the Company to invest in its business fmaed sales and marketing efforts, enhance curnexdupt, gail
regulatory approvals for additional indicationsgd@ontinue research and development into next géonartechnology.

Underwriter’s Warrant

As a component of the IPO underwriting fee, the @any granted the underwriter a warrant to purcl&Xe00(
shares of the Comparsytommon stock at an exercise price of $11.25 pames which was 25 percent above the offe
price to the investors. The warrant is exercisalslewhole or in part, for a period commencing 1844l after th
effective date of the
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registration statement (November 18, 2014) and ngnain the fifth anniversary date of the effectivated of thi

registration statement. The fair value of the watrriasued as part of underwriting fee for the Conyfa IPO wa
estimated to be $2,771,604, using the Black-Schapéisn-pricing model with the following assumptfn

Risk-free rate of return 1.63%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility 49.92%
Expected term 5 year.

Long Term Investor Right

As of February 22, 2015, the deadline for IPO Shalders to perfect their Long Term Investor Riglitsestor:
had perfected rights relating to 1,777,799 IPO &hafor the 90 day period ended on February 25,28& average
the closing prices for the Compasytommon stock on NASDAQ was $11.43. Based onatésage closing price,
IPO Shareholder who has perfected its Long Ternedtor Right would be entitled to additional 0.5&#k#res for eax
share purchased in the offering, rounded up torndxe whole share, which represents an aggregaténmax of
1,021,021 shares that are potentially issuablehbyGompany pursuant to the Long Term Investor Righguch dat
The actual number of common shares issuable pursm#ime Long Term Investor Right is dependentranfuture stoc
price of the Company over the two year period sgbest to the November 24, 2014 closing date ofQffering, ant
could be as low as zero shares.

2014 Private Placement

During 2014, the Company sold 1,299,853 sharessoEammon stock to new investors at $7.00 per shmag
private placement, raising a total of $9,098,97¢&laked to this stock placement, the Company pdidder's fee o
26,785 shares of common stock to Mendelsohn Investr8ervices, LLC, a firm affiliated with Aaron Maglsohn,
member of the Company’s Board of Directors. The @any paid an additional finderfee of 37,599 shares of comr
stock to an existing shareholder in connection Witk stock placement.

2013 Private Placement

From July 1, 2013 through December 31, 2013, then@2zmy sold 342,955 shares of its common stock
investors at $7.00 per share in a private placemmaising a total of $2,400,685. No costs were iiremi in connectic
with these issuances.

Common Stock Issuable

Beginning with services rendered in 2014, and hth first payment in June 2015, nemployee members of t
Board of Directors will be paid for their servicescommon stock on June 1 of each year based oaviieage closir
prices for the immediately preceding twenty tradd®ys. For 2014, the Company accrued $166,25Chéset service
which equates to 16,204 shares based on the $tgi6g price for Compang’common stock on December 31, 2
These shares have not yet been issued and arededcftom the calculation of weighted average comrabare
outstanding for EPS purposes.

10. Stock-Based Compensation

Under the 2003 Plan, as restated in June 2011Ctmpany was authorized to issue options coveringo
3,500,000 common stock shares. Effective June 11,.2the Company adopted the 2011 Equity Incentihaa Rthe
“2011 Plan”). The maximum number of shares with respect to whigtions may be granted under the 2011 PI
4,000,000 shares, which is offset and reduced bipmp previously granted under the 2003 Plan. Tigon price i
determined by the Board of Directors but cannokelss than the fair value of the shares at the gtate. Generally, tl
options vest ratably over either four or five yearsd expire ten years from the grant date. Botimlarovide fa
accelerated vesting if there is a change of coriotefined in the plans.
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10. Stock-Based CompensatiofCont'd)

No option shall be granted under the 2011 Plarr dey 31, 2021. The option price is determined ly Board ¢
Directors. The term of each option will not to eedeten years and the option exercise is subjegesting and oth
conditions.

The Company recognized stoblksed compensation cost of $1,474,645, $769,89690d,862 during 2014, 20
and 2012, respectively. The calculated value ohesation grant was estimated on the date of graimguthe Black-
Scholes optioapricing model with the following assumptions:

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rate 0.3% —2.2% 1% 0.93% —1.3%
Expected dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Expected volatility 50.0% 61.2% 61.2% 62.2%
Expected term 1.5-6.5year 6.5 year 6.256.5 year
Weighted-average grant date calculated fair value $ 472 % 158 % 2.9:

As the Company has limited stock trading histohg expected volatility is based on the historicalatility of
similar companies that have a trading history. &kpgected term represents the estimated averagelpsrtime that th
options are expected to remain outstanding. Sime€bmpany does not have sufficient historical datshe exercise
stock options, the expected term is based on tingpfdied” method that measures the expected term as thegave
the vesting period and the contractual term. Télefriee rate of return reflects the grant dateré@serate offered for ze
coupon U.S. Treasury bonds over the expected téthremptions.

A summary of stock option activity for the yearsled December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 is preserted/b

Weighted
Average
Weighted Remaining
Number of Average Contractual
Shares Exercise Price Life (in Years)
Options outstanding at December 31, 2011 2,599,05: $ 4.2¢
Granted 190,10( 5.0C
Exercised (27,43() 3.67
Forfeited or expired (34,22() 4.67
Options outstanding at December 31, 2012 2,727,50: 4.3z
Granted 50C 5.0C
Exercised (331,87) 1.0t
Forfeited or expired (155,569 3.7¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2013 2,240,56: 4.84
Granted 1,377,97 7.62
Exercised (115,029 4.4
Forfeited or expired (251,891 4.4¢
Options outstanding at December 31, 2014 3,251,62 6.07 5.6(
Options exercisable at December 31, 2014 1,870,66 $ 4.87 3.0C
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The exercise prices of common stock options oudlstgnand exercisable are as follows at Decembe2®14:

Options Options
Outstanding Exercisable

Exercise Price (Shares) (Shares)
$ 2.50 6,00( 6,00(
$ 3.75 10,00( 10,00(
$ 4.25 125,00( 125,00(
$ 4.75 476,15¢ 476,15¢
$ 5.00 1,592,23! 1,253,50:
$ 7.00 262,09! —
$ 9.00 768,13- —
$ 14.06 12,00( —
3,251,62' 1,870,66

The estimated aggregate intrinsic value of stockioop exercisable at December 31, 2014 and 201:
approximately $10,080,000 and $3,996,000, respegtivAs of December 31, 2014, there was $5,654 &Bfta
unrecognized compensation cost related to theamdstg stock options that will be recognized overedghted averag
period of 3.95 years.

In January 2014, the Company granted a stock optidts chief executive officer to purchase 125,8D@res ¢
common stock at an exercise price of $4.25 peresieercisable for a period of three years fromddue of grant. Tt
stock option grant was fully vested on the datessfiance and was intended to replace an earliek sgation grant wit
the same exercise price that had expired in Jar@ty. The stock option was not granted pursuatitéc?011 Plai
The grant date fair value of the stock option, glited pursuant to the Black-Scholes optiwiting model utilizing
volatility factor of 50% and a dividend rate of O%as determined to be $392,737, which was chargexbérations ¢
general and administrative expense in the yearceBeéeember 31, 2014.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Compegorded a charge of $235,347 to extend the ese
period of 232,003 options for four employees whsigeed and became consultants for the Companyurdeste
options for employees were terminated when thegaxtéull-time employment with the Company.

The total stock-based compensation recognized ttmkdased awards granted in the consolidated statenoé
operations for the years ended December 31, 2@1&B &nd 2012 is as follows:

2014 2013 2012
Cost of sales $ 191,39  $ 152,65 $ 217,88°
Research and development 292,65: 229,25: 136,17¢
Clinical and regulatory 112,99¢ 82,68¢ 118,02:
Selling and marketing 141,34« 101,76¢ 145,25t
General and administrative 736,25¢ 203,53t 290,51¢
Total $ 1,474,64 $ 769,89t $ 907,86:

From time to time, the Company has extended fubuese loans to certain nafficer employees for the purpose
financing stock option exercises. These loans imarest ranging from 1.27% to 1.91% per annumamnedpayable ov
three years in monthly installments of principatlamterest. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, thetanudisng balance
such loans, including accrued interest, was $1@af8] $24,661, respectively. These loans receivatglgecorded
the Company’s consolidated financial statementnasffset to stockholdergquity. Additionally at December 31, 2(
and 2013, the Company had a receivable in the amou$10,182 and $12,500, respectively, from a aofficer
employee for the exercise of options which has beeorded as an offset to stockholders’ equityh@ €ompanye
consolidated financial statements at December G132
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On December 27, 2013, the Company extended adodlurse loan totaling $127,165 to a consultanttiia
purpose of financing the exercise of stock optidr®e loan bears interest at 1.64% per annum arep@yable in eigl
equal quarterly installments of $16,192. This loageivable is recorded in the Companyonsolidated financi
statements as an offset to stockholdegtiity. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the outétgnbalance of this lo:
including accrued interest was $42,373 and $127 fs8pectively.

Stock Awards

In July 2014, the Company awarded Alfred E. Mare €hairman of the Board of Directors, 25,000 shan
commonstock in recognition of services rendered to then@any since inception. These shares were valugti7at 000, ¢
$7.00 per share , and were charged to generaldmohigtrative expense in 2014.

In 2014, the Company awarded 21,215 shares to @ideuwattorney and his staff as part of the fed fpati drafting
the Company’s prospectus and. $iing. These shares were valued at $169,50%) w@, 715 shares valued at $7.00
shares and the balance valued at $9.00 per shagecoEt of these shares is treated as an issuasicef¢che Company
initial public offering and was deducted from thresgs proceeds from the offering.

11. Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effe¢teemporary differences between the carrying amoafitasse
and liabilities for financial reporting purposedahe amounts used for income tax purposes. Sigmificomponents
the Company’s deferred tax assets as of Decemh@03% and 2013 are summarized below:

2014 2013
Stock-based compensation $ 2,489,001 $ 1,164,001
Research credits 5,436,001 5,201,001
Depreciation (13,000 (13,000
Net operating loss carryforwards 43,700,00 37,773,00
Inventory reserve 544,00( 684,00(
Other 492,00( 241,00(
Total deferred tax assets 52,648,00 45,050,00
Valuation allowance (52,648,00) (45,050,00)
Net deferred tax assets $ — 3 —

In assessing the potential realization of theserdedl tax assets, management considers whethembie likel
than not that some portion or all of the deferi@ddssets will be realized. The ultimate realizatib deferred tax ass
is dependent upon the Company attaining futurebia@xacome during the periods in which those terapodifference
become deductible. As of December 31, 2014 and ,2@BBagement was unable to determine if it is nliedy thar
not that the Company’ deferred tax assets will be realized, and hasefitve recorded an appropriate valua
allowance against deferred tax assets at such.dates

No federal tax provision has been provided forytears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 dhe tosse
incurred during such periods. The Compangffective tax rate is different from the fedestdtutory rate of 34% d
primarily to operating losses that receive no tarddit as a result of a valuation allowance recfde such losses.
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As of December 31, 2014, the Company had fedemhlstate income tax net operating loss carryforwandsct
may be applied to future taxable income, of apprately $107,346,000 and $101,807,000, respectiiiélg.federal n
operating loss carryforwards will expire at variodates from 2023 through 2034. The state net apgrdbs:
carryforwards will expire at various dates from 8Ghrough 2034. The Company also has a federaktatd resear:
and development tax credit carryforwards totalipgraximately $3,209,000 and $3,375,000, respegtivethe federe
research and development tax credit carryforwardks expire at various dates from 2023 through 203#e stat
research and development tax credit carryforwaodsal expire.

Pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Sections 382383¢ use of the Compars/net operating loss and cre
carryforwards may be limited if a cumulative chamgewnership of more than 50% occurs within amgéyear perio
since the last ownership change. The Company mag had a change in control under these Sectionseker, thi
Company does not anticipate performing a compleédyais of the limitation on the annual use of tie¢ operating lo:
and tax credit carryforwards until the time thatribjects it will be able to utilize these tax diites.

The Company files income tax returns in the U.8efal jurisdiction and California and is subjectitcome ta
examinations by federal tax authorities for taxrgeanded 2011 and later and by California auttesrifor tax yea
ended 2010 and later. The Company currently isinder examination by any tax authority. The Compsupplicy is tc
record interest and penalties on uncertain taxtiposi as income tax expense. As of December 314,208 Compar
has no accrued interest or penalties related tertain tax positions. Second Sight Switzerland,Gloenpanys foreigr
subsidiary, has not had any taxable income in #s. p

12. Product Warranties

A summary of activity in the Compars/'warranty liabilities, which are included in aceduexpenses in t
accompanying consolidated balance sheets, forahesyended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 isnpeesbelow:

2014 2013 2012
Balance, beginning of year $ 253,20  $ 120,44  $ 35,35!
Additional accruals 415,27t 138,49( 105,12!
Payments (112,504) (5,879 (22,579
Adjustments and other — 14¢ 2,53¢
Total $ 555,97, $ 253,20( $ 120,44(

13. Commitments and Contingencies

Lease Commitment

Effective August 2012, the Company entered inteasé agreement (the “Sylmar Leaseith a company owned |
the major stockholder of the Company for officecséor a term of five years that expires on Felyr&d, 2017. Th
Sylmar Lease included rental of additional spagaroencing January 1, 2013 and a five year optiaenew. The lea:
requires the Company to pay real estate taxesransa and common area maintenance each year, aubject t
periodic cost of living adjustments. In April 201the Sylmar Lease was renegotiated with the terdingnon Februal
28, 2022, and a five year option to renew. The teage also requires the Company to pay real efstades, insuran:
and common area maintenance each year and incud@satic increases in base rent each year. IniNbge2014, th
property underlying the Sylmar lease was sold taraelated party.

Second Sight Switzerland rents office space in &sliand on a month-toronth basis for CHF 7,0
(approximately $7,100 at December 31, 2014) pertimon
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Total rent expense was approximately $1,007,0006 $D0 and $458,000 for the years ended Decemhet03d4
2013 and 2012, respectively, and is allocated baseshuare footage to general and administraticenaanufacturin
costs in the accompanying consolidated statemespefations.

Future minimum rental payments required under therating leases are as follows for the years embe
31

Years Amount

2015 $ 778,44¢
2016 808,06t
2017 833,04!
2018 858,03t
2019 883,77
Thereafter 2,004,91!
Total $ 6,166,29:

License Agreements

The Company has exclusive licensing agreementstitizeucertain patents. These patents are relatedhd
technology for visual prostheses. There are cugréwo such agreements that the Company has deteththere is
reasonable likelihood of future royalty paymentheTCompany has agreed to pay the licensors' regditir license
products sold or leased by the Company. The royaligs range from 0.5% to 3.25%, based on relat¢dales of tt
patented portion of licensed products, less a tfediroyalties paid to others. The 3.25% rateaet a .25% credit f
royalties paid to others. Additional discounts nbaypossible if we enter additional licenses.

One of the licensing agreements requires the Coynfmapay the licensors a $5,000 annual maintenfeeéor the
first seven years and a $10,000 annual mainteni@eceach year thereafter for as long as the agmehas not bee
terminated by the Company. The second of theseeagmets has no stipulated fees. Pursuant to theseragnts, tt
Company has incurred costs of approximately $45,328,000 and $0 for the years ended December @Y, 201
and 2012, respectively.

Clinical Trial Agreements

Based upon FDA approval, which was obtained in &r@tyr 2013, the Company is required to collect fotiop dat:
from subjects enrolled in its pre-approval triat o period of up to ten years pastplant, which extends this tr
through the year 2019. In addition, the Compangoigducting two postrarket studies to comply with US FDA ¢
European postarket surveillance regulations and requiremenrte. Company has contracted with various univers
hospitals, and medical practices to provide theseices. Payments are based on procedures perfdonedch subje
and are charged to clinical and regulatory expassecurred. Total amounts charged to expensehfoyéars end:
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $602,196,988 and $385,556, respectively.

Litigation, Claims and Assessments

Nine oppositions have been filed by a thiraty in the European Patent Office, each challemdine validity of
European patent owned or exclusively licensed ByGbmpany. The outcome of the challenges is nédicethoweve
if successful, they may affect the Companybility to block competitors from utilizing itsafented technolog
Management of the Company does not believe a ssftteshallenge will have a material effect on itsility to
manufacture and sell its products, or otherwisestwmmnaterial effect on its operations.

The Company is party to litigation arising in thedioary course of business. It is managenseonpinion that th
outcome of such matters will have not have a malteffect on the Company'’s financial statements.
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14. Subsequent Events

On February 25, 2015, the Board of Directors autieor, subject to shareholder approval, an increage000,00!
shares in the number of shares available for o@eards under the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

15. Quarterly Financial Summary (unaudited)

Quarters Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2014@® 2014 2014 2014

Product sales $ 1,520,22 $ 609,42 $ 611,47 $ 656,72t
Gross profit (loss) $ 99,20¢ $ 192,79 $ (38157) % (70,70
Operating loss $ (5,565,04) $ (5,649,05) $ (5,562,87) $ (4,456,48)
Net loss $ (13577,11) $ (7,644,30) $ (7,541,07) $ (6,438,75)
Net loss per share — basic and

diluted $ (0.4¢) % 03) % 03) $ (0.2¢)

Quarters Ended

December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2013 2013 2013 2013

Product sales $ 563,63: $ 235,67 $ 313,75! $ 451,87!
Gross loss $ (998,34) % (1,044,75) % (575,98) % (1,445,309
Operating loss $ (4,336,03) $ (4,609,91) $ (4,107,69) $ (4,943,89)
Net loss $ (5,978,00) $ (6,177,00) $ (5,366,57) $ (5,447,34)
Net loss per share — basic and

diluted $ 0.2y % 0.2y % 0299 $ (0.29

(1) During the fourth quarter of 2014, the Compamgte-off the unamortized discount on convertible promigaote:
of $6,954,610 as a result of the automatic coneersif such notes into common stock upon the closihthe
Company’s IPO.
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Exhibit No. Exhibit Description

11 Form of Underwriting Agreemen(?)

3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of the Registi(®)

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrantyasmtly in effect(®)

4.1 Form of the Registra’s common stock certificat(®)

4.2 Form of Underwrite's Warrant®)

10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Regidteardl each of its directors and office(D*

10.2 2003 Equity Incentive Pla(b*

10.3 2003 Form of Employee Option AgreemeM)*

10.4 2011 Equity Incentive Pla(b*

10.5 2011 Form of Employee Option AgreemeM)*

10.6 2014 Option Issued to Robert Greenk— Terms and Condition{1)*

10.7 2014 Executive Officer Option Agreeme(D*

10.8 Form of Convertible Promissory Noi®)

10.9 Form of Warrant, as amende®)

10.10 Standard Multi-Tenant Office Lease — Nated April 15, 2014, between Registrant and Mann
Biomedical Park LLC(®)

10.11 Exclusive License Agreement between RegistrantJahds Hopkins University and Duke Univers®

10.12 Cost Reimbursement Consortium Research Agreemémebe Registrant and Doheny Eye Instit(®)

10.13 Form of Lock Up Agreemen(®)

10.14 Shareholder Agreement dated September 5, 2((1)

10.15 Offer Letter to Thomas Miller dated May 21, 20D+

10.16 Form of Loan Agreement dated Septembe2@D4 between Mann Group LLC and Registrant for
$3,000,000, including form of promissory note asiBit A thereto.(1)

10.17 Joint Research and Development Agreeméwekea Johns Hopkins University Applied Physics
Laboratory and Registrart)

21.1* List of subsidiaries of the Registra

31.1* Certification of Principal Executive Officef Second Sight Medical Products, Inc. pursuar8éction
302 of the Sarban-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2* Certification of Principal Financial and éaunting Officer of Second Sight Medical Produtts,
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbi-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1* Certifications of Principal Executivéff@er and Principal Financial and Accounting Oéficof Second

Sight Medical Products, Inc. pursuant to Rule 18éb) under the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.C. Section
1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of theaBa-Oxley Act of 2002

* Included herein.

+ Indicates management contract or compensatary

(1) Incorporated by reference to the registrargfistration statement on Form S-1, file no. 388073, originally file
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on Augf, 2014, as amended.

F-31




Exhibit 21.1
Subsidiaries of the Registrant

State or Other Jurisdiction of
Name of Subsidiary * Incorporation or Organization
Second Sight Medical Products (Switzerland) Salit&rland) Switzerland

* The subsidiaries of the Registrant do not do bissinmder any name other than as listed at




Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer of Semnd Sight Medical Products, Inc. pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) under the Exchange Act,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002

[, Robert J. Greenberg, certify that:

1.

2.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Second Sight Medical Products, Ir

Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or om#gttde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisietading with respect to t
period covered by this repo

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,atimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, and tfee periods presented in |

report;

The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | are responsitdleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repagti(as defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurbs wesigned unc
our supervision, to ensure that material infornratielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahceporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenabsurance regarding the reliability of finandieporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetis report based
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reporting thatcoaed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabmg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

The registrang other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir




Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ ROBERTJ. CREENBERG

Robert J. Greenberg
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial and Accounting Officer of Second Sight Medical Products, Inc. pusuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) under the Exchange Act,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarban&xley Act of 2002

I, Thomas B. Miller, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Forn-K of Second Sight Medical Products, Ir

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corganuntrue statement of a material fact or omgttde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisietading with respect to t
period covered by this repo

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statement$,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operst and cash flows of the registrant as of, and tfee periods presented in |

report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer(s) and | are responsifoleestablishing and maintaining disclosure cdstemd procedures (
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15()) and internal control over financial repagti(as defined in Exchange /
Rules 13-15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

a)

b)

c)

d)

Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresawsed such disclosure controls and procedurbs wesigned unc
our supervision, to ensure that material infornratielating to the registrant, including its condated subsidiaries, is me
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report isifge prepared

Designed such internal control over financial réjpgr, or caused such internal control over finahceporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide readenabsurance regarding the reliability of finandieporting and tr
preparation of financial statements for externappses in accordance with generally accepted atioguprinciples;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registeadisclosure controls and procedures and preséntéds report our conclusio
about the effectiveness of the disclosure control$ procedures, as of the end of the period cougyetis report based
such evaluation; an

Disclosed in this report any change in the tegid's internal control over financial reporting thatcoaed during th
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regidts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuyabmg that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registra’s internal control over financial reporting; &

5. The registran$ other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosbdsed on our most recent evaluation of internatrobover financie
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and theitaadmmittee of the registrast’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions)

a)

b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesge the design or operation of internal controkofinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancia
information; anc

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesmagement or other employees who have a signifioalet in the
registran’s internal control over financial reportir




Date: March 16, 2015 /s/ THOMAS B. MILLER

Thomas B. Miller
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office




Exhibit 32.1

Certifications of Principal Executive Officer and Principal Financial and Accounting Officer of SecondSight Medical Products, Inc.
Pursuant to
Rule 13a-14(b) under the Exchange Act and 18 U.S.Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Second Sidledical Products, Inc. (the “Company”) on FormHKdor the period ende
December 31, 2014 as filed with the Securities Brchange Commission on the date hereof (the “R8pave, Robert J. Greenberg, Ct
Executive Officer (Principal Executive Officer) amttomas B. Miller, Chief Financial Officer (PringipFinancial and Accounting Officer)
the Company, certify, to the best of our knowledgersuant to Rule 1354(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 EdJ.S.C.
Chapter 63, Section 1350, as adopted pursuantctin8&06 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934; anc

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctodiand results «
operations of the Compar

Date: March 16, 201* /s/Robert J. Greenbe
Robert J. Greenberg
Chief Executive Officer
(Principal Executive Officer

Date: March 16, 201t /sIThomas B. Mille|
Thomas B. Miller
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Office




